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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No.  PT-2022-000303 

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 

CHANCERY DIVISION 

B E T W E E N 

(1) UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

 (2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Claimants / Applicants 

and 
 

(1) PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION 
WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL 

CAMPAIGN, ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD 
OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED 

RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, 
WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

 

First Defendant / Respondent 

(2) PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO 
THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, OBSTRUCTING 

OR INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S ACCESS OVER PRIVATE ACCESS ROADS 
ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE 

(SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE 
KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION 

SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 
 

Second Defendant / Respondent 

 

BUNDLE FOR USE AT HEARING OF APPLICATION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT 

 

SECTIONS A - F
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No. PT-2022-000303 
BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 
CHANCERY DIVISION 
PROPERTY TRUSTS AND PROBATE LIST  
 

 (1)  UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

First Claimant / Applicant 

(2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Second Claimant / Applicant 

and  
 

(1)  PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF THE 
CLAIMANTS AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION 

CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING 
PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN 
FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED  ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL 
TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE 

ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

First Defendant/Respondent 

(2)  PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF THE CLAIMANTS AND IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST 

STOP OIL CAMPAIGN INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S RIGHTS TO PASS AND 
REPASS WITH OR WITHOUT VEHICLES, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT OVER PRIVATE ACCESS 

ROADS ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 
HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 

PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 
IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

Second Defendant/Respondent 

___________________________________________________ 

INDEX TO BUNDLE FOR USE AT THE HEARING OF 

APPLICATION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT 

___________________________________________________ 
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For court use only 

 

 

Claim Form 
 
 

You may be able to issue your claim online which may 
save time and money. Go to www.moneyclaim.gov.uk 
to find out more. 

 

You must indicate your preferred County Court Hearing Centre for hearings here (see notes for guidance) 
 
 
 
 

Defendant’s £ 
name and 
address for 
service 
including 
postcode 

 
 
 
 
 

 

For further details of the courts www.gov.uk/find-court-tribunal. 
When corresponding with the Court, please address forms or letters to the Manager and always quote the claim number. 

N1 Claim form (CPR Part 7) (10.20) © Crown Copyright 2020 

   

Claimant(s) name(s) and address(es) including postcode 

 
SEAL 

 
 

Defendant(s) name and address(es) including postcode 
 
 
 
Brief details of claim 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Value 

Help with Fees –  
Ref no. (if applicable) 

Fee Account no. 

In the 

– – H W F 
 

   
 

Claim no.  

Issue date  

 

Amount claimed  

Court fee  

Legal representative’s 
costs 

 

Total amount  

 

 

  

 

 

(1) United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited (Company Number:  
007466708) of 5-7 Alexandra Road, Hemel Hempstead,  
Hertfordshire, HP2 5BS; and  
(2) West London Pipeline and Storage Limited (Company  
Number: 01918796) of 5-7 Alexandra Road, Hemel Hempstead,  
Hertfordshire, HP2 5BS. 

Persons Unknown as further described in the attached rider 

Claim for Injunctions as further described in the Particulars of Claim 

 

High Court of Justice, Business and Property Courts of 
England and Wales, Chancery Division 
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Does, or will, your claim include any issues under the Human Rights Act 1998? Yes No 
 

Particulars of Claim (attached) (to follow) 

Claim No.  

 

 

X  
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Statement of Truth 

I understand that proceedings for contempt of court may be 
brought against anyone who makes, or causes to be made, a false 
statement in a document verified by a statement of truth without 
an honest belief in its truth. 

 

I believe that the facts stated in these particulars of claim are 
true. 

 

The Claimant believes that the facts stated these 
particulars of claim are true. I am authorised by the 
claimant to sign this  statement. 

 

Signature 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Claimant 

Litigation friend (where judgment creditor is a child or a patient) 

Claimant’s legal representative (as defined by CPR 2.3(1)) 

 
 

Date 

Day Month Year 
 
 
 

Full name 
 
 
 
 

Name of claimant’s legal representative’s firm 
 
 

 

If signing on behalf of firm or company give position or office held 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 APRIL
  

2022 

DANIEL OWEN CHRISTOPHER TALFAN DAVIES 

FIELDFISHER LLP 

PARTNER 

 

x 

 

 

x 
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Claimant’s or claimant’s legal representative’s address to which 
documents should be sent. 

 
Building and street 

 

 
Second line of address 

 

 
Town or city 

 

 
County (optional) 

 

 
Postcode 

 

 

E C 4 R 3 T T 
 
 

If applicable 

Phone number 

 

Fax phone number 
 

 
DX number 

 

 
Your Ref. 

 

 
Email 

 

 

OTD/000162 

 

03304607000 

 

LONDON 

RIVERBANK HOUSE 

2 SWAN LANE  
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7 April 2022 Fieldfisher LLP 1 

RIDER TO CLAIM FORM  

 

1. PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT AND IN 

CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE 

JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING PART OF (A) 

THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 

IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED  ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY 

OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED 

RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

2. PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED 

TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN 

INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S RIGHTS TO PASS AND REPASS WITH OR 

WITHOUT VEHICLES, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT OVER PRIVATE ACCESS ROADS 

ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 

HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 

1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 

IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE     Claim No […] 

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 

CHANCERY DIVISION 

PROPERTY TRUSTS AND PROBATE LIST 

B E T W E E N: 

 

(1)  UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

First Claimant / Applicant  

(2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED  

    Second Claimant/Applicant 

-and- 

(1)  PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT 
AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION 

REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN ON LAND AND 
BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL 

TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 
IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED  ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE 

KINSGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 
IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

First Defendant/ Respondent  

(2)  PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT AND IN CONNECTION 
WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR 

THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST 
CLAIMANT'S RIGHTS TO PASS AND REPASS WITH OR WITHOUT VEHICLES, 
MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT OVER PRIVATE ACCESS ROADS ADJACENT 

TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 
HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE 

ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINSGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, 
KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED 

BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

Defendant 

_________________________ 

PARTICULARS OF CLAIM 

_________________________ 
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Definitions and Interpretation 

1.1 In these Particulars of Claim, the description “Site 1” is a reference to the following 

property:

1.1.1 The freehold land comprising:

(a) Land and buildings on the south side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel 

Hempstead, which is registered at the Land Registry under title number 

HD485114 and marked 1 on the Site 1 Plan attached (“the Site 1 Plan”):

(b) Land to the north of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is 

registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485115 and marked 2 

on the Site 1 Plan; 

(c) Land on the west side of Buncefield Lane, Hemel Hempstead, which is 

registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485116 and marked 3 

on the Site 1 Plan; 

(d) Land on the north east and south west side of Three Cherry Trees Lane, 

Hemel Hempstead, registered at the Land Registry under title number 

HD485118 and marked 5 on the Site 1 Plan. 

1.1.2 The leasehold land comprising:

(a) Land on the north side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead, as more 

particularly described by a Lease dated 23 September 2013 made 

between (1) Total UK Limited and (2) United Kingdom Oil Pipelines 

Limited which is registered at the Land Registry under title number 

HD529733 and marked 4 on the Site 1 Plan. 

1.2 In these Particulars of Claim, the description “Site 2” is a reference to the following 

property:

1.2.1 The freehold land comprising: 

(a) All that piece of land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick comprising 

4.96 acres or thereabouts as more particularly described by a 
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conveyance dated 31 March 1967 and made between (1) Shell-Mex and 

B.P. Limited and (2) United Oil Kingdom Pipelines Limited and marked 

1 on the Site 2 Plan attached (“the Site 2 Plan”). 

(b) Land on the south-east side of Trinity Road, Kingsbury, Tamworth 

which is registered at the Land Registry under title number WK468465 

and marked 2 on the Site Plan. 

1.2.2 The leasehold land comprising land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick, as 

more particularly described in a Lease dated 3 November 2012 made between 

(1) The Secretary of State for Defence and (2) United Oil Kingdom Pipelines 

Limited and marked 3 on the Site 2 Plan.

The Claimants

2.1 The First Claimant is the freehold registered proprietor of those parts of Site 1 referred 

to in Paragraphs 1.1.1(a), (b) and (c) above and the lessee of the land referred to in 

Paragraph 1.1.2 above.

2.2 The First Claimant is also the freehold proprietor of the that part of Site 2 referred to in 

Paragraph 1.2.1(a) above, the freehold registered proprietor of that part of Site referred 

to in Paragraphs 1.2.1(b) above and the lessee of that part of the Site referred to in 

Paragraph 1.2.2 above.

2.3 Pursuant to clause 2, Schedule 1 of the Lease referred to in Paragraph 1.1.2 above, the 

First Claimant also enjoys a right at all times with or without vehicles to enter upon and 

to pass over and across the accessway forming part of the landlord’s retained land, as 

shown coloured blue on the Site 1 Plan (“the Site 1 Access Route”).

2.4 The Second Claimant is the registered freehold proprietor of that part of Site 1 which 

is referred to in Paragraph 1.1.1(d) above. 

2.5 Pursuant to clause 2 of the Site 2 Lease, the First Claimant also enjoys a right at all 

times (with or without vehicles) over, and other ancillary rights in respect of, the 

accessway forming part of the landlord’s retained land (“the Site 2 Access Route”).
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The Campaigns

3.1 ‘Extinction Rebellion’ and ‘Just Stop Oil’ are environmental campaign groups. 

‘Extinction Rebellion’ is an international environmental movement, claiming to be use 

non-violent civil disobedience to protest against “mass extinction and minimise the risk 

of social collapse”. ‘Just Stop Oil’ is a protest group which describes itself as a 

“coalition of groups working together to ensure the Government commits to halting 

new fossil fuel licensing and production” and to protest through means of non-violent 

civil disobedience with “strikes, boycotts, mass protests and disruption”. 

3.2 There is a real and substantial risk of imminent acts of trespass and/or nuisance 

affecting Site 1 and/or Site 2 by persons acting in connection with or affiliated to the 

‘Extinction Rebellion’ campaign and/or the ‘Just Stop Oil’ campaign. There is also a 

real and substantial risk of imminent acts of nuisance affecting the Site 1 Access Route 

and/or the Site 2 Access Route by persons acting in connection with or affiliated to the 

‘Extinction Rebellion’ campaign and/or the ‘Just Stop Oil’ campaign. In particular, the 

risks arise from the following: 

3.2.1 There were trespasses on Site 1 on 3 April 2022 when certain individuals 

managed to gain access to Site 1. 

3.2.2 There has been direct action in and around Site 1 and Site 2 since 1 April 2022: 

(a) On 1 April 2022, ‘Just Stop Oil’ supporters climbed on the top of an oil 

tanker at the entrance to Site 1 whilst other supporters sat on the road in 

front of the tanker, some of whom chained themselves to the oil tanker. 

(b) On 1 April 2022, ‘Extinction Rebellion’ and ‘Just Stop Oil’ supporters 

blocked entrances to Site 2 preventing oil tankers from leaving and they 

also let out the air on the tyres of an oil tanker. 

(c) On 2 and 3 April 2022, there was continuing direct action outside Site 

2, involving acts of obstructions and damage. 

(d) On 3 and 4 April 2022, there was direct action outside Site 1, which 

included supporters blocking the entrance to Site 1, camping outside, 

standing on fuel trucks with banners and sitting outside the gates to 

prevent tankers from leaving.
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(e) On 5 April 2022, the entrance at Site 2 was again blocked and certain 

supporters glued themselves to the road or locked on. 

(f) On 7 April 2022, the entrance to Site 2 was again blocked. Those 

carrying out direct action also claimed to be inside the Kingsbury oil 

terminal but not those parts which comprise Site 2.

3.2.3 The events referred to above have been part of an ongoing co-ordinated 

campaign by supporters of ‘Extinction Rebellion’ and supporters of ‘Just Stop 

Oil’ which has involved direct action at various other oil terminals and/or 

facilities in the UK. 

3.3 By reason of the facts and matters aforesaid: 

3.3.1 An injunction is sought to forbid the First Defendants and each of them from 

entering or remaining upon Site 1 and/or from causing damage to, or removing 

equipment from Site 1, without consent; and/or

3.3.2 An injunction is sought to forbid the Second Defendants and each of them from 

interfering with the First Claimant’s rights to pass and re-pass (with or without 

vehicles and at any time) over the Site 1 Access Route; and/or

3.3.3 An injunction is sought to forbid the First Defendants and each of them from 

entering or remaining upon Site 2 and/or from causing damage to, or removing 

equipment from Site 2, without consent; and/or

3.3.4 An injunction is sought to forbid the Second Defendants and each of them from 

interfering with the First Claimant’s right to pass and re-pass (with or without 

vehicles and at any time) over the Site 2 Access Route.

AND THE FIRST CLAIMANT CLAIMS

(1) An order that the First Defendants and each of them are forbidden from entering or 

remaining without consent upon the following land and/or from causing damage to or 

removing equipment therefrom:

(a) The freehold land comprising:
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(i) Land and buildings on the south side of Cherry Tree Land, Hemel 

Hempstead which is registered at the Land Registry under title number 

HD485114 and marked 1 on the Site 1 Plan: 

(ii) Land to the north of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is 

registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485115 and marked 2 

on the Site 1 Plan.

(iii) Land on the west side of Buncefield Lane, Hemel Hempstead, which is 

registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485116 and marked 3 

on the Site 1 Plan.

(iv) All that piece of land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick comprising 

4.96 acres or thereabouts as more particularly described by a conveyance 

dated 31 March 1967 and made between (1) Shell-Mex and B.P. Limited 

and (2) United Oil Kingdom Pipelines Limited and marked 1 on the Site 2 

Plan. 

(v) Land on the south-east side of Trinity Road, Kingsbury, Tamworth which is 

registered at the Land Registry under title number WK468465 and marked 

2 on the Site Plan. 

 

(b) The leasehold land comprising: 

(i) Land on the north side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead, as more 

particularly described by a Lease dated 23 September 2013 made 

between (1) Total UK Limited and (2) United Oil Kingdom Pipelines 

Limited which is registered at the Land Registry under title number 

HD529733 and marked 4 on the Site 1 Plan. 

(ii) The leasehold land comprising land at Kingsbury in the County of 

Warwick, as more particularly described in a Lease dated 3 November 

2012 made between (1) The Secretary of State for Defence and (2) 

United Oil Kingdom Pipelines Limited and marked 3 on the Site 2 Plan. 

(2) An order that the Second Defendants and each of them are forbidden from interfering 

with the First Claimant’s right to pass and re-pass (with or without vehicles at any time) 

over the private access road on the land adjoining Site 1, which is shown for illustrative 

purposes shaded blue on the Site 1 Plan. 
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(3) An order that the Second Defendants and each of them are forbidden from interfering 

with the First Claimant’s right to pass and re-pass (with or without vehicles at any time) 

over the private access road on the land adjoining Site 2, which is shown for illustrative 

purposes shaded blue on the Site 2 Plan. 

(4) Costs.

(5) Further and/or other relief.

AND THE SECOND CLAIMANT CLAIMS

(1) An order that the First Defendants and each of them are forbidden from entering or 

remaining upon that part of Site 1 comprising land on the north east and south west side 

of Three Cherry Trees Lane, Hemel Hempstead, registered at the Land Registry under 

title number HD485118 and marked 5 on the Site 1 Plan. 

(2) Costs. 

(3) Further and/or other relief. 

KATHARINE HOLLAND QC 

 YAASER VANDERMAN 

        

 

STATEMENT OF TRUTH 

The Claimant believes that the facts stated in these particulars of claim are true. The Claimant 
understands that proceedings for contempt of court may be brought against anyone who 
makes, or causes to be made, a false statement in a document verified by a statement of truth 
without an honest belief in its truth.

I am duly authorised by the Claimant to sign this statement. 
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Full name ................ 

Name of solicitor's firm ................ 

Position or office held ................................ 

Signed ................................ 

Claimant's solicitor 
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE  
 
BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 
 
CHANCERY DIVISION 
 
PROPERTY TRUSTS AND PROBATE LIST 

B E T W E E N 

UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

First Claimant / Applicant 

(2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Second Claimant / Applicant 

and 
 

(1)  PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF THE 
CLAIMANTS AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION 

CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND 
COMPRISING PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 

HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED  ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 
PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 

IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

First Defendant/Respondent 

 (2)  PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF THE CLAIMANTS AND IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST 

STOP OIL CAMPAIGN INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S RIGHTS TO PASS AND 
REPASS WITH OR WITHOUT VEHICLES, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT OVER PRIVATE ACCESS 

ROADS ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 
HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 

PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 
IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

Second Defendant/Respondent 

__________________________ 

CERTIFICATE OF URGENCY 

__________________________ 
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I estimate that this matter is likely to occupy the Court for 3 hours hearing time (45 minutes pre-
reading. 1.5 hours hearing time and 45 minutes judgment time). 

I certify that it is urgent for the following reasons: 

1. The Claimants in these proceedings are (1) United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited and 
(2) West London Pipeline and Storage Limited. 

2. The Claimants makes this application for interim relief to prevent the following unlawful 
activities at two operational sites: 

(a) unlawful trespass on the Claimants' private land; and 

(b) unlawful interference with the First Claimant's rights to pass and repass with or 
without vehicles., material and equipment over private access roads adjacent to 
the Claimants' private land.  

3. I certify that the application is urgent for the following reasons: 

(a) by reference to unlawful activity which has very recently taken place at the sites 
which are the subject matter of these proceedings - the Claimants consider that 
by reference to the unlawful activity which has already taken place and the 
threats of further unlawful activity, there is a significant risk that the sites will be 
subject to further unlawful activity;  

(b) the Claimants consider that the risk of an infringement of the Claimants' rights 
is both imminent and real absent intervention and protection via Court Order; 
and 

(c) by reference to the clear risk of serious injury or harm to the Claimants, the 
Claimants' property, the wider public and to the perpetrators of the unlawful 
activity themselves, posed by the unlawful activities which the injunction is 
aimed to prevent. 

4. In all the circumstances, it is respectfully submitted that the matter is fit to be heard on 
an urgent basis.  

 

Date: 7 April 2022  

Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies, Partner, Fieldfisher LLP 

Solicitor for the Claimants/Applicants
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N244 

Application notice  
For help in completing this form please read  

the notes for guidance form N244Notes. 

 
Find out how HM Courts and Tribunals 

Service uses personal information you give 

them 

when you fill in a form: 

https://www.gov.uk/ 

government/organisations/hm-courts-and- 

tribunals-service/about/personal-

information- charter 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1. What is your name or, if you are a legal representative, the name of your firm? 

 

2. Are you a ☐Claimant ☐Defendant ☒Legal Representative 

 

☐Other (please specify)   

 

If you are a legal representative whom do you represent? 
 

3. What order are you asking the court to make and why? 
 

Name of court 
High Court of Justice 
Business and Property Courts 
of England and Wales 
Chancery Division Property 
Trusts and Probate List 

Claim no. 
 

Fee account no. 
(if applicable) 

Help with Fees – Ref. no. 
(if applicable) 

 
 

H W F -    -    
 

Warrant no.  
(if applicable) 

 
 

Claimant’s name (including ref.) 
 
(1) United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited (Company Number: 

007466708) of 5-7 Alexandra Road, Hemel Hempstead, 

Hertfordshire, HP2 5BS; and  

 
(2) West London Pipeline and Storage Limited (Company 
Number: 01918796) of 5-7 Alexandra Road, Hemel Hempstead, 
Hertfordshire, HP2 5BS. 
 
REF: OTD/000162 

 

Defendant’s name (including ref.) 
 
Persons Unknown 

 

Date 7 April 2022 

The Claimants 

Fieldfisher LLP 

 

An order for an injunction to restrain trespass and unlawful interference on private land. 
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4. Have you attached a draft of the order you are applying 
for? 

☒Yes                     ☐No 

5. How do you want to have this application dealt with? ☒at a 
hearing

☐without a hearing 

☐at a telephone hearing 
 

6. How long do you think the hearing will 

last? Is this time estimate agreed by all 

parties?

   Hours 

☐Yes

        Minutes 

☐No

7. Give details of any fixed trial date or period 

 
8. What level of Judge does your hearing need? 

 
9. Who should be served with this application? 

 
9a.  Please give the service address, (other than details of 

the claimant or defendant) of any party named in 
question 9. 

 

 
 

N244 Application notice (01.21)    1     © Crown copyright 2021 

3  

 

High Court Judge 

No-one 

n/a 
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2  

10. What information will you be relying on, in support of your application? 

☒the attached witness statements 

☐the statement of case (i.e. a 

draft claim form) 

☐the evidence set out in the box below 

If necessary, please continue on a separate sheet. 
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Statement of Truth 

 
I understand that proceedings for contempt of court may be 

brought against anyone who makes, or causes to be made, a 

false statement in a document verified by a statement of truth 

without an honest belief in its truth. 
 

☐I believe that the facts stated in section 10 (and 

any continuation sheets) are true. 

☒The Applicant believes that the facts stated in section 10 

(and any continuation sheets) are true. I am authorised by the 

applicant to sign this statement. 

 
 

Signature 

 

☐Applicant 

☐Litigation friend (where applicant is a child or a Protected 

Party)  

☒Applicant’s legal representative (as defined by CPR 2.3(1)) 

 
Date 

Day Month Year 

 
Full name 

 

Name of applicant’s legal representative’s firm 

If signing on behalf of firm or company give position or office held 

 
 
 

 

DANIEL OWEN CHRISTOPHER TALFAN DAVIES 

FIELDFISHER LLP 

07 04
  

2022 

PARTNER 
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RIVERBANK HOUSE 

020 7861 4000 

Applicant’s address to which documents should be sent.  

Building and street 

 

Second line of address 

Town or city 

 

County (optional) 

Postcode 
 

 
E C 4 R 3 T T 

 
 

If applicable 

Phone number 

 

Fax number 

DX number 

 

Your Ref. 

 

Email 

 
 

 
 

LONDON 

 

OTD/UK01.000162.00301 

2 SWAN LANE 

 

020 7488 0084 
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Take notice that an appointment to fix a date for the  
Application has been made for 
 
DATE: 17 July 2023 AT: 11:00 AM 
 
This listing appointment will take place via email, 
however a listing officer will be available to conduct the 
listing appointment in person at:  
GROUND FLOOR, THE ROLLS BUILDING, 7 ROLLS 
BUILDINGS, LONDON, EC4A 1NL 
   
If not attending court for the listing appointment, please 
e-file a letter with your dates to avoid/or availability 
prior to the above appointment. Alternatively, you can 
send them via email to 
Chanceryjudgeslisting@justice.gov.uk.  
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Notice of hearing 
Application will be heard at 7 Rolls Buildings, 
London, EC4A 1NL 
Date: 3 day window 3/10/2023 
Time: TBC 
Court:TBC 
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UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED AND WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND 
STORAGE LIMITED 

V PERSONS UNKNOWN 

CLAIMANTS' SOLICITORS NOTE OF HEARING AND JUDGMENT OF PETER KNOX 
QC SITTING AS A DEPUTY JUDGE OF THE CHANCERY DIVISION 

DATED 8 APRIL 2022 

 

This note has not been produced, issued or approved by the High Court. This note has been 
produced on the direction of Peter Knox QC sitting as a Deputy Judge of the Chancery Division 
and constitutes the Claimants' solicitors' note of the hearing of an interim injunction application 
that was heard by the High Court on 8 April 2022. 

 

Katharine Holland QC and Yaaser Vanderman appeared for the Claimants.  

1. The Hearing 

1.1 The Judge confirmed that he had read the Claimants' Skeleton. He confirmed that he had read 
both witness statements of Mr Davis and Mr Armstrong. 

1.2 Leading Counsel for the Claimants confirmed that she had provided the Judge with the following 
documents in addition: 

(a)  The updated draft Order; 

(b)  A third witness statement of the instructing solicitors; and 

(c)  the Notices that are the missing Schedules in the draft Order  

1.3 Leading Counsel confirmed that notice of the Hearing was communicated to Extinction Rebellion 
and Just Stop Oil via email at 6.27am and 6.28am that day and details of the notice given were 
provided in the witness statement of the instructing solicitors. Leading Counsel confirmed that 
UKOP3 was the exhibit to the instructing solicitors' witness statement comprising the emails giving 
notice.  

1.4 The Judge's clerk confirmed that no Persons Unknown were waiting outside the Court. 

1.5 Leading Counsel proceeded to take the Judge through the title issues and confirmed that the 
interests in Site 1 were summarised at paragraph 2.3 of the Skeleton. It was confirmed that the 
First Claimant is the registered proprietor of three registered freehold titles, the registered proprietor 
of one leasehold title and also has a leasehold right of way over a private access route. The Second 
Claimant is the registered proprietor of a further freehold title. Details are set out in paragraphs 24 
to 28 of the Witness Statement of Peter Malcolm Davis dated 7 April 2022 at Section B, page 31 
of the bundle.   
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1.6 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the official copies of the title registers of those interests at 
Section B, page 6, Section B, page 11,Section B, page 16 and Section B, page 20 of the bundle 
and confirmed that details in relation to the right of way were at page 26 and page 42 of the bundle. 
The Second Claimant's freehold title is at page 116, which is another parcel of land in Site 1. 
Leading Counsel confirmed that this is set out at paragraph 24 of Mr Davis' Witness Statement. 

1.7 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to page 6 of the new draft Order, where Site 1 is shaded red. 
It was confirmed in response to the Judge's query that this plan is of the entirety of the Buncefield 
interest and within the site, the various plots within the Claimants' ownership are numbered.  

1.8 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that the main entrance to Site 1 is off 
Green Lane and that this is where activity had taken place. 

1.9 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that there had been a number of 
arrests made that day at Kingsbury but that she did not have an update in relation to Buncefield, 
however, Mr Armstrong's statement was up to date as of the previous night.  

1.10 Leading Counsel confirmed that the main entrance was at Green Lane and the entrance at the 
other side was closed off. Leading Counsel confirmed that the Claimant are only seeking injunctive 
relief in relation to the enclosed plot of land and not relief for anything related to the public highways. 

1.11 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that Oil Road was a private road 
within the freehold interest of the First Claimant and that is why it is shaded in red. The Judge was 
referred to paragraphs 24 - 28 of Mr Davis' statement (Section A, page 31 of the Bundle), for a 
description of the site access road and it was confirmed that the Site 1 Access Route, as defined, 
was coloured blue on the Site 1 Plan. 

1.12 The Judge queried the relevance of the Site 1 Access Route and Leading Counsel submitted that 
what was of concern was that the apprehended risks in relation to other areas of the plan apply 
equally to areas including the site access. 

1.13 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that so far there had been no 
problems in relation to the land coloured blue on the Site 1 Plan but that protection was sought to 
avoid access to the public highway being blocked.  Leading Counsel referred the Judge in response 
to the Judge's query to the access to the M1 on the Site 1 Plan and confirmed the route taken by 
tankers from the site.  

1.14 In relation to the Kingsbury site (site 2), Leading Counsel confirmed a correction to the Skeleton, 
on the third line of paragraph 2.6 at page 3. The reference should simply be to the proprietor of the 
leasehold title awaiting registration. 

1.15 Leading Counsel confirmed that the conveyance for the unregistered Warwickshire title, which is 
referenced at the beginning of paragraph 2.6 of the Skeleton can be found in Section B, page 129 
of the bundle. The Judge was referred to Section B, page 135 of the bundle for the office copy 
entry for the registered freehold title owned by the First Claimant and to Section B, page 146 for 
the lease that is awaiting registration at the Land Registry. The leasehold right of way can be found 
in paragraph 2 of Section B, page 154 of the bundle. 

1.16 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that at the time of grant of this 
leasehold interest it would be known that the land was intended for this use.  

1.17 The Judge was referred to the private access route on the Site 2 Plan shaded blue. The Judge 
was also referred to Section A, page 30 of the bundle which provides a description of the site and 
to Section A, page 32 on paragraph 33 which describes the access route.  
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1.18 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that Section A, page 34, paragraph 
47 of Mr Davis' Witness Statement confirms that the main access to site 2 is via Piccadilly Way 
which then leads on to the private access road serving the main site and terminal facilities in the 
north of site. 

1.19 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that the parcel of land numbered 3 is 
described at Section A, page 33 at paragraph 46 of Mr Davis' Witness Statement. 

1.20 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that the activity complained of taking 
place at Kingsbury was within the oil terminals themselves and within the public highways, there 
had been no actual trespassers within the boundaries of the site.  

1.21 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to Section A, page 30, at paragraph 20 for a description of the 
site and confirmed that the land numbered 2 was fire ponds to deal with the risk of fires and site 3 
comprised a water lagoon and a fire pond.  

1.22 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that the activity of the campaigners 
had occurred in the terminal areas; trespassing on adjacent sites and activity at public highways 
even though entry to Site 2 had not been obtained. It was confirmed in response to the Judge's 
query that the concern was that the individuals in question would move away from the current areas 
and to the central control area marked 1 on Site 2.  

1.23 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the evidence in relation to Kingsbury Site 2 as referred to 
in Mr Armstrong's Witness Statement where events are set out. Mr Armstrong describes the issues 
relating to the Kingsbury site at paragraphs 21 - 42 of his statement. In those paragraphs he sets 
out where the risks arise in relation to those areas. Furthermore, details of direct action are from 
page 44 onwards. 

1.24 Leading Counsel confirmed that individuals had been blocking the main entrance and confirmed in 
response to the Judge's query as to where the main entrance was, that this was where Piccadilly 
Way meets Trinity Road and referred the Judge to photographs at Section B, pages 257 - 272. 
Page 257 was referenced in order to show the entrance where activity had taken place. Leading 
Counsel confirmed that the photograph in Section B, page 262 is described as being "near 
Kingsbury Oil Terminal" which applies to the land which the Claimants have an interest in. 

1.25 The Judge stated that his impression was that the reference to Kingsbury Oil Terminal was being 
used not to refer to the Claimants' plots of land, but the place where the tankers are.  

1.26 Leading Counsel submitted that the individuals were near the vicinity of the Claimants' land and 
that the activities of the campaigners relates to the site as a whole including the Claimants' interest. 
The Judge was referred to Section B, page 286 for a photograph of the activities at the site. Leading 
Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that most of the photographs were from 
newspaper articles, the one at 286 being from the Mail Online (from page 279 onwards). 

1.27 The Judge referred to many of the photographs having copyright Extinction Rebellion and Just 
Stop Oil on them suggesting that they had been taken by individuals of those groups and then 
provided to the press for the benefit of their campaigns. 

1.28 The Judge was referred to page 279 of the bundle and to the headline of that article which refers 
to "critical oil facilities at Kingsbury terminal" and Leading Counsel submitted that this was the sort 
of evidence that proves that there is general disruption to the facility and not in one specific area 
in relation to tankers. Leading Counsel also submitted that this evidence also suggests the actions 
of the campaigners relate to all facilities in relation to oil sites.  
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1.29 The Judge stated that what appeared to be happening is that the campaigners were not 
trespassing at any relevant land but instead were causing a nuisance to the oil terminal as opposed 
to causing a nuisance at the particular plots of land owned by the Claimants.  

1.30 Leading Counsel indicated that this was a site with different titles but submitted that the whole site 
was at risk due to the activities. Leading Counsel also submitted that the Claimants' facilities were 
fundamental to the pipeline and just as much at risk as the campaigners were not distinguishing 
between areas, meaning that the whole site was at risk.  

1.31 The Judge indicated that this may be a matter of how the order is phrased and what the defendants 
are prevented from doing. He requested the evidence that showed that by causing trouble and 
being a nuisance to the main depot, the campaigners were jeopardising or potentially jeopardising 
the operations carried out by the Claimants at their sites.  

1.32 Leading Counsel submitted that there was a conglomeration of evidence of the campaigns causing 
disruption to the oil industry and that whilst blocking tankers may not affect the operations of 
terminal, the campaigners are not just trying to stop tankers, they are also presenting risks to 
infrastructure. Leading Counsel submitted it would be useful to look at the totality of the activities 
to show the kind of activity that presents a risk to all sites. 

1.33 The Judge stated that there was evidence of trespass in relation to Buncefield Site 1 but he wished 
to be told about how the how the activities carried out by Extinction Rebellion at Kingsbury Site 2 
were causing or likely to cause risks at the particular sites which the Claimants control. 

1.34 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the following evidence of disruption: 

(a) Last Friday there was the prevention of oil tankers from leaving the site at Kingsbury; 

(b) by 3 April 2022, there were 54 arrests; 

(c) Section A, page 44 at paragraph 45 set out these events in detail including: "on 5 April 
2022, 20 activists from Just Stop Oil again blocked the entrance to the terminal by sitting 
in the road with banners at the gate which they said was causing tankers to be turned 
away. The group claimed that five people had been arrested, whilst those remaining were 
either glued to the road or locked on  and a roadblock was also established on a tanker 
route to and from the terminal near Junction 9 on the M42.Warwickshire Police said that 
a total of eight activists had been arrested, bringing the total across the 10 sites affected 
to 283 pages 279-288 of UKOP2 in the bundle; and 

(d) on 7 April 2022, Just Stop Oil tweeted that from 00:40am on 7 April 2022 there were 
supporters of Just Stop Oil blocking the entrance to Site 2. They also claimed that they 
had protestors inside the Kingsbury oil terminal (but which does not comprise part of Site 
2), and that they 'seem to have free rein of this place' pages 289-291 of UKOP2 in the 
bundle." 

1.35 The Judge queried how the Claimants' sites were affected by the actions when the Claimants were 
not the owner of the oil tankers / depot.  

1.36 Leading Counsel submitted that photographs in the evidence show that the campaigners do not 
distinguish between the different titles within the site  the campaigners are not just interested in 
terminals, they are interested in gaining access to all sorts of oil-related infrastructure. Leading 
Counsel submitted that the Claimants may bring a cause of action for quia timet relief which means 
that the Claimants would be entitled to injunctive relief based purely on a threat from campaigns in 
the absence of activity.  
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1.37 The Judge stated that this may assist because he did not see how stopping oil tankers from leaving 
the depot would cause nuisance to the Claimants' land.  

1.38 Leading Counsel submitted that the evidence in relation to the site shows that it is not about purely 
disrupting oil tankers. The campaigners are willing to go further. Their movement is about stopping 
oil facilities at targeted sites beyond the oil terminal. Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the 
following references showing disruption around the site generally: in Section B, page 280, this 
article reports on how the campaigners bolt tunnels "at the Navigator Oil terminal" in Essex; Section 
B, page 281 shows campaigners at another location at Kingsbury Oil Terminal; Section B, page 
286, shows another photo in the vicinity of the site including the Claimants' properties; and Section 
B, page 289, shows individuals within the actual facilities on 7 April 2022. 

1.39 Leading Counsel submitted that the evidence shows that in addition to blocking tankers, the 
campaigners are gaining access into the actual facilities. So their activities do risk disrupting the 
activities of the Claimants. The Judge was referred to the tweet of Just Stop Oil in which they state 
"we seem to have free reign of the place." In response to the Judge's query, Leading Counsel 
confirmed that the Navigator terminal was a completely different site and the claim was essentially 
that whilst the campaigners may have gone for tankers so far, that doesn't mean that they will stop 
at that.  

1.40 The Judge requested examples demonstrating that the activities of those involved in direct action 
are declaring an intention to cause nuisance. Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the extracts 
in Section A of the bundle at page 44, paragraph 46. The Judge noted the proximity of the date 
and that there was a blockade that day in Tower Bridge. 

1.41 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to two specific references at Section A, page 45 of the bundle 
which sets out how the spokesperson for Extinction Rebellion claimed that Extinction Rebellion 
had "held three locations three locations of strategic importance to the UK's energy network" and 
submitted that this was demonstrative of it not just being about blocking tankers. Another example 
on the same page relates to how ExxonMobil had to shut down operations at Hythe, Birmingham, 
Purfleet and West London terminals due to direct action. 

1.42 Leading Counsel confirmed that the incidents had occurred last Friday and that there was a 
reference to shutting down operations. The Judge was then referred to page 46 "on 4 April 2022, 
it was reported that activists were planning weeks of disruption across Britain, including using a 
network of secret tunnels at the Navigator Oil Terminal in Thurrock and Grays oil terminals in Essex 
to frustrate the operations of key oil facilities" being a reference to disruption generally by creating 
secret tunnels to cause disruption in key oil facilities. 

1.43 Leading Counsel confirmed in response to the Judge's query that inferences could be drawn that 
as this is all effectively a campaign by Extinction Rebellion to cause maximum disruption in the 
very near future by whatever means they think are justified they could therefore cause disruption 
to the Claimants' sites because they are planning big and not limiting their activity to oil tankers.   

1.44 Leading Counsel directed the Judge to Section A, page 42 at paragraph 43, to demonstrate the 
breadth of the activities and to Section B, page 195 where there is a reference to Just Stop Oil's 
Frequently Asked Questions as posted on their website and in which they specifically indicate, 
under the heading of "What are you going to do?", to their intention "to take part in Non-Violent 

il and gas infrastructure should the Government fail to meet our 
demand by 14 March 2022." Leading Counsel submitted that the key emphasis is that they are 
willing and intending to go after oil infrastructure which would extend to the activities of the 
Claimants. 

1.45 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to Mr Davis' Witness Statement, in Section A, page 33 of the 
bundle which, at paragraph 5, sets out the significance of Site 2 in that it "houses the central control 
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centre which operates the UKOP Stanlow to Kingsbury Pipeline, the UKOP Kingsbury to Buncefield 
Pipeline, the UKOP Thames to Kingsbury Pipeline and the WLPSL storage site and WLPSL 
pipelines for Heathrow and Gatwick Airports providing all control and safety monitoring functions".  
Leading Counsel submitted that when considering this matter, the Court may be mindful of 
considering the risk to the Claimants' properties with reference to the gravity of the consequences 
if disruption were to occur. 

1.46 The Judge queried whether there were pipelines at Site 2 in relation to which Leading Counsel 
confirmed that there were pipelines feeding the terminal and Section A, page 41, paragraph 35, of 
the bundle answers this question directly.  

1.47 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to Section B, page 313 where there is a reference to the police 
warning people to avoid the areas where there is activity generally which would include the 
Claimants' properties. 

1.48 The Judge indicated that there is a difference between stopping tankers and getting through and 
disrupting infrastructure in response to which he was referred by Leading Counsel to the top of 
Section B, page 334, where there is a reference to the campaigners forcing the shut down of 
ExxonMobil's oil operations. Leading Counsel submitted that the activity is not just about blocking 
tankers.  

1.49 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the evidence in relation to the tunnelling in Section B, pages 
370  373 of the bundle. The Judge stated that this evidence all goes to the urgency point and that 
it indicated that there was a particular time that this activity will take place which is this week and 
this evidence is quite material for the Claimants. 

1.50 The Judge indicated that he did not need to be addressed in relation to the law because he had 
read Leading Counsel's skeleton argument. Leading Counsel indicated that she wanted to cover 
the test which needed to be satisfied in section 12 of the Human Rights Act which the Judge 
confirmed would be helpful to go through. Leading Counsel indicated half an hour would be needed 
and the stages of the test had been addressed in the Skeleton.  

1.51 The Judge stated that he wanted to address an issue in relation to the Defendants identified in the 
draft Order. He indicated that the Order seemed odd in that you have a first and a second defendant 
who is persons unknown but the purpose of the injunction is to affect anybody who finds out about 
the injunction and thus becomes liable not to breach it. The Judge queried whether this was 
standard wording in this type of action.  

1.52 Leading Counsel submitted that she and Junior Counsel practiced in this area so had seen how 
this issue had evolved. She confirmed that there had been orders made in the last few days, 
particularly, 2 days ago in which Leading and Junior Counsel appeared in front of Mrs Justice 
Ellenbogen in the Queens Bench division and the Defendants were framed/labelled in the same 
way. Leading Counsel confirmed that there is no standard precedent but that is the sort of 
terminology that has started to be acceptable as derived from the case law. 

1.53 In relation to the cross undertaking in damages, the Judge queried why he should assume that the 
Claimants are in a position to pay. Leading Counsel referred the Judge to Section A, page 57 of 
the bundle (the Witness Statement of Mr Armstrong) where the issue of the cross undertaking is 
discussed. 

1.54 The Judge queried whether there were any accounts or evidence to demonstrate that the 
Claimants could meet the undertaking. Leading Counsel referred the Judge to Section A, page 29, 
paragraphs 12-13 of the bundle where the Claimants are described and confirmed there are no 
charges on any of the property titles held by the Claimants and the evidence was before the Court 
of the particular importance of the infrastructure which the Claimants hold.  
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1.55 Leading Counsel confirmed that in respect of section 12 of the Human Rights Act in relation to 
whether to grant injunctive relief, the Claimants seek to rely on both grounds; namely that: 

(a) the applicant has taken all practicable steps to notify the respondent; and 

(b) that there are compelling reasons why the respondent should not be notified 

1.56 Leading Counsel submitted that the Claimants had taken all practicable steps as demonstrated by 
the emails exhibited to the instructing solicitors' witness statement. The Judge queried whether the 
emails were as far as notice goes and Leading Counsel confirmed this was the case and submitted 
that this was all practicable steps because it wasn't known who these people were. 

1.57 The Judge queried why the emails were not sent the previous day or why notification wasn't given 
of the intention to apply for an injunction before everything was ready. Leading Counsel submitted 
that the Claimants wanted to get everything ready and finalised before giving notice and that page 
2 of UKOP3 confirmed exactly what was said by way of notice.  

1.58 The Judge queried again why notice was not given the previous day or confirmation given of the 
intention to go to Court. Leading Counsel submitted that the Claimants did not know until later in 
the day what time the hearing would be and the test the law sets out says "practicable". What was 
practicable in this instance was for the Claimants to notify the Respondents when they were ready 
and when the details of the injunction application were known, so that is practicable. That test did 
not require the Claimants to take all practical steps. 

1.59 The Judge queried why the Respondents should not be notified and Leading Counsel submitted 
that there was a fear that if it was known that the Claimants were going to Court, that the disruption 
would be escalated and cause even more risk to the sites. The Judge confirmed that the Claimants' 
submission was that the compelling reason not to notify until closer to the date and time of hearing 
was to avoid a flood of protestors who might have escalated direct action.  

1.60 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to tab 6, page 48 of the bundle, paragraphs 63 - 67 and asked 
the Judge to read the same. 

1.61 The Judge queried whether the steps identified at paragraph 64(c) had been carried out and 
Leading Counsel confirmed that this was the case.  

1.62 The Judge queried whether the Claimants would take the point that this injunction does not affect 
freedom of expression as the respondents could do what they want as long as it does not impact 
the Claimants' private land. 

1.63 Leading Counsel submitted that section 12(2) of the Human Rights Act  (a) and (b) are 
alternatives. The Claimants only need to satisfy one but on their submissions satisfy both.  

1.64 Leading Counsel confirmed that the section 12(3) point is that the Court is being asked to find that 
the Claimants are likely to succeed at trial and that is why it has been put in that way at paragraph 
11.2 of the Skeleton. She submitted that assuming section 12(3) arises at a final trial, the Court is 
being asked to find that quia timet relief is likely to be granted. 

1.65 The Judge queried whether section 12(3) is the position generally to which Leading Counsel 
confirmed that it was and that there were some references to it in cases in the bundle of authorities. 

1.66 The Judge made a number of comments in relation to the draft Order. He stated that the reference 
to Defendant should be plural and queried whether the Order contained interpretation wording as 
to the meaning of defendant in relation to which he was referred by Leading Counsel to paragraph 
11 of the draft Order.  
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1.67 Leading Counsel confirmed that the names of Leading Counsel and Junior Counsel would need to 
be inserted into the recitals. 

1.68 The Judge stated that in a persons unknown case, you would expect a clause that would say 
people who know about this Order will be liable to comply and that if a member of Extinction 
Rebellion committed trespass and did not know of the Order, they could not be in breach. Leading 
Counsel submitted that that individual would know about the Order because there is a deemed 
method of service. 

1.69 It was agreed that the third witness statement (of the instructing solicitors) needed to be added to 
schedule 1.  

1.70 The Judge was invited to choose a return date after the Easter vacation which ends on 26 April 
2022. The Judge stated that this was a long time away and it was agreed that the issue of the date 
would be returned to.  

1.71 The Judge stated that the "court documents" referred to in the Order should include a transcript, 
or at least a note of the hearing. 

1.72 It was agreed that the recitals should refer to the Claimants acknowledging that they do not intend 
to prohibit lawful protest as opposed to confirming.  

1.73 The Judge stated that the references to sites 1 and 2 in the draft Order were confusing and should 
instead refer to Buncefield Site 1 and Kingsbury Site 2. In relation to the first injunction the Judge 
stated that and / or should be removed and the alternatives provided for. In relation to the second 
injunction the Judge stated that the Order should refer to obstructing or interfering. It was agreed 
that these amendments would need to be replicated for both sites.  

1.74 The Judge stated that the variation provision should be amended to provide for 12 hours and 6 
hours respectively instead of 24 and 12 hours.  

1.75 It was agreed that the time estimate for the return date should be 3 hours and that further evidence 
should be filed 3 working days before the hearing by 4.30pm? 

1.76 Leading Counsel confirmed the intended service provisions and confirmed that the court 
documents and hearing court bundle would be affixed at two locations around the perimeter of 
each site. It was agreed that the locations should be prominent.  

1.77 Leading Counsel confirmed that the web link reference would be inserted into the draft Order where 
indicated and that there was a notice for each site behind schedules 6 and 7 which were included 
in the new draft Order provided to the Judge. Leading Counsel confirmed that the claim number 
and the date would need to be inserted into the notice.  

1.78 The Judge stated that the notices would need to be altered given the amendments made to the 
terms of the Order and Leading Counsel confirmed that the amendments would need to be followed 
through.  

1.79 The Judge queried whether the red and blue shading in the plans had been identified and explained 
which Leading Counsel confirmed was the case.  

1.80 Leading Counsel confirmed that the site notices could be affixed at the sites in A3 size straight 
away and in about 2 weeks' time could be affixed in size 1 x 1.5 m.  
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1.81 In response to the Judge's query as to whether a bigger size notice could be affixed straight away 
it was agreed that the notices could be increased to A2 size and wording would be added to the 
draft Order to provide for this increase in size. 

1.82 In relation to the return date the Judge indicated that he would like it to be around 27 April time and 
Leading Counsel confirmed that she and Junior Counsel were unavailable on that date. It was 
agreed that there would be short adjournment until 3.15pm during which time enquiries as to the 
date could be made and following which the Judge would give a short judgment.  

1.83 Leading Counsel confirmed that the Claimants would be requesting a transcript of the hearing and 
that a revised Order would be sent to the Judge as soon as possible following judgment.  

[Court adjourned until 3.15pm] 

[Hearing recommenced at 3.15pm] 

2. Judgment of Peter Knox QC sitting as a Judge of the Chancery Division 

This is my judgment. An ex parte application was brought by the Claimants for an interim injunction to 
restrain the Defendants from entering premises and interfering with private access routes. Notice to the 
Respondents was given this morning. The notice was given by email. 

The Respondents, Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil, are the principal campaign groups that directly 
targeted the sites in question from 01 April, it is anticipated that there will be further action. 

Extinction Rebellion is often referred to in the national press and is a well-known movement.  

Just Stop Oil is a youth protest group who engage in non-violent civil disobedience through strikes boycotts, 
mass protests and disruption. 

The first Claimant United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited owns the oil pipeline administered by the British 
Pipeline Agency. The pipeline transports 6 billion litres of oil a year and consists of two pipelines. 

The second Claimant, West London Pipeline and Storage Limited, is a related company that stores fuel and 
transports it to Heathrow, Gatwick and Luton Airports. 

There are 2 properties that are the subject of this application. 

The first property is land near Cherry Tree Lane in Hemel Hempstead. This is known as the Buncefield 
Terminal. The First Claimant owns freehold land and a long-term leasehold interest that has right of way 
over an access way. The Second Claimant owns a freehold interest. 

According to the evidence, the Buncefield Terminal has the largest storage capacity in the UK. It receives 
product from the pipeline operation and it provides loading facilities. It enables storage and batching of 
aviation fuel for transmission to Gatwick/ Heathrow airports. According to the evidence, this terminal is of 
key strategic importance to the UK itself and the Heathrow, Gatwick, Luton airports depend on it to maintain 
operations. The Buncefield site consists of offices, pipeline reception facilities etc. The main entrance is 
gated but the gates need to be open permanently. This entrance leads out via the access way and public 
road to the M1. There are other accesses but these are permanently closed.   

The Kingsbury Oil Terminal, is the second site in question and it consists of a series of plots. The oil depot 
which is not owned by the Claimants, serves as a supplier to multiple airports. The east plots are owned by 
UKOP and they consist primarily of a central control centre which operates certain pipelines. 
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The application has been prompted by the following events which, on the basis of evidence before me, were 
posted by the Defendants' campaigners. 

These activities are dealt with in John Armstrong's Witness Statement made yesterday and I can summarise 
what he says in paragraph 44 of that statement. The Buncefield site was one of 10 facilities targeted by 
individuals carrying out direct action. They forced the closure of Green Lane which is one of the entrances 
to the site. On 03 April Buncefield Terminal was targeted, Just Stop Oil protestors caused damage to the 
perimeter fences which form part of the site. On 3 April 2022 according to a police report, individuals blocked 
access to the site. This is an ongoing campaign, and direct action is only going to ramp up. 

On 4 April 2022, it was reported that 41 arrests were made. According to police, protestors put themselves, 
site workers and emergency service workers in danger. 

As for the Kingsbury site, this too is subject to direct action. On 1 April, campaigners were preventing oil 
tankers from accessing the oil terminal. I state here that this is not entirely accurate because it talks about 
action taken at the oil depot itself not outside the land owned by the Claimants. It is action taken against 
owners of another piece of land which is nearby to the Claimants' land. 

On 5 April, 20 activists again blocked the entrance to the terminal depot that is not owned by the Claimants. 
It seems that a total of 8 campaigners were arrested. 

On 7 April, supporters of Just Stop Oil were inside Kingsbury Oil Terminal. 

Mr Armstrong goes on to set out a number of instances which occurred at other terminals over the last 7 
days. Members of the group blocked 10 oil terminals. It was reported that Andy Smith stated that they "held" 
3 locations of strategic importance. A particular point is that ExxonMobil had to shut down terminals due to 
indirect action. 

On 4 April, it was reported that activists were planning disruption using tunnels to frustrate activities of key 
and essential oil infrastructure. On 5 April, the Times newspaper reported that supporters had dug a secret 
network of tunnels. According to a further website entry from Extinction Rebellion, individuals were 
encouraging people to book time off work to continue civil disobedience. The stated intention was to grind 
the capital to a halt and cause maximum disruption. 

The Claimants, in light of all this evidence, say that they need urgent injunctions to restrain continuation of 
these activities, which they say could lead campaigners to trespass and cause a nuisance by obstructing 
access to and from the site. The first question is whether there is a serious issue to be tried and are the 
Claimants entitled to an injunction.  

I find, on the evidence before me, that there is a serious issue to be tried. First, as far as both plots of land 
are concerned, the evidence showed that the Claimants are the owners of the land. Second, in relation to 
Buncefield, there is a clear risk that the Defendants will continue their activities and thus interfere with the 
First Claimant's rights of access to and from the premises, thereby causing a nuisance. That is what 
campaigners were doing in the last week. 

I am also satisfied that it goes further than that, in that they will not only seek to restrict access or walk onto 
the land, but they will seek to take control of the land and its facilities. I also draw inference from that fact 
that both groups clearly advocate civil disobedience. 

One point that troubled me in particular was whether there was evidence that they intended to do anything 
other than making it difficult for tankers to access the sites. The point being that, the Kingsbury site depot is 
not owned by either Claimant so there is no real risk that the activities will interfere with the central control 
centre. However, I was taken to the following evidence and summarise why I am satisfied that there is a 
prima facie serious risk that both campaign groups will extend their activities to seeking to disrupt control 
activities: 
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 First publication dated 6 April 2022 published by Extinction Rebellion. Join us and act now. Section 
B, page 196 sa

that Extinction Rebellion will keep going with non-violent Direct Action. 

 Second extract is from the BBC website. It includes a report which notes that Just Stop Oil claim 
to be willing to use non-violent civil resistance to make their point in public spaces. This leads me 
to infer that the activities are not limited to blocking access. 

 Report from Daily Mail  5 April. This notes that an activist from Just Stop Oil  blocked off access. 
20 protesters were involved, and 5 arrests were made. 20 protestors sat on road with banners. It 
also claimed supporters of the group had dug up a secret network of tunnels. 

 Tweet dated 7 April 2022  on 7 day of action, 
supporters of Just Stop Oil blocking access. Part of wider measures taken with aim of disrupting 
UK oil  

 Tweet from Just Stop Oil following entry into Kingsbury Oil Terminal saying "we seem to have free 
Photographs show number of campaigners in premises themselves. 

I am prepared to draw the inference that the campaigners are not simply limiting their activities to making it 
difficult for oil tankers to enter the oil depot and will extend to any activity likely to disrupt the oil industry in 
the UK which will include disrupting facilities the Claimants own at Kingsbury and Buncefield. 

On the current evidence, the campaign and the protests can be carried out without having to commit acts 
of trespass/ nuisance. 

There is a good argument that the Claimants will be able to obtain a final injunction which will not interfere 
with the Defendants' rights. I emphasise that this is a mere first impression of what appears to be a good 
arguable case without hearing evidence from the other side. 

The second question is whether the matter is urgent. It is in my judgment. The action appears to have started 
and there is a particular campaign that is intending to take place from 9 April to 17 April and thereafter 
weekends.  

The third question is what is the balance of convenience? Does it favour an injunction being granted? I find 
that the balance does favour an injunction because there is a clear risk of causing disruption to the 
Claimants' businesses. I accept that as matters stand damages would not be an adequate remedy.  

Is there a satisfactory cross-undertaking in damages? I initially raised concern as there were no accounts 
from the Claimants. I am now satisfied that there is a satisfactory cross-undertaking as they both own 
substantial plots of land and according the Land Registry, there are no mortgages or charges, so they are 
good for the money if order for damages is made against them 

Is there a proper case for the relief sought? The answer is yes, I agree with submissions of paragraph 11.8 
in the Skeleton, acts of trespass have already occurred and there is risk of further torts being committed in 
the future. 

The sixth question is whether the requirements of section 12(2) of the Human Rights Act are satisfied. I am 
satisfied in the present case that there were compelling reasons for why the Defendants were not notified 
until this morning. That is set out in Mr Armstrong's evidence in paragraph 66. 

There was a real risk that giving notice would prompt an escalation in the direct action and put the properties 
in question at risk. I am therefore satisfied that there were compelling reasons for only providing the short 
notice given. 
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I also have to consider section 12(3). I am satisfied that if one could call the trespassing a publication, that 
it is likely that the Claimants would establish that those activities should not be allowed to continue because 
the Defendants can enjoy rights and freedom of expression without having to go as far as committing acts 
of trespass. 

I should also add in relation to the question on pre-emptive relief. I am satisfied that it is not possible to 
name individual defendants and notice ought to be given by affixing large notices around the perimeters of 
the sites. I am satisfied that service can be effected in the way proposed by the Claimants which suggests 
that notice can be effected by putting the court documents in prominent places at the particular sites. 

I am therefore prepared at this early stage to grant the injunction in the terms previously discussed with Ms 
Holland QC 
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No. PT-2022-000303 
 
BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 
 
CHANCERY DIVISION 
 
PROPERTY TRUSTS AND PROBATE LIST 
 

Mr Peter Knox QC, sitting as a Deputy Judge 

Friday 08 April 2022 

B E T W E E N 

 

(1)  UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

(2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED  

    Claimants / Applicants  

and 

 

(1) PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR 

THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING 
PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 

HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED  ON THE ATTACHED 
SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE 
(SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

First Defendants/Respondents 

(2)  PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED 
TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, 

OBSTRUCTING OR INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S ACCESS OVER PRIVATE 
ACCESS ROADS ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 
HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 

PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 
IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

Second Defendants/Respondents 

___________________________________________________ 

ORDER AGAINST THE FIRST AND SECOND DEFENDANTS  

 

___________________________________________________ 
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PENAL NOTICE 

IF YOU, THE DEFENDANTS, DISOBEY THIS ORDER YOU MAY BE HELD TO BE IN CONTEMPT OF 

COURT AND MAY BE IMPRISONED, FINED OR HAVE YOUR ASSETS SEIZED. 

ANY OTHER PERSON WHO KNOWS OF THIS ORDER AND DOES ANYTHING WHICH HELPS OR 

PERMITS THE DEFENDANTS OR ANY OF THEM TO BREACH THE TERMS OF THIS ORDER MAY 

ALSO BE HELD TO BE IN CONTEMPT OF COURT AND MAY BE IMPRISONED, FINED OR HAVE 

THEIR ASSETS SEIZED. 

 

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO THE DEFENDANTS 

This Order prohibits you from doing certain acts. You should read this Order very carefully. You are advised 

to consult a solicitor as soon as possible. 

If you disobey this Order you may be found guilty of contempt of court and you may be sent to prison or 

your assets seized.  

You have the right to apply to the court to vary or discharge this order (which is explained below). 

 

RECITALS 

UPON n dated 7 April 2022 

UPON hearing Katharine Holland QC Leading Counsel and Yaaser Vanderman Junior Counsel for the 
Claimants  

AND UPON READING the Claimants' written evidence listed in Schedule 1  

AND UPON the Claimants giving and the Court accepting the undertakings listed in Schedule 3 

AND UPON the Claimants acknowledging that they do not intend to prohibit any lawful protest outside any 
of the sites referred to in this Order and that this Order is not intended to prohibit such lawful protest 

 

IT IS ORDERED THAT: 

 

THE INJUNCTIONS 

1. Until trial or further order:  

(a) BUNCEFIELD (SITE 1) 

2. The First Defendants and each of them are forbidden from (a) entering or remaining upon the land 
or buildings described in and defined as "Buncefield (Site 1)" in Schedule 2 to this Order and 
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which are shown for illustration purposes shaded red on the plan annexed to Schedule 4 of the 
Order the Site 1 Plan , or (b) from causing damage to Buncefield (Site 1) or (c) removing 
equipment from Buncefield (Site 1), without the consent of the Claimants. 

3. The Second Defendants and each of them are forbidden from obstructing or otherwise interfering 
with the private access road on the land adjoining Buncefield Site 
1 (the "Site 1 Access Route"), which is shown for illustration purposes shaded blue on the Site 1 
Plan, for access and egress between Buncefield (Site 1) and the public highway.

(b) KINGSBURY (SITE 2)

4. The First Defendants and each of them are forbidden from (a) entering or remaining upon the land 
or buildings described in and defined as "Kingsbury (Site 2)" in Schedule 2 to this Order and which 
are shown for illustration purposes shaded red on the plan annexed to Schedule 5 of the Order

Site 2 Plan or (b) from causing damage to Kingsbury (Site 2) or (c) removing equipment 
from Kingsbury (Site 2), without the consent of the First Claimant. 

5. The Second Defendants and each of them are forbidden from obstructing or otherwise interfering 
with the the private access road on the land adjoining Site 2 (the "Site 
2 Access Route"), which is shown for illustration purposes shaded blue on the Site 2 Plan, for 
access and egress between Kingsbury (Site 2) and the public highway.

VARIATION OF THIS ORDER

6. Anyone served or notified of this Order may apply to the Court at any time to vary or discharge this 
Order or so much of it as affects that person but they must first give the Claimants' solicitors 12 

of such application. If any evidence is to be relied upon in support of the application 
the substance of it must be communicated in writing to the Claimants' solicitors at least 6 hours in 
advance of any hearing.

7. Any person applying to vary or discharge this Order must provide their full name and address, an 
address for service and must also apply to be joined as a named defendant to the proceedings at 
the same time.

8. The Claimants have liberty to apply to extend or vary this Order or to seek further directions.

RETURN DATE

9. The return date hearing will be fixed for 20 April 2022 the Return Date
3 hours, the matter to be reserved to Mr Peter Knox QC sitting as a Deputy Judge (without prejudice 
to any application by any Defendant that another judge hear the matter).

10. Permission for the Claimants to file and serve any further evidence by 4.30 pm on Thursday 14 
April 2022.

11. Permission for the Defendants to file and serve evidence by 4.30 pm on Tuesday 19 April 2022. 

3103326273 v1
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INTERPRETATION OF THIS ORDER

12. A Defendant who is ordered not to do something must not do it him/herself/themselves or in any 
other way. He/she/they must not do it through another acting on his/her/their behalf or on 
his/her/their instructions or with his/her/their encouragement.

SERVICE OF THIS ORDER

13. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), service of this Order, and the documents 
comprising the Claim Form, the Particulars of Claim, the Response Pack, the Application Notice 
dated 7 April 2022, the First Witness Statement of John Armstrong dated 7 April 2022, the First 
Witness Statement of Peter Davis dated 7 April 2022, the First Witness Statement of Daniel Owen 
Christopher Talfan Davies dated 8 April 2022, an Application Notice in respect of the Return Date 

the Court Documents
shall be effected as follows:

(a) Fixing copies thereof in clear transparent sealed containers at a minimum number of 2 
prominent locations on the perimeter of each of the Sites together with a notice which 
states that copies of the Order and the Court Documents may be obtained from the 

Riverbank House, 2 Swan Lane, London, EC4R 
3TT (tel: 020 7861 4000) email: UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com via, and may be viewed 
at, the web link referred to in paragraph 13(b) of this Order;

(b) Posting the Order and the Court Documents at the following web link: 
https://ukop.azurewebsites.net ;

(c) Fixing warning notices in the form set out in Schedules 6 - 7 the Notices as 
follows in not less than A2 size:

(i) In respect of Buncefield (Site 1) by affixing the form of site injunction notice set 
out in Schedule 6 (the "Site 1 Notice") in clearly visible locations (including at 
entranceways, access points, gates and attached to the perimeter fencing) 
around and comprising part of Site 1; and

(ii) In respect of Kingsbury (Site 2) by affixing the form of site injunction notice set 
out in Schedule 7 (the "Site 2 Notice") in clearly visible locations (including at 
entranceways, access points, gates and attached to the perimeter fencing) 
around and comprising part of Kingsbury (Site 2);

(d) Sending an email to each of the following email addresses with the information that copies 
of the Order and the Court Documents may be viewed at the web link referred to in 
paragraph 13(b) above:

(i) xr-legal@riseup.net;

(ii) juststopoil@protonmail.co.uk

14. Pursuant to CPR 6.15(3), 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), the Order and Court Documents will be 
deemed to be served on the latest date on which all of the methods of service referred to in 
paragraph 13 above have been completed, such date to be verified by the completion of a 
certificate of service. 

4103326273 v1
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15. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), the steps identified in paragraph 13 above shall 
stand as good service of the Order and Court Documents. 

16. Pursuant to CPR 6.15(4), the period for service of any acknowledgement of service, admission or 
defence shall be 56 days.

COSTS

17. Costs reserved. 

COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE COURT

18. All communications about this Order should be sent to:

Court Manager
High Court of Justice
Chancery Division
Rolls Building
7 Rolls Building
Fetter Lane
London
EC4A 1NL

The telephone number is 020 7947 7501. The offices are open weekdays 10.00 a.m. to 4.30 p.m.

Out of hours telephone number is 020 7947 6260

19. Name and address of the Claimants' legal representatives

Fieldfisher LLP 
Riverbank House
2 Swan Lane
London 
EC4R 3TT

Telephone: 020 7861 4000

Fax: 020 7488 0084

Out of hours telephone number: 07711 088057

Reference: OTD/UK01.000162.00301

This Order shall be served by the Claimants on the Defendants. The Court has provided a sealed copy of 
this Order to the Claimants at: 

Fieldfisher LLP
Riverbank House, 
2 Swan Lane, 
London 
EC4R 3TT

Reference: OTD/000162

5103326273 v1

-98-



103326273 v1 6 

SCHEDULE 1 
 

1. Witness Statement of Peter Davis dated 7 April 2022 

2. Witness Statement of John Armstrong dated 7 April 2022 

3. Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies dated 8 April 2022 
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SCHEDULE 2 

THE SITES 

Buncefield (Site 1)) 

1. The freehold land at: 

(a) Land and buildings on the south side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is 
registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485114 and marked 1 on the Site 1 
Plan; 

(b) Land to the north of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is registered at the Land 
Registry under title number HD485115 and marked 2 on the Site 1 Plan; 

(c) Land on the west side of Buncefield Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is registered at the 
Land Registry under title number HD485116 and marked 3 on the Site 1 Plan; 

(d) Land on the north east and south west side of Three Cherry Trees Lane, Hemel 
Hempstead registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485118 and marked 5 
on the Site 1 Plan; 

2. The leasehold land at: 

(a) land on the north side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead, as more particularly 
described by a lease dated 23 September 2013 made between (1) Total UK Limited and 
(2) United Oil Kingdom Pipelines Limited which is registered at the Land Registry under 
title number HD529733 and marked 4 on the Site 1 Plan. 

Kingsbury (Site 2) 

3. The freehold land at: 

(a) All that piece of land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick comprising 4.96 acres or 
thereabouts as more particularly described by a conveyance dated 31 March 1967 and 
made between (1) Shell-Mex and B.P. Limited and (2) United Oil Kingdom Pipelines 
Limited and marked 1 on the Site 2 Plan; 

(b) Land on the south-east side of Trinity Road, Kingsbury, Tamworth which is registered at 
the Land Registry under title number WK468465 and marked 2 on the Site 2 Plan. 

4. The leasehold land at: 

(a) land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick, as more particularly described in a lease 
dated 3 November 2021 made between (1) The Secretary of State for Defence and (2) 
United Oil Kingdom Pipelines Limited and marked 3 on the Site 2 Plan. 

(together, the "Sites") 
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SCHEDULE 3 

 

1. On the making of this Order, the Claimants undertake as follows: 

a) To issue and serve an Application Notice for the return date hearing on 20 April 2022; 
 

b) if the Court later finds that this Order has caused loss to the Defendants, and decides that the 
Defendants should be compensated for that loss, the Claimants will comply with any order the 
Court may make;      

c) to make available to any person (who has provided their name(s) and address(es) and proof 
of identity to the Claimants' solicitors, Fieldfisher LLP) upon written application to the Claimants' 
solicitors, Fieldfisher LLP (either in writing at their said offices or by email to 
UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com and in either case quoting reference OTD/UKOP, using an 
online file hosting service, the Court documents, witness evidence and exhibits, as soon as 
possible thereafter and in either case within one clear working day from the first working day 
on which such written application is received. 
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SCHEDULE 4 

Plan of Buncefield (Site 1) ("Site 1 Plan") 
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SCHEDULE 5 

Plan of Kingsbury (Site 2) ("Site 2 Plan") 
  

-104-



RANGE DANGER AREA

-105-



103326273 v1 11 

SCHEDULE 6 

SEE ATTACHED NOTICE AND SERVICE OF ORDER OF THE SITE 1 INJUNCTION 
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SCHEDULE 7 

SEE ATTACHED NOTICE AND SERVICE OF ORDER OF THE SITE 2 INJUNCTION 
 

-108-



-109-



 

103566927 v1 1 

 

 

UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED AND WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND 
STORAGE LIMITED 

V  

PERSONS UNKNOWN 

CLAIMANTS' SOLICITORS NOTE OF HEARING AND JUDGMENT OF PETER KNOX 
QC SITTING AS A DEPUTY JUDGE OF THE CHANCERY DIVISION 

DATED 20 APRIL 2022 

 

This note has not been produced, issued or approved by the High Court. This note has been 
produced on the direction of Peter Knox QC sitting as a Deputy Judge of the Chancery Division 
and constitutes the Claimants' solicitors' note of the Return Date Hearing of an interim injunction 
application that was heard by the High Court on 20 April 2022. 

 

Katharine Holland QC and Yaaser Vanderman appeared for the Claimants.  

3.1. The Hearing 

1.1 Leading Counsel confirmed that she understood that there were some members of the press in the 
court room but that she did not know who else was present. Leading Counsel also confirmed that 
she had not had an opportunity to speak to any individuals present and nor had the clerk. 

1.2 The Judge asked whether there was anybody in the room who represented Persons Unknown 
affiliated to, or connected with Extinction Rebellion or Just Stop Oil. No response was given and 
the Judge confirmed that this would be treated as though nobody has come forward.  

1.3 Leading Counsel expressed her gratitude to the Judge for allowing a 40-minute delay to the start 
of the hearing. She added that she had not bottomed out the issue for which the extra time was 
requested but that she would seek to explain the issue to the Judge. 

1.4 Leading Counsel confirmed that this hearing was the Return Date for an Injunction which the Judge 
granted through an order dated 8 April 2022 (the "Order dated 8 April 2022") and which specified 
20 April 2022 as the date for the return hearing (this "Return Date Hearing"). 

1.5 Leading Counsel added that the Judge should have received a bundle containing updating 
evidence, the skeleton argument for today's hearing and a note of the hearing from 8 April 2022 
(the "Bundle"). Leading Counsel explained that the updating evidence included: 

(a) Factual evidence relating to what has transpired on the ground; 

(b) The Claimants' Skeleton Argument for the Return Date Hearing; and 

(c) Evidence about service in compliance with the Order dated 8 April 2022. 
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1.6 Leading Counsel explained that she planned to take the Judge through the updating evidence to 
demonstrate that the same grounds as for the 8 April hearing for injunctive relief applied.  

1.7 The Judge asked Leading Counsel whether the Claimants had been served with an 
Acknowledgment of Service or a Defence. Leading Counsel explained that the Claimants had not 
and the anticipated position was that the Claimants will likely not receive an Acknowledgment of 
Service or a Defence within the 56-day period specified within the Order dated 8 April 2022. 
Leading Counsel added that this would enable the Claimants to apply for summary judgment or 
judgment in default. 

1.8 Leading Counsel referred to the reason she had asked for the hearing start time to be delayed. 
Leading Counsel noted that it had come to the Claimants' attention that an order was made by Mr 
Justice Sweeting in the Queens' Bench Division dated 14 April 2022 ("Mr Justice Sweeting's 
Order"). Leading Counsel stated that this order affects some of the land which is subject to this 
injunction.  

1.9 Leading Counsel explained that she was able to look at Mr Justice Sweeting's Order this morning 
after it was publicised by the North Warwickshire Borough Council's ("NWBC") twitter feed.  

1.10 Leading Counsel explained that these proceedings were brought by NWBC against 18 named 
individuals and a 19th Defendant as "persons unknown who are organising, participating in or 
encouraging others to participate in protests against the production and/or use of fossil fuels, in the 
locality of the site known as Kingsbury Oil Terminal". 

1.11 Leading Counsel confirmed that Mr Justice Sweeting's Order did not affect the Buncefield Site.  

1.12 Leading Counsel also explained that Mr Justice Sweeting's Order, was made under the following 
statutes: 

(a) Section 222, Local Government Act 1972; 

(b) Section 130(5), Highways Act 1980; and  

(c) Section 1, Localism Act 2011 

1.13 Leading Counsel broadly set out the terms of Mr Justice Sweeting's Order, indicating that said 
Order places restraints on the organisation of, or participation in, any protest against the production 
or use of fossil fuels at Kingsbury Oil Terminal, "taking place within the areas the boundaries of 
which are edged in red on the Map attached to" Mr Justice Sweeting's Order in Schedule 1 "or 
within 5 metres of those boundaries".  

1.14 Leading Counsel clarified that Mr Justice Sweeting's Order does not prevent the Defendants from 
using any public highways within the area stipulated, for the purpose of travelling to or from a 
protest held outside the area in question. 

1.15 Leading Counsel added that Mr Justice Sweeting's Order also contains a number of prohibited acts 
which include "
or any pipes or equipment serving the Terminal on or beneath that land" and, "digging any holes 

". 

1.16 The Judge sought clarification on whether Mr Justice Sweeting's Order restricts protests in the 
neighbourhood surrounding the Kingsbury Oil Terminal.  
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1.17 Leading Counsel clarified that paragraph 1(b) of  Mr Justice Sweeting's Order prevents the 
Defendants subject to Mr Justice Sweeting's Order from carrying out any of the acts listed 
"anywhere in the locality" of the Kingsbury Oil Terminal. 

1.18 The Judge summarised the position by stating that Mr Justice Sweeting's Order granted an 
injunction that protects some of the Claimants' land for this Return Date Hearing, but also protects 
land immediately next to the Claimants' land. The Judge asked whether Leading Counsel could 
confirm that his summary was accurate. 

1.19 Leading Counsel confirmed that the summary was accurate and added that the Claimants had 
taken steps to try to speak to personnel from NWBC whose names appear on the face of Mr Justice 
Sweeting's Order in order to ascertain the position and to inform them of this application. Leading 
Counsel added that the Claimants had located the court documents associated with Mr Justice 
Sweeting's Order but that there had been insufficient time to review those documents.  

1.20 Leading Counsel set out the Claimants' preliminary position in relation to Mr Justice Sweeting's 
Order, explaining that said Order should not affect the Claimants' own right to injunctive relief. 
Leading Counsel explained that Mr Justice Sweeting's Order enforces a Local Authority's statutory 
rights and the enforcement of those rights should not, in any way, prejudice the enforceability of 
the Claimants' own common law rights over land which they own.    

1.21 The Judge agreed with Leading Counsel's submission that, on the face of it, there is no 
inconsistency between the Claimants' rights in this Claim and what had been granted by Mr Justice 
Sweeting's Order.  

1.22 Leading Counsel agreed that it will likely not affect the submissions for this Return Date Hearing 
but wanted to ensure that the Judge was properly informed of this development. Leading Counsel 
also clarified that, for the moment, the Claimants' application is limited to the enforcement of their 
own private rights over their land. 

1.23 The Judge agreed and indicated that had the Claimants been granted an order over public 
highways, then he might have had to marry up any order granted in this Return Date Hearing with 
the terms of Mr Justice Sweeting's Order. He reiterated however that since the Claimants' 
application in this case does not extend to any land outside their ownership, it is difficult to see why 
there would be any inconsistencies even if Mr Justice Sweeting's Order applies to part of the 
Claimants' land in this Claim. 

1.24 Leading Counsel explained that she would like to review the court documents from the hearing of 
Mr Justice Sweeting's Order before making further submissions and that she was in the Judge's 
hands in terms of when it was convenient for her to do so. It was agreed that the hearing would be 
adjourned for 45 minutes in order for Leading Counsel to review the documentation.  

[Court adjourned until 12.20 pm] 

[Hearing recommenced at 12.20 pm] 

1.25 Leading Counsel confirmed that they had reviewed the documents and that they had been able to 
make contact with NWBC's representatives. Leading Counsel also confirmed that NWBC are now 
aware of this Return Date Hearing and the application for an injunction. 

1.26 The Judge asked whether NWBC had any comment on the Claimants' application. 

1.27 Leading Counsel indicated that as far as she is aware, they did not have any comment on the 
Claimants' application. 
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1.28 Leading Counsel proceeded to take the Judge to the evidence relating to the Claimants' application 
for this Return Date Hearing. 

1.29 Leading Counsel explained that the Judge had been sent a short skeleton for this Return Date 
Hearing because, while there had been an update in relation to the factual events on the ground, 
the grounds which justify the granting of the injunction remain the same. 

1.30 The Judge indicated that he assumed that the Claimants' argument was that there has been quite 
a lot of activity from both affiliated organisations, as set out in the Second Witness Statement of 
John Armstrong, and therefore the risks to the Claimants' land remains active. 

1.31 The Judge added that, as far as Extinction Rebellion are concerned, it appeared from the evidence 
that they have not been carrying out direct action at the two sites which are the subject of this 
application, but they have been participating in activities which go beyond mere protest. The Judge 
added that, from the evidence, he can see that on 10 and 12 April 2022, Extinction Rebellion shut 
down Vauxhall and Lambeth Bridges in central London and forced the closure of Lloyd's of London.  

1.32 The Judge indicated that in both cases, it appears that the protestors were concerned with stopping 
and preventing the financing of fossil fuels which directly extends to the oil industry and therefore 
includes the activities carried out by the Claimants at the sites in question.  

1.33 The Judge added that his view was that it is important to distinguish between Just Stop Oil, which 
has directly targeted the sites that are subject to this application and Extinction Rebellion who do 
not appear to have recently targeted the sites, but nonetheless still has a common aim of stopping 
and disrupting the fossil fuel industry.  

1.34 Leading Counsel confirmed the Judge's understanding of the evidence and submitted that the 
activities of Extinction Rebellion relate to fossil fuels. She added that their activities are carried out 
with the intention of stopping and disrupting fossil fuels and hence their actions remain relevant to 
the sites held by the Claimants. 

1.35 Leading Counsel submitted that paragraph 10 of the Second Witness Statement of John Armstrong 
updates the position on the sites.  

1.36 The Judge indicated that it is not possible to determine the impact that the preliminary injunction 
granted on 8 April 2022 had on the reduction of activity at the sites. He emphasised however that 
this does not matter in terms of his determination as to whether the injunction should be continued.  

1.37 The Judge added that Leading Counsel does not need to take him to the details of the factual 
evidence relating to the activity that has carried on since the hearing on 8 April 2022 as he was 
familiar with it. The Judge directed Leading Counsel to set out the Claimants' submissions relating 
to "Persons Unknown" having been given sufficient notice of this Return Date Hearing. 

1.38 Leading Counsel proceeded to take the Judge to the service provisions in paragraph 13 of the 
Order dated 8 April 2022 and set out how the Claimants have complied with these provisions in 
order to inform Persons Unknown of said Order and this Return Date Hearing.  

1.39 Leading Counsel took the Judge to paragraph 13(a) of the Order dated 8 April 2022 which required 
the Claimants to fix copies of said Order and other court documents from the hearing heard on the 
same date at 2 prominent locations on the perimeter of each site. Leading Counsel submitted that 
paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Second Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies, 
at Section C, Page 30 of the Bundle sets out how the Claimants have complied with this 
requirement and when this was achieved. 
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1.40 The Judge indicated it seemed that paragraph 13(a), on its own, would not draw anybody's 
attention to the Order dated 8 April 2022 as it seems like a plastic box with a bunch of papers within 
it, although he noted that the top of the box does contain a copy of the warning notice. 

1.41 Leading Counsel then took the Judge to paragraph 13(b) which ordered the Claimants to upload 
the Order dated 8 April 2022 and the court documents from the hearing heard on that date onto 
the specified web link. To evidence the Claimants' compliance with this, Leading Counsel took the 
Judge to Section D, page 50 of the Bundle which contains a screenshot of the web link. Leading 
Counsel also explained that the documents were uploaded after the hearing on Friday 8 April 2022 
and on Monday 11 April 2022.   

1.42 The Judge asked Leading Counsel to confirm whether the documents were uploaded onto United 
Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited's website as opposed to that of West London Pipeline and Storage 
Limited.   

1.43 Leading Counsel confirmed that this was the case. 

1.44 Leading Counsel then turned to paragraph 13(c) which ordered the Claimants to affix warning 
notices on the sites in the form set out in Schedules 6 and 7 to the Order dated 8 April 2022.  

1.45 The Judge enquired about how large these warning notices were.  

1.46 Leading Counsel confirmed that the notices were A2 as required by the Order dated 8 April 2022. 
Leading Counsel confirmed that notices were put up on 12 April 2022 and referred the Judge to 
the Witness Statement of Richard Thomas in Section D, pages 8-25 of the Bundle to highlight 
details of the Claimants' compliance. 

1.47 The Judge asked Leading Counsel to confirm whether the warning notices were still affixed around 
the perimeter of the sites. 

1.48 Leading Counsel submitted that she could not confirm this but that she would assume that they 
were still affixed around the sites. 

1.49 The Judge also asked Leading Counsel to confirm whether the photographs showing the warning 
notices affixed on the patches of grass and the car park were on the Claimants' land.  

1.50 Leading Counsel responded by stating that she cannot answer the question in relation to the 
specific photographs in the Witness Statement of Richard Thomas however, Leading Counsel 
proceeded to take the Judge to paragraph 4 in the aforementioned Witness Statement in Section 
D, page 9 of the Bundle. Leading Counsel indicated that this extract summarises the Claimants' 
compliance with the Order dated 8 April 2022 and that the Claimants arranged for 40 copies of the 
warning notices to be affixed either on the perimeter fences or on timber stakes at prominent points 
directly adjacent to the perimeter fences at both sites. Leading Counsel emphasised that the 
general spirit of the notice being affixed to the perimeter of the sites in question has been abided 
by.  

1.51 The Judge agreed and indicated that the warning notices appear to be all over and around the 
sites. The Judge added that so long as the owners of the land on which the warning notices have 
been affixed are happy for them to be there, then this should not be an issue.  

1.52 Leading Counsel then turned to the Claimants' service obligations under paragraph 13(d) of the 
Order dated 8 April 2022. Leading Counsel indicated that this placed an obligation on the Claimants 
to send emails to Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil containing the Order dated 8 April 2022 
and the court documents from the hearing heard on the same date. 
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1.53 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to paragraphs 19 and 20 of the Second Witness Statement of 
Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies which sets out the details of the Claimants' compliance. 

1.54 Leading Counsel confirmed that the emails were sent to two further emails for Just Stop Oil after 
the email indicated on the Order dated 8 April 2022 (juststopoil@protonmail.co.uk) bounced back. 
Leading Counsel explained that the Claimants then proceeded to send the email to 2 further email 
addresses contained within the Just Stop Oil website (juststopoil@protonmail.com and 
juststopoilpress@protonmail.com) to ensure compliance with the Order. Leading Counsel added 
that the Claimants have not received a bounce back from the aforementioned addresses. 

1.55 Leading Counsel confirmed that paragraph 23 of the Second Witness Statement of Daniel Owen 
Christopher Talfan Davies, at Section C, page 33 of the Bundle indicated the Claimants' intention 
to serve further evidence for this Return Date Hearing. 

1.56 Based on this, the Judge asked Leading Counsel how the Claimants had served the further 
evidence relied upon for this Return Date Hearing on the Defendants. 

1.57 Leading Counsel confirmed that the evidence was served on the Defendants by the same methods 
indicated by paragraph 13(a), (b) and (d) of the Order dated 8 April 2022; namely by: 

(a) Sending emails of the evidence to Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil; 

(b) Uploading the evidence on the web link; and  

(c) Adding the evidence to the transparent boxes at the sites. 

1.58 Leading Counsel also referred the Judge to the Certificate of Service located in Section E, page 
17 of the Bundle as evidence of service of the Second Witness Statement of John Armstrong, the 
Second Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies, the Bundle for this Return 
Date Hearing and the Claimants' Skeleton Argument for this hearing. 

1.59 The Judge enquired as to whether the Claimants had received a reply to their service from any 
Defendants and whether the service emails were sent to the alternative email addresses; namely: 
(juststopoil@protonmail.com and juststopoilpress@protonmail.com). 

1.60 Leading Counsel confirmed that they had not received a reply from any potential Defendants and 
that service was affected on the alternative email addresses indicated. Leading Counsel also 
confirmed that they had not received a bounce back from the alternative email addresses. 

1.61 Leading Counsel also submitted that large notices indicating that further evidence was served had 
not been put up however the original warning notices, at Section D, page 48 of the Bundle, provided 
notice of the Return Date Hearing. 

1.62 The Judge queried why the Claimants believed that this was sufficient notice of the Return Date 
Hearing for the average protestor. 

1.63 In response, Leading Counsel submitted that the Return Date Hearing is part and parcel of what is 
specified in the Order dated 8 April 2022 and that the Claimants, using multiple methods, 
adequately brought the aforementioned Order to any potential Defendants' attention.  

1.64 The Judge also asked how the Claimants' ensured that the transparent boxes located outside the 
sites remained there. In response, Leading Counsel indicated that the boxes were affixed using 
cable ties. 

-115-



 

103566927 v1 7 

1.65 Leading Counsel submitted that that she would like to take the Judge to the draft Order proposed 
for this application (the "Draft Return Date Order").  

1.66 Leading Counsel indicated that the terms of the Draft Return Date Order were largely the same as 
those contained within the Order dated 8 April 2022, however, it has been slightly revised, most 
substantively in relation to the temporal limit. Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the initial draft 
order sought as part of this application in Section C, page 13 of the Bundle and the new revised 
Draft Return Date Order in Section C, page 45 of the Bundle. 

1.67 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the amendment made to the undertakings at Section C, 
page 53 of the Bundle, indicating that an amendment has been made to reflect that fact that the 
application notice for the return date hearing had now been issued.    

1.68 Leading Counsel then referred the Judge to paragraph 9 of the Draft Return Date Order which puts 
a temporal limit of 12 months on the proposed injunction and fixes a date rather than having the 
injunction continue pending trial. 

1.69 The Judge asked Leading Counsel to explain why it had been drafted in this way. 

1.70 Leading Counsel explained that this was done to bring the Draft Return Date Order in line with the 
Valero Return Date Order which fixes a temporal limit at paragraph 3: 

(a) "With immediate effect until 23:59 on Friday 21 January 2023, unless varied, discharged 
 

1.71 The Judge noted that the Valero Return Date Order fixes a temporal limit of less than 1 year to 
which Leading Counsel submitted that a temporal limit of 1 year would be appropriate given the 
circumstances of this case.  

1.72 Leading Counsel indicated that the substance of the prohibited activities remained the same as 
before. Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the amendment to the time limits to give notice of 
an application to amend or vary the Draft Return Date Order  to 48 hours for notice to the 
Claimants of the application itself and 24 hours for any evidence relied upon as part of this 
application. 

1.73 Leading Counsel noted that the new warning notices attached to the Draft Return Date Order would 
remain substantially in the same form however that they would be amended to reflect the terms of 
the Draft Return Date Order. 

1.74 The Judge directed that a note of this Return Date Hearing should be served on the Defendants 
and added to the terms of the Draft Return Date Order. The Judge added that although the two 
campaign groups could have attended, it is appropriate to include such a note.  

1.75 Leading Counsel then took the Judge to paragraph 16 of the Draft Return Date Order in Section 
C, page 49 of the Bundle under the heading "Alternative Service Provisions for Future Applications 
by the Claimants in this Claim". 

1.76 Leading Counsel submitted that this amendment sets out the methods of service on the Defendants 
for any further applications the Claimants intend to make as part of this Claim and in summary 
include: 

(a) Adding the documents relating to any future application to the transparent boxes outside 
the sites; 

(b) Posting copies of these document on the UKOP web link; and 
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(c) Sending emails to Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil's email addresses. 

1.77 The Judge queried why affixing warning notices around the perimeter of the sites to indicate an 
intention to make an application had not been included as part of the service provision for future 
applications. 

1.78 Leading Counsel submitted that it is not possible to put evidence and applications on big notices 
around the sites. 

1.79 The Judge stated that he would need to consider whether the methods stipulated in paragraph 16 
of the Draft Return Date Order would be sufficient notice.  

1.80 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to CPR 6.15 which indicates that an alternative method of 
service may be permitted if there is "good reason" to authorise such method. Leading Counsel also 
referred the Judge to Practice Direction 6A, paragraph 9.3 which sets out examples of what 
alternative methods may be deemed appropriate in certain situations. 

1.81 The Judge indicated that he does not have to be persuaded on whether there is a good reason for 
an alternative method of service as this is obvious in this case. He explained that he is interested 
in determining what that alternative method ought to be. The Judge indicated that placing warning 
notices at the sites of the Claimants' intention to bring any future application would undoubtedly 
bring it to a protestor's attention. 

1.82 Leading Counsel submitted that the principle of attaching documents at the site (by placing them 
in boxes) so that they are visible is an established method of service for court orders and 
applications affecting land. Leading Counsel also submitted that the test does not ask the Judge 
to consider each method of service in isolation but rather the effect of these alternative methods of 
service must be considered in their totality.  

1.83 Leading Counsel also submitted that the protestors are part of organised campaigns that will have 
been informed and made aware of the Return Date Order, the Order dated 8 April 2022 and the 
methods of service stipulated within them, directly by the Claimants.  

1.84 Leading Counsel proceeded to take the Judge to the test in relation to alternative methods of 
service contained in Practice Direction 6A, paragraph 9.2(3) which indicates the test in question is 
that the application "is likely reach the person to be served by the method"  

1.85 The Judge queried whether there is a practical objection to setting up warning notices of any future 
application around the sites. Leading Counsel submitted that applications cannot be practically 
placed on large warning notices. 

1.86 The Judge stated that the Claimants already have injunction warning notices currently affixed and 
queried whether the same could be done for any future applications by simply setting up warning 
notices of the Claimants' intention to make such an application.   

1.87 In response, Leading Counsel submitted that the test is whether the application will "
reach the person to be served by the method". Leading Counsel submitted that any Defendant will 
likely be served by the three methods currently contained within paragraph 13 of the Draft Return 
Date Order.  

1.88 The Judge asked whether there was a standard form for service in such a situation. Leading 
Counsel submitted that it would be wrong to suggest that there is a standard form. 

1.89 The Judge indicated that the difficulty with the sites in question is that they consist of large plots of 
land that are not necessarily connected together. 
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1.90 Leading Counsel submitted that any potential Defendants will know that any future application will 
be served in the way intended by paragraph 16 because they will be served with the Draft Return 
Date Order stating this. 

1.91 Leading Counsel added that any person who could be made a Defendant had had every 
opportunity to be joined to this Claim and that the Claimants should not be burdened with the same 
service and notice obligations imposed at the start of the proceedings as they have already given 
sufficient notice and information relating to this Claim. 

1.92 In response, the Judge suggested adding further wording to the new warning notices attached to 
the Draft Return Date Order indicating that advertisement of any further applications may be made 
by the methods stipulated in paragraph 16 of the Draft Return Date Order. The Judge indicated 
that this will enable the protestors to keep themselves informed of any future applications made in 
this claim. 

1.93 Leading Counsel indicated that the Claimants will prepare a revised warning notice to reflect such 
an amendment. 

1.94 Leading Counsel referred the Judge back to the skeleton and indicated that the Claimants' 
submissions relating to whether there is a serious issue to be tried and whether the Claim is likely 
to succeed at trial essentially remain the same. 

1.95 Leading Counsel also submitted that the NWBC injunction granted by Mr Justice Sweeting's Order 
relied upon the Valero injunction which relates to private land on the basis of a public authority's 
powers. Leading Counsel submitted the same principle applies in this situation and therefore Mr 
Justice Sweeting's Order should not affect this application.  

1.96 Leading Counsel submitted that the submissions in relation to the balance of convenience were 
the same. Section 12(2)(a) of the Human Rights Act 1998 requires the Claimants to show that they 
have taken all practicable steps.  

1.97 Leading Counsel proceeded to take the Judge to paragraph 11.8 of the Skeleton Argument from 8 
April 2022 in relation to the test for pre-emptive relief against persons unknown.  

1.98 Leading Counsel submitted that it remains impossible to name Defendants to this Claim as since 
the 8 April 2022 Order had been made, there has been no direct action on the sites in question 
and no people have been arrested. The fact that the Claim brought by NWBC names individuals 
does not mean that the Claimants are able to name individuals. 

1.99 The Judge noted that NWBC had been assisted by the police in naming individuals. 

1.100 Leading Counsel submitted that in the Valero injunction, they had applied for a disclosure order 
from the police. Leading Counsel confirmed that the Claimants had not applied for a disclosure 
order and were not obliged to do so where no direct action on the sites. Leading Counsel submitted 
that the individuals arrested around the sites have been arrested on land that is not held by the 
Claimants. 

1.101 Leading Counsel indicated that the legal position was such that if the Claimants become aware of 
people who are Defendants then they will need to name them. 

1.102 The Judge asked whether the Claimants will have to take reasonable steps to determine any 
potential Defendants. 

1.103 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the emails that had been sent to the campaign groups at 
tab 13 of the Bundle and in which potential defendants had been invited to identify themselves and 
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to which emails no one responded.  Leading Counsel confirmed that she had only just seen the 
NWBC injunction naming individuals and that Valero had obtained an injunction without naming 
anyone.  

1.104 Leading Counsel referred the Judge to the case of Canada Goose in tab 9 of the Authorities Bundle 
and paragraph 82 and confirmed that no issue had been taken with this paragraph including in the 
subsequent case of Barking & Dagenham. 

1.105 The Judge asked Leading Counsel if her submission was that people have been named as 
protesting nearby the Claimants' sites, but the Claimants cannot say that these same people will 
trespass on their land.  

1.106 Leading Counsel confirmed that this was the case and submitted that the Claimants have received 
no responses to the emails sent to Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil despite the Claimants' 
solicitors encouraging any potential Defendants to come forward. Leading Counsel added that the 
Claimants were therefore unable to identify individuals.  

1.107 Leading Counsel confirmed following further queries from the Judge that the Claimants' positon as 
to why those who have been arrested around the sites in question cannot be named as Defendants 
in this Claim is that the Claimants do not have sufficient cause to believe that those individuals will 
personally trespass or obstruct access to their sites. Leading Counsel also indicated that there 
have been no arrests on the Claimants' sites. Leading Counsel added that this does not alleviate 
the risk of certain unknown protestors carrying out such actions in the future following 
encouragement from Extinction Rebellion or Just Stop Oil.     

1.108 Leading Counsel then referred the Judge to the requirement for an injunction to have clear 
geographical and temporal limits. Leading Counsel submitted that with regard to geographical 
limits, the injunction is limited to the Claimant's land and private access routes and by clear plans 
for both sites. 

1.109 Leading Counsel then turned to temporal limits and submitted that the injunction will expire at the 
fixed date indicated, until further order or at trial. Leading Counsel submitted that this would be 
appropriate because the evidence suggests that there is no cut off point for these campaigns. 
Leading Counsel added that both campaigns have repeatedly expressed their intention to keep 
going until the government yields to their demands.  

1.110 Leading Counsel accepted that the proceedings will have to go to trial to get a final order, however, 
it was submitted that the Claimants having to come to court every 6 months to continue the interim 
injunction when the evidence clearly suggests that the action will continue is not an appropriate 
use of the Court's time and resources and would cause an undue strain .    

1.111 The Judge pointed out that the Valero injunction was granted only for a 10-month period.  

1.112 Leading Counsel took the Judge to the decision of Mr David Holland QC in Divider 5, paragraph 
4.2 of the Authorities Bundle. Leading Counsel read the relevant extract to the Judge and explained 
that the injunction in this case was granted for just over a year. 

1.113 Leading Counsel then proceeded to take the Judge to paragraph 34 of the INEOS case (page 76 
of the authorities bundle) which sets out the guiding principle for determining the length of the 
injunction. 

1.114 The Judge stated that the terms of the injunction must correlate to the tort and that he would need 
to work out how long the threatened tort will continue in this case.  
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1.115 Leading Counsel also took the Judge to paragraphs 68 and 70 the Canada Goose case and 
paragraph 108 of the Barking & Dagenham case and submitted that there is no set rule for 
determining how long an interim injunction should be granted however that it was good practice to 
have periodic reviews.    

1.116 The Judge indicated that 12 months seemed like a long time in response to which Leading Counsel 
submitted that there was evidence in the Bundle of the Just Stop Oil having said that they were not 
going to stop. Leading Counsel also confirmed the Claimants' anticipated intention to make an 
application for default judgment after the 56 day limit for service of a defence has expired and in 
any event apply for summary judgment if a defence is received. Leading Counsel submitted that 
the context of the Claim is such that the seriousness and gravity of the potential actions by the 
protestors and the potential expense the Claimants may have to incur justifies a 12 month temporal 
limit. Leading Counsel added that it would not be a practical use of the Court's resources (given 
the amount of applications currently before it) to have a shorter injunction period, particularly since 
the risk to the Claimants' land will remain present and that she relied upon the David Holland QC 
judgment.   

[Court rises to reconvene at 3.30 pm for judgment.] 

[Hearing recommenced at 3.30 pm] 

2. Judgment of Peter Knox QC sitting as a Deputy Judge of the Chancery Division 

On 8 April 2022, I granted an interim injunction on short notice to the Claimants to restrain persons unknown 
from entering the respective premises and interfering with the Claimants' private access rights. The unknown 
persons are those who enter the premises or interfere with the Claimants' private access rights in connection 
with the Just Stop Oil or Extinction Rebellion campaigns. 

The properties in question in this matter are the Buncefield and Kingsbury Oil Terminals as identified by the 
plans in the Order dated 8 April 2022. The injunction in the Order was granted until the Return Date today. 

Since the injunction was granted, I am satisfied that the Claimants have served sufficient notice of the Return 
Date in the manner specified in paragraph 13 of the Order dated 8 April 2022, that is to say that in summary: 

 
 Firstly, on 13 April 2022, the Claimants placed copies of the Order in transparent boxes in two 

prominent locations of each site. The sealed Order explained that there would be a Return Date 
hearing on 20 April 2022. Notices of the Return Date and the Order dated 8 April 2022 were affixed 
to the top of the transparent boxes and court documents including a copy of the sealed claim form 
and the particulars of claim were added to the boxes. 
 

 Secondly, on 12 April 2022, the Claimants uploaded the sealed Order dated 8 April 2022 on their 
website. 
 

 The third method of service was that on 12 April 2022, the Claimants affixed a large number of 
notices in A2 size in the form set out in the Schedules 6 and 7 to the Order dated 8 April 2022, either 
by attaching them to the fences of the properties or attaching them to wooden posts adjacent to the 
perimeter fence. 
 

 Fourthly, on 13 April 2022, the Claimants' solicitors served further notice of the application by email 
to Just Stop Oil and Extinction Rebellion's email addresses. The email initially sent to 
juststopoil@protonmail.co.uk subsequently bounced back so the notice was sent in the alternative 
to juststopoil@protonmail.com and juststopoilpress@protonmail.com and these are the emails 
currently published on Just Stop Oil's website. 
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I am also satisfied that all the documents relating to this Return Date Hearing have been served. This was 
done by including the documents in two transparent boxes at each of the sites, by making the documents 
available on the UKOP web link and by serving them to the email addresses of Just Stop Oil and Extinction 
Rebellion. 

Despite the aforementioned methods of service, nobody has attended the hearing on behalf of the 
Defendants, nor has any evidence been served on their behalf even though the Order dated 8 April 2022 
made provision for such evidence to be served by the Defendants by 4.30 pm on 19 April 2022. 

I therefore propose to continue the Order made on 8 April 2022 and which order was then amended on 12 
April 2022 to correct minor details and I propose to do so for the following reasons: 

 For the reasons given on 8 April 2022, I am satisfied that there is a serious issue to be tried, in 
particular as the Claimants are the owners of the land that is subject to this application and there is 
good reason to believe that unless restrained,  protestors will seek to enter the sites in question and 
disrupt the operations carried out by the Claimants.  
 

 The balance of convenience favours the grant of an injunction; the campaigners do not need to 
trespass on the sites in question or to interfere with the private accessways to the sites in order to 
carry out lawful protests;  
 

 I am satisfied that damages alone would not be an adequate remedy; 
 

 The Claimants have given a cross undertaking in damages; and 
 

 In particular, I am satisfied that the activities of Just Stop Oil and Extinction Rebellion since 8 April 
2022 show that there is a serious risk that supporters of said organisations will seek to enter the 
premises and interfere with the rights of access in order to disrupt the Claimants' activities. I say 
this because of the factual evidence submitted to the Court and contained in the Second Witness 
Statement of John Armstrong dated 14 April 2022. I shall summarise some of this evidence, 
however, the details are set out in paragraphs 12-23 of the Statement: 

(a) Firstly in relation to the Buncefield site, on 10 April 2022, 40 members of Just Stop oil 
blocked the entrance of the Buncefield Oil Terminal. The blockading of the entranceway 
resulted in 13 arrests being made by police. It seems to have taken approximately 9 hours 
to remove the protestors and reopen the entranceways. On the same day, Just Stop Oil's 
twitter page quoted a protestor indicating that "I won't be stopped, and I won't back down 
until our government stops trading our lives for profit." 

(b) Secondly in relation to the Kingsbury site, on 8 April 2022, it was it was reported that 37 
protestors had broken into the Kingsbury Oil Terminal, at what I understand is the oil depot 
not held by the Claimants, and chained themselves to pipes. This was about 0.2 miles 
away from the land subject to this application. It was also reported that on 10 April 2022, 
Just Stop Oil gained access to part of the depot by digging a tunnel under Piccadilly Way 
by using a modified caravan to hide the tunnel. Again on the same day, Warwickshire 
police reported that 29 individuals had been at the site and on 11 April 2022, Just Stop 
Oil published a statement indicated that "a number of people [were] still occupying a 
tunnel under a major access route to the Kingsbury Oil terminal". 

(c) In addition to the activities at the sites, there is evidence of direct action taken by Just 
Stop Oil throughout the UK and on 10 April 2022, Just Stop Oil published a press release 
indicating that campaigners have continued to "disrupt oil supplies from oil terminals in 
Warwickshire, Hertfordshire and Essex, marking the tenth day of action in support of their 
demand that the UK government end new oil and gas projects in the UK." The three sites 
referred to include the Kingsbury and Buncefield Terminals and the Gray's Inter Terminal 
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in Essex. Just Stop Oil declared their intention to "continue to block oil terminals until the 
government makes a statement that it will end new oil and gas projects in the UK" 

(d) It was also reported that at 6.30 am on 10 April 2022 that Just Stop Oil protestors entered 
Gray's Inter Terminal in Essex. Images of individuals lying on the pipework were posted 
by Just Stop Oil's twitter account along with statements indicating that "[t]his will stop 
when @10DowningStreet says they will #StopAllNewFossilFuelLicences!" and "[w]e will 
continue to disrupt until the govt makes a statement that it will end new oil & gas projects 
in the UK". Later that day, Essex police described the protestors' activities as 
"exceptionally dangerous". 

(e) It was reported by the Sunday Times that direct action from those sites resulted in the in 
the closure of approximately 1,200 garages and the Fair Fuel Campaign had stated that 
"1 in 3 garages have run dry of petrol". Just Stop Oil indicated on their website that their 
direct action "will continue to significantly impact on fuel availability at petrol pumps" and 
they published photographs of gas station closures and lengthy gas station queues. 

(f) Just Stop Oil claimed on their website on 10 April 2022 that "[o]ver 400 people have joined 
actions that have succeeded in stopping operations for up to 24 hours at a time at 11 
critical oil terminals that supply fuel to hundreds of petrol stations". 

As far as Extinction Rebellion is concerned, the evidence is they are campaigning to see the end 
of fossil fuels and hence also the end of the use of oil. Since 8 April 2022, they have targeted 
industries affiliated to the fossil fuel industry. Two recent examples contained within the Second 
witness Statement of John Armstrong are: 

(g) On 10 April 2022, members of Extinction Rebellion forced the closure if Lambeth and 
Vauxhall bridges in central London. Protestors in Vauxhall Bridge laid out a banner which 
read: "for health's sake stop financing fossil fuels". The bridges were eventually re-opened 
after the Metropolitan Police imposed conditions under Section 14 of the Public Order Act 
1986 which enabled them to physically remove protestors. 

(h) On 12 April 2022, it was reported that Extinction Rebellion members forced the closure of 
the world's biggest insurance market, Lloyd's of London. Extinction Rebellion posted an 
article on their website under the heading: "We have closed Lloyd's of London!" Exhibits 
in the papers before me show that the article contained extracts that read: "how bad is 
Lloyd's of London" and "Lloyd's insures 40% of the world's energy, including some of the 

n. 

effectively enabling them." 

Although there is no evidence that Extinction Rebellion have targeted the sites in question since 8 
April 2022, it is plain that one of their main targets is the oil industry more generally and they will 
do what they can to disrupt oil distribution of oil across the UK, including targeting the Claimants' 
sites. For those reasons I continue to be satisfied that there is a serious issue to be tried. It is 
important to note that this is a prima facie view on the evidence before me which on the balance of 
probabilities favours an injunction being granted. 

In relation to persons unknown, I am satisfied that all practicable steps been taken to notify the Defendants 
as set out in the Order dated 8 April 2022 and therefore section 12(2) of the Human Rights Act 1998 has 
been satisfied. Secondly, I am satisfied, based on the current information before me and having regard to 
the right of freedom of expression, that the Claimants will likely be able to establish at trial that any 
publication should be restrained because this Order does not stop Just Stop Oil or Extinction Rebellion from 
exercising an effective right of protest against the oil or fossil fuel industries. It is convenient and 
proportionate to grant this further order given the considerable disruption which the protestors seek to cause.   
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Further, I am satisfied that the geographical limit is proportionate because it goes no further than the 
Claimants' own land and the Claimants do not seek to restrain the supporters of the campaigns from going 
on to the public highways next to the sites. 

This therefore leaves 4 more points to consider: 

1. Is it right to continue an Order against Persons Unknown or should there be naming of people? 

On this point, I am satisfied that it remains impossible to name Defendants in this Claim. The names of 
some of those who were arrested near the sites could be found out from Police, however, there is no 
evidence that those particular protestors will trespass or cause nuisance at the Claimants' sites. The risk 
from the sites comes more generally from unidentified supporters of the Just Stop Oil or Extinction Rebellion 
campaigns. 

2. The second point relates to how long the Order should last for? 

Ms Holland asked for a 1-year temporal limit. Other cases suggest 9 months  1 year might be appropriate. 
The principle behind determining the duration is that the injunction should be no longer than the risk of the 
threat of the tort. In this case, I accept 1 year from today would be an appropriate temporal limit for this 
injunction. This is because, whatever the rights and wrongs of the movements are, it is clear that Extinction 
Rebellion and Just Stop Oil are well-organised movements and their whole campaign is intended to be a 
long-term project in each case. Expecting the Claimants to come back to Court within a period shorter than 
1 year would therefore be a disproportionate expense and would be a waste of the Court's resources. I am 
also told by Ms Holland that the Claimants intend to apply for default judgment or, in the event of a defence 
being served, to apply for summary judgment. If so, this order will be subsumed within any final order. 
 

3. The third question relates to what notice should the Order provide, for making future applications 
in this Claim? 

If the Claimants want to make future applications, the Court will want to know that sufficient notice to the 
Defendants has been given so as to satisfy the requirement in Section 12(2) of the Human Rights Act 1998.  

I am satisfied that this will be the case as long as provision is made in warning notices that will be affixed 
around the perimeter of the sites which makes it plain how any future application in this Claim will be served. 
I am prepared to authorise the service of future applications in the methods envisaged by Ms Holland: that 
is to say by adding the application notice and any relevant documents to the transparent boxes at the sites, 
sending them by email to Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil and uploading them to the UKOP web link.  

There is however, one point I remain concerned about. It may be helpful if the Claimants placed large notices 
of their intention or proposal to make any future application on such and such a date so as to avoid any 
future argument on whether sufficient notice was given to satisfy Section 12(2) of the Human Rights Act 
1998. This is a point I am willing to discuss with Leading Counsel following this judgment. 

4. The final point relates to an Order made by Mr Justice Sweeting whose title is NWBC v 18 named 
individuals with the 19th individual being "Persons unknown who are organising, participating in or 
encouraging others to participate in protests against the production and/or use of fossil fuels, in the 
locality of the site known as Kingsbury Oil Terminal" 

In other words it is an order which affects the Kingsbury Oil Terminal and the terms of the Order are that 
Defendants shall not: 

"a) organise or participate in (whether by themselves or with any other person), or encourage, invite 
or arrange for any other person to participate in any protest against the production or use of fossil 
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which are edged in red on the Map attached to this Order at Schedule 1, or within 5 metres of those 
boundaries (edged in  

For the avoidance of doubt, this prohibition does not prevent the Defendants from using any public 
highway within the buffer zone for the purpose of travelling to or from a protest held, or to be held, 
outside the buffer zone." 

And  

The second part of the Order continues to prohibit a list of activities similar to those which are the 
subject of this Claim. 

It appears from the plan attached to the Order that the areas caught by Mr Justice Sweeting's Order are not 
simply the oil depot at Kingsbury, which is not held by the Claimants, but various parts of the terminal which 
do appear to be the Claimants land. The following question therefore arises: does this make any difference 
to the order I shall make today?  

In my judgement it does not for the following reasons: 

(a) First it relates to the exercise by a public authority of their statutory rights and this should 
not, and does not, affect my judgment as the Order in this Claim relates to the Claimants' 
private rights over their own private land. Indeed, Mr Justice Sweeting's Order may only 
assist the Claimants as it seems to prevent protestors from coming onto the Claimants' 
land; and 

(b) Secondly, it seems that Mr Justice Sweeting's Order prevents protestors from coming 
onto part of the Claimants' land only. While this may overlap with the order the Claimants' 
seek today, I do not see why the Claimants' should not be entitled to their own relief.  

I am told that the Claimants have been in touch with NWBC to inform them of this application, but I am not 
aware of any further correspondence. 

I therefore propose to make an order in the terms put forward by Ms Holland subject to the provisions 
regarding notice of future applications which I would like to discuss with Ms Holland.  

3. Discussion on terms of Order following judgment 

3.1. The Judge considered that, in the event of a new application being made by the Claimants, there 
may be protestors who are not aware. Therefore, would there be any great difficulty in stating on 
the warning notices saying that an application was going to be made on x date for an Order in the 
following terms? 

3.2. Leading Counsel stated that in terms of the service test set out in the CPR, the application would 
be likely to come to their attention. But that the Judge was also right to say be careful because the 
higher test in s.12(2) of the Human Rights Act 1998 would have to be satisfied as well. The onus 

all practicable steps had been taken. It could be at that stage that the circumstances have changed 
 for example, there may be a channel of communication with the Defendants, etc.  

3.3. The Judge said that as long as the Claimants were aware that if they did not do more than was 
provided for in Order, they might be at risk in respect of s.12(2) of the Human Rights Act 1998. It 
was a matter for them. The Judge accepted that he did not have to make an Order in those terms 
and did not propose to do so. But he wanted it understood that he was not intending to prejudge 
what was the relevant test for s.12(2) of the Human Rights Act 1998.  
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No. PT-2022-000303

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES

CHANCERY DIVISION

PROPERTY TRUSTS AND PROBATE LIST

Before Peter Knox QC (sitting as a Deputy High Court Judge)

On 20 April 2022

B E T W E E N

(1) UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED

(2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Claimants / Applicants

and

(1) PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR 

THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING 
PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 

HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED  ON THE ATTACHED 
SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE 
(SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN)

First Defendants/Respondents

(2) PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED 
TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, 

OBSTRUCTING OR INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S ACCESS OVER PRIVATE 
ACCESS ROADS ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 
HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 

PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 
IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN)

Second Defendants/Respondents

___________________________________________________

ORDER AGAINST THE FIRST AND SECOND DEFENDANTS 

(COLLECTIVELY “THE DEFENDANTS”)

___________________________________________________
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PENAL NOTICE

IF YOU, THE DEFENDANTS, DISOBEY THIS ORDER YOU MAY BE HELD TO BE IN CONTEMPT OF 

COURT AND MAY BE IMPRISONED, FINED OR HAVE YOUR ASSETS SEIZED.

ANY OTHER PERSON WHO KNOWS OF THIS ORDER AND DOES ANYTHING WHICH HELPS OR 

PERMITS THE DEFENDANTS OR ANY OF THEM TO BREACH THE TERMS OF THIS ORDER MAY 

ALSO BE HELD TO BE IN CONTEMPT OF COURT AND MAY BE IMPRISONED, FINED OR HAVE 

THEIR ASSETS SEIZED.

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO THE DEFENDANTS

This Order prohibits you from doing certain acts. You should read this Order very carefully. You are advised 

to consult a solicitor as soon as possible.

If you disobey this Order you may be found guilty of contempt of court and you may be sent to prison or 

your assets seized. 

You have the right to apply to the court to vary or discharge this Order (which is explained below).

RECITALS

UPON the hearing of the Claimants’ Application dated 8 April 2022

UPON hearing Leading Counsel and Junior Counsel for the Claimants 

AND UPON READING the evidence recorded on the Court file as having been read  

AND UPON the Claimants giving and the Court accepting the undertaking listed in Schedule 3

AND UPON the Claimants acknowledging that they do not intend to prohibit any lawful protest outside any 
of the sites referred to in this Order and that this Order is not intended to prohibit such lawful protest

IT IS ORDERED THAT:

THE INJUNCTIONS

1. Until the Return Date referred to in paragraph 9 of this Order or further order in the interim: 

(a) BUNCEFIELD (SITE 1)
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2. The First Defendants and each of them are forbidden from (a) entering or remaining upon the land 
or buildings described in and defined as "Buncefield (Site 1)" in Schedule 2 to this Order and 
which are shown for illustration purposes shaded red on the plan annexed to Schedule 4 of the 
Order (“the Site 1 Plan”), or (b) from causing damage to Buncefield (Site 1) or (c) removing 
equipment from Buncefield (Site 1), without the consent of the Claimants. 

3. The Second Defendants and each of them are forbidden from obstructing or otherwise interfering 
with the First Claimant’s access over the private access road on the land adjoining Buncefield (Site 
1) (the "Site 1 Access Route"), which is shown for illustration purposes shaded blue on the Site 1 
Plan, for access and egress between Buncefield (Site 1) and the public highway.

(b) KINGSBURY (SITE 2)

4. The First Defendants and each of them are forbidden from (a) entering or remaining upon the land 
or buildings described in and defined as "Kingsbury (Site 2)" in Schedule 2 to this Order and which 
are shown for illustration purposes shaded red on the plan annexed to Schedule 5 of the Order 
(the “Site 2 Plan”) or (b) from causing damage to Kingsbury (Site 2) or (c) removing equipment 
from Kingsbury (Site 2), without the consent of the First Claimant. 

5. The Second Defendants and each of them are forbidden from obstructing or otherwise interfering 
with the First Claimant’s access over the private access road on the land adjoining Kingsbury (Site 
2) (the "Site 2 Access Route"), which is shown for illustration purposes shaded blue on the Site 2 
Plan, for access and egress between Kingsbury (Site 2) and the public highway.

VARIATION OF THIS ORDER

6. Anyone served or notified of this Order may apply to the Court at any time to vary or discharge this 
Order or so much of it as affects that person but they must first give the Claimants' solicitors 48 
hours’ notice of such application. If any evidence is to be relied upon in support of the application 
the substance of it must be communicated in writing to the Claimants' solicitors at least 24 hours 
in advance of any hearing.

7. Any person applying to vary or discharge this Order must provide their full name and address, an 
address for service and must also apply to be joined as a named defendant to the proceedings at 
the same time.

8. The Claimants have liberty to apply to extend or vary this Order or to seek further directions.

RETURN DATE

9. A further return date hearing will be fixed for 20 April 2023 (the "Return Date") with a time estimate 
of 3 hours.

10. Permission for the Claimants to file and serve any further evidence by 4.30pm on 6 April 2023.

11. Permission for the Defendants to file and serve evidence by 4.30pm on 13 April 2023

INTERPRETATION OF THIS ORDER
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12. A Defendant who is ordered not to do something must not do it him/herself/themselves or in any 
other way. He/she/they must not do it through another acting on his/her/their behalf or on 
his/her/their instructions or with his/her/their encouragement.

SERVICE OF THIS ORDER

13. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), service of this Order and a note of the hearing 
on 20 April 2022, shall be effected as follows:

(a) Fixing copies thereof in clear transparent sealed containers at a minimum number of 2 
prominent locations on the perimeter of each of the Sites together with a notice which 
states that copies of the Order and a note of the hearing on 20 April 2022 may be obtained 
from the Claimants’ solicitors, Fieldfisher LLP, Riverbank House, 2 Swan Lane, London, 
EC4R 3TT (tel: 020 7861 4000) email: UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com via, and may be 
viewed at, the web link referred to in paragraph 13(b) of this Order;

(b) Posting the Order and a note of the hearing on 20 April 2022 at the following web link: 
https://ukop.azurewebsites.net;

(c) Fixing warning notices in the form set out in Schedules 6 and 7 as follows in not less than 
A2 size:

(i) In respect of Buncefield (Site 1) by affixing the form of site injunction notice (the 
"Site 1 Notice") in clearly visible locations (including at entranceways, access 
points, gates and attached to the perimeter fencing) around and comprising part 
of Buncefield (Site 1); and

(ii) In respect of Kingsbury (Site 2) by affixing the form of site injunction notice (the 
"Site 2 Notice") in clearly visible locations (including at entranceways, access 
points, gates and attached to the perimeter fencing) around and comprising part 
of Kingsbury (Site 2);

(d) Sending an email to each of the following email addresses with the information that copies 
of the Order and a note of the hearing on 20 April 2022 may be viewed at the web link 
referred to in paragraph 13(b) above:

(i) xr-legal@riseup.net;

(ii) juststopoil@protonmail.co.uk;

(iii) juststopoilpress@protonmail.com;

(iv) juststopoil@protonmail.com.

14. Pursuant to CPR 6.15(3), 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), the Order and a note of the hearing on 20 
April 2022 will be deemed to be served on the latest date on which all of the methods of service 
referred to above have been completed, such date to be verified by the completion of a certificate 
of service. 

15. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), the steps identified above shall stand as good 
service of the Order and a note of the hearing on 20 April 2022. 
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ALTERNATIVE SERVICE PROVISIONS FOR FUTURE APPLICATIONS BY THE CLAIMANTS IN THIS 
CLAIM

16. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), service of any future applications in this Claim 
by the Claimants and their evidence in support, shall be effected as follows:

(a) Fixing copies thereof in clear transparent sealed containers at a minimum number of 2 
prominent locations on the perimeter of each of the Sites together with a notice which 
states that copies of the documents may be obtained from the Claimants’ solicitors, 
Fieldfisher LLP, Riverbank House, 2 Swan Lane, London, EC4R 3TT (tel: 020 7861 4000) 
email: UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com via, and may be viewed at, the web link referred 
to in paragraph 16(b) of this Order;

(b) Posting copies of these documents at the following web link: 
https://ukop.azurewebsites.net;

(c) Sending an email to each of the following email addresses with the information that copies 
of the documents may be viewed at the web link referred to in paragraph 16(b) above:

(i) xr-legal@riseup.net;

(ii) juststopoil@protonmail.co.uk

(iii) juststopoilpress@protonmail.com

(iv) juststopoil@protonmail.com

17. Pursuant to CPR 6.15(3), 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), any documents served pursuant to the 
provision in paragraph 16 above will be deemed to be served on the latest date on which all of the 
methods of service referred to in paragraph 16 above have been completed in respect thereof, 
such date to be verified by the completion of a certificate of service. 

18. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), the steps identified in paragraph 16 above shall 
stand as good service (but this is without prejudice to whether the test in s.12(2)(a) of the Human 
Rights Act 1998 is satisfied at the date of hearing of any future application).  

COSTS

19. Costs reserved. 

COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE COURT

20. All communications about this Order should be sent to:

Court Manager
High Court of Justice
Chancery Division
Rolls Building
7 Rolls Building
Fetter Lane
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London
EC4A 1NL

The telephone number is 020 7947 7501. The offices are open weekdays 10.00 a.m. to 4.30 p.m.

Out of hours telephone number is 020 7947 6260

21. Name and address of the Claimants' legal representatives

Fieldfisher LLP 
Riverbank House
2 Swan Lane
London 
EC4R 3TT

Telephone: 020 7861 4000

Fax: 020 7488 0084

Out of hours telephone number: 07711 088057

Reference: OTD/UK01.000162.00301

This Order shall be served by the Claimants on the Defendants. The Court has provided a sealed copy of 
this Order to the Claimants at: 

Fieldfisher LLP
Riverbank House, 
2 Swan Lane, 
London 
EC4R 3TT

Reference: OTD/000162
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SCHEDULE 1

1. Witness Statement of Peter Davis dated 7 April 2022

2. Witness Statement of John Armstrong dated 7 April 2022

3. Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies dated 8 April 2022

4. Second Witness Statement of John Armstrong dated 14 April 2022

5. Second Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies dated 14 April 2022
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SCHEDULE 2

THE SITES

Buncefield (Site 1)

1. The freehold land at:

(a) Land and buildings on the south side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is 
registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485114 and marked 1 on the Site 1 
Plan;

(b) Land to the north of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is registered at the Land 
Registry under title number HD485115 and marked 2 on the Site 1 Plan;

(c) Land on the west side of Buncefield Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is registered at the 
Land Registry under title number HD485116 and marked 3 on the Site 1 Plan;

(d) Land on the north east and south west side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead 
registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485118 and marked 5 on the Site 1 
Plan;

2. The leasehold land at:

(a) Land on the north side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead, as more particularly 
described by a lease dated 23 September 2013 made between (1) Total UK Limited and 
(2) United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited which is registered at the Land Registry under 
title number HD529733 and marked 4 on the Site 1 Plan.

Kingsbury (Site 2)

3. The freehold land at:

(a) All that piece of land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick comprising 4.96 acres or 
thereabouts as more particularly described by a conveyance dated 31 March 1967 and 
made between (1) Shell-Mex and B.P. Limited and (2) United Oil Kingdom Pipelines 
Limited and marked 1 on the Site 2 Plan;

(b) Land on the south-east side of Trinity Road, Kingsbury, Tamworth which is registered at 
the Land Registry under title number WK468465 and marked 2 on the Site 2 Plan.

4. The leasehold land at:

(a) the Fire-Water Pond and the Lagoon being land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick, 
as more particularly described in a lease dated 3 November 2021 made between (1) 
Secretary of State for Defence and (2) United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited and marked 
3 on the Site 2 Plan.

(together, the "Sites")
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SCHEDULE 3

1. On the making of this Order, the Claimants undertake as follows: if the Court later finds that this 
Order has caused loss to the Defendants, and decides that the Defendants should be compensated 
for that loss, the Claimants will comply with any order the Court may make.     
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SCHEDULE 4

Plan of Buncefield (Site 1) ("Site 1 Plan")
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SCHEDULE 5

Plan of Kingsbury (Site 2) ("Site 2 Plan")
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SCHEDULE 6

SEE ATTACHED SITE 1 NOTICE
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SCHEDULE 7

SEE ATTACHED SITE 2 NOTICE
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No. PT-2022-000303

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES

PROPERTY TRUSTS AND PROBATE LIST

Before: The Honourable Mr Justice Rajah

Dated: 20 April 2023

B E T W E E N

(1) UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED

(2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Claimants / Applicants

and

(1) PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR 

THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING 
PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 

HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED  ON THE ATTACHED 
SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE 
(SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN)

First Defendants/Respondents

(2) PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED 
TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, 

OBSTRUCTING OR INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S ACCESS OVER PRIVATE 
ACCESS ROADS ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, 
HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 

PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR 
IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN)

Second Defendants/Respondents

___________________________________________________

ORDER AGAINST THE FIRST AND SECOND DEFENDANTS 

(COLLECTIVELY “THE DEFENDANTS”)

___________________________________________________
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PENAL NOTICE

IF YOU, THE DEFENDANTS, DISOBEY THIS ORDER YOU MAY BE HELD TO BE IN CONTEMPT OF 

COURT AND MAY BE IMPRISONED, FINED OR HAVE YOUR ASSETS SEIZED.

ANY OTHER PERSON WHO KNOWS OF THIS ORDER AND DOES ANYTHING WHICH HELPS OR 

PERMITS THE DEFENDANTS OR ANY OF THEM TO BREACH THE TERMS OF THIS ORDER MAY 

ALSO BE HELD TO BE IN CONTEMPT OF COURT AND MAY BE IMPRISONED, FINED OR HAVE 

THEIR ASSETS SEIZED.

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO THE DEFENDANTS

This Order prohibits you from doing certain acts. You should read this Order very carefully. You are advised 

to consult a solicitor as soon as possible.

If you disobey this Order you may be found guilty of contempt of court and you may be sent to prison or 

your assets seized. You have the right to apply to the Court to vary or discharge this Order (which is 

explained below).

RECITALS

FURTHER to the Orders of Peter Knox QC (sitting as Deputy High Court Judge) sealed on 12 April and 21 
April 2022

UPON the hearing of the Claimants’ Application dated 4 April 2023 

AND UPON hearing Katharine Holland KC and Yaaser Vanderman for the Claimants 

AND UPON READING the evidence recorded on the Court file (and set out in Schedule 1) as having been 
read  

AND UPON the Claimants giving and the Court accepting the undertakings listed in Schedule 3

AND UPON the Claimants acknowledging that they do not intend to prohibit any lawful protest outside any 
of the sites referred to in this Order and that this Order is not intended to prohibit such lawful protest

IT IS ORDERED THAT:

THE INJUNCTIONS

1. Until 20 October 2023, final determination of this claim or further order in the interim, whichever is 
the earlier: 

(a) BUNCEFIELD (SITE 1)
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(i) The First Defendants and each of them are forbidden from (a) entering or 
remaining upon the land or buildings described in and defined as "Buncefield 
(Site 1)" in Schedule 2 to this Order and which are shown for illustration purposes 
shaded red on the plan annexed to Schedule 4 of this Order (“the Site 1 Plan”), 
or (b) from causing damage to Buncefield (Site 1) or (c) removing equipment 
from Buncefield (Site 1), without the consent of the Claimants. 

(ii) The Second Defendants and each of them are forbidden from obstructing or 
otherwise interfering with the First Claimant’s access over the private access 
road on the land adjoining Buncefield (Site 1) (the "Site 1 Access Route"), which 
is shown for illustration purposes shaded blue on the Site 1 Plan, for access and 
egress between Buncefield (Site 1) and the public highway.

(b) KINGSBURY (SITE 2)

(i) The First Defendants and each of them are forbidden from (a) entering or 
remaining upon the land or buildings described in and defined as "Kingsbury 
(Site 2)" in Schedule 2 to this Order and which are shown for illustration purposes 
shaded red on the plan annexed to Schedule 5 of this Order (the “Site 2 Plan”) 
or (b) from causing damage to Kingsbury (Site 2) or (c) removing equipment from 
Kingsbury (Site 2), without the consent of the First Claimant. 

(ii) The Second Defendants and each of them are forbidden from obstructing or 
otherwise interfering with the First Claimant’s access over the private access 
road on the land adjoining Kingsbury (Site 2) (the "Site 2 Access Route"), which 
is shown for illustration purposes shaded blue on the Site 2 Plan, for access and 
egress between Kingsbury (Site 2) and the public highway.

VARIATION OF THIS ORDER

2. Anyone served or notified of this Order may apply to the Court at any time to vary or discharge this 
Order or so much of it as affects that person but they must first give the Claimants' solicitors 48 
hours’ notice of such application. If any evidence is to be relied upon in support of the application 
the substance of it must be communicated in writing to the Claimants' solicitors at least 24 hours 
in advance of any hearing.

3. Any person applying to vary or discharge this Order must provide their full name and address, an 
address for service and must also apply to be joined as a named defendant to the proceedings at 
the same time.

4. The Claimants have liberty to apply to extend or vary this Order or to seek further directions.

INTERPRETATION OF THIS ORDER

5. A Defendant who is ordered not to do something must not do it him/herself/themselves or in any 
other way. He/she/they must not do it through another acting on his/her/their behalf or on 
his/her/their instructions or with his/her/their encouragement.

SERVICE OF THIS ORDER

6. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), service of this Order shall be effected as follows:

(a) Posting the Order at the following web link: https://ukop.azurewebsites.net;
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(b) Fixing copies thereof in clear transparent sealed containers at a minimum number of 2 
prominent locations on the perimeter of each of the Sites;

(c) Fixing warning notices in the form set out in Schedules 6 and 7 as follows in not less than 
A2 size:

(i) In respect of Buncefield (Site 1) by affixing the form of site injunction notice (the 
"Site 1 Notice") in clearly visible locations (including at entranceways, access 
points, gates and attached to the perimeter fencing) around and comprising part 
of Buncefield (Site 1); and

(ii) In respect of Kingsbury (Site 2) by affixing the form of site injunction notice (the 
"Site 2 Notice") in clearly visible locations (including at entranceways, access 
points, gates and attached to the perimeter fencing) around and comprising part 
of Kingsbury (Site 2); and  

(d) Sending an email to each of the following email addresses with the information that copies 
of the Order may be viewed at the web link referred to in paragraph 6(a) above:

(i) xr-legal@riseup.net;

(ii) juststopoilpress@protonmail.com; 

(iii) info@juststopoil.org; and

(iv) juststopoil@protonmail.com.

7. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), the steps identified above shall stand as good 
service of the Order. For the avoidance of doubt, good service will have been effected once the 
initial posting, fixing and sending has taken place regardless of whether copies of the Order or 
warning notices are subsequently removed, for example, by the actions of third parties.

8. Pursuant to CPR 6.15(3), 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), the Order will be deemed to be served on 
the latest date on which all of the methods of service referred to above have been completed, such 
date to be verified by the completion of a certificate of service. 

ALTERNATIVE SERVICE PROVISIONS FOR FUTURE APPLICATIONS BY THE CLAIMANTS IN THIS 
CLAIM

9. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), service of any future applications in this Claim 
by the Claimants and their evidence in support, shall be effected as follows:

(a) Posting copies of these documents at the following web link: 
https://ukop.azurewebsites.net; and

(b) Sending an email to each of the following email addresses with the information that copies 
of the documents may be viewed at the web link referred to in paragraph 9(a) above:

(i) xr-legal@riseup.net;

(ii) juststopoilpress@protonmail.com; 

(iii) info@juststopoil.org; and

(iv) juststopoil@protonmail.com.
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10. Pursuant to CPR 6.15(3), 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), any documents served pursuant to the 
provision in paragraph 9 above will be deemed to be served on the latest date on which all of the 
methods of service referred to in paragraph 9 above have been completed in respect thereof, such 
date to be verified by the completion of a certificate of service. 

11. Pursuant to CPR 6.15, 6.27 and 81.4(2)(c) and (d), the steps identified in paragraph 9 above shall 
stand as good service.  

COSTS

12. Costs reserved. 

COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE COURT

13. All communications about this Order should be sent to:

Court Manager
The Business and Property courts of England and Wales
7 Rolls Building, Ground Floor/Counter 9
Fetter Lane
London
EC4A 1NL

The telephone number is 020 7947 6690. The public counters are open weekdays 10.00 a.m. to 4.30 p.m.

14. Name and address of the Claimants' legal representatives

Fieldfisher LLP 
Riverbank House
2 Swan Lane
London 
EC4R 3TT

Telephone: 0330 460 7000

Fax: 020 7488 0084

Out of hours telephone number: 07711 088057

Reference: OTD/UK01.000162.00301

This Order shall be served by the Claimants on the Defendants. The Court has provided a sealed copy of 
this Order to the Claimants at: 

Fieldfisher LLP
Riverbank House, 
2 Swan Lane, 
London 
EC4R 3TT

Reference: OTD/000162
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SCHEDULE 1

1. Witness Statement of Peter Davis dated 7 April 2022

2. Witness Statement of John Armstrong dated 7 April 2022

3. Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies dated 8 April 2022

4. Second Witness Statement of John Armstrong dated 14 April 2022

5. Second Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies dated 14 April 2022

6. Third Witness Statement of John Armstrong dated 5 April 2023

7. Second Witness Statement of Peter Davis dated 5 April 2023

8. Third Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies dated 14 April 2023
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SCHEDULE 2

THE SITES

Buncefield (Site 1)

1. The freehold land at:

(a) Land and buildings on the south side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is 
registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485114 and marked 1 on the Site 1 
Plan;

(b) Land to the north of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is registered at the Land 
Registry under title number HD485115 and marked 2 on the Site 1 Plan;

(c) Land on the west side of Buncefield Lane, Hemel Hempstead which is registered at the 
Land Registry under title number HD485116 and marked 3 on the Site 1 Plan;

(d) Land on the north east and south west side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead 
registered at the Land Registry under title number HD485118 and marked 5 on the Site 1 
Plan;

2. The leasehold land at:

(a) Land on the north side of Cherry Tree Lane, Hemel Hempstead, as more particularly 
described by a lease dated 23 September 2013 made between (1) Total UK Limited and 
(2) United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited which is registered at the Land Registry under 
title number HD529733 and marked 4 on the Site 1 Plan.

Kingsbury (Site 2)

3. The freehold land at:

(a) All that piece of land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick comprising 4.96 acres or 
thereabouts as more particularly described by a conveyance dated 31 March 1967 and 
made between (1) Shell-Mex and B.P. Limited and (2) United Oil Kingdom Pipelines 
Limited and marked 1 on the Site 2 Plan;

(b) Land on the south-east side of Trinity Road, Kingsbury, Tamworth which is registered at 
the Land Registry under title number WK468465 and marked 2 on the Site 2 Plan.

4. The leasehold land at:

(a) the Fire-Water Pond and the Lagoon being land at Kingsbury in the County of Warwick, 
as more particularly described in a lease dated 3 November 2021 made between (1) 
Secretary of State for Defence and (2) United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited which is 
registered at Land Registry under title number WK522590 and marked 3 on the Site 2 
Plan.

(together, the "Sites")
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SCHEDULE 3

On the making of this Order, the Claimants undertake as follows: if the Court later finds that this Order has 
caused loss to the Defendants, and decides that the Defendants should be compensated for that loss, the 
Claimants will comply with any order the Court may make.     
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SCHEDULE 4

Plan of Buncefield (Site 1) ("Site 1 Plan")
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SCHEDULE 5

Plan of Kingsbury (Site 2) ("Site 2 Plan")
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SCHEDULE 6

SEE ATTACHED SITE 1 NOTICE
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SCHEDULE 7

SEE ATTACHED SITE 2 NOTICE
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Party: Claimant 

Witness: John Michael Armstrong 

Number: Second 

Exhibit: UKOP5 

Dated: 14 April 2022 

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No.  PT-2022-000303 

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 

CHANCERY DIVISION 

B E T W E E N 

(1) UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

 (2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Claimants / Applicants 

and 
 

(1) PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION 
WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL 

CAMPAIGN, ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD 
OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED 

RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, 
WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

 

First Defendant / Applicant 

(2) PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO 
THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, OBSTRUCTING 

OR INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S ACCESS OVER PRIVATE ACCESS ROADS 
ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE 

(SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE 
KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION 

SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 
 

Second Defendant / Applicant 

 

___________________________________________________ 

SECOND WITNESS STATEMENT OF  

JOHN MICHAEL ARMSTRONG 

___________________________________________________ 
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I, John Michael Armstrong, of 5-7 Alexandra Road, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire will say as follows: 

1. I currently act as the Director and General Manager of British Pipeline Agency Limited ("BPA") 
and have held this role since 1 September 2021. I have worked for BPA since July 2020 and prior 
to becoming a Director and General Manager, I was the Chief Operating Officer of BPA. Prior to 
that, I enjoyed senior roles across distributed energy, power generation and engineering safety.  

2. BPA is the UK's leading provider of engineering and operational services to the oil and gas pipeline 
sector. It has operated UK onshore pipelines and terminal facilities for over 50 years, currently 
managing over 1000km of fuel pipes in the UK.  

3. I am duly authorised to make this witness statement on behalf of the Claimants. 

4. I make this statement from facts within my own knowledge, which I believe to be true.  Where I 
refer to matters not within my knowledge, I confirm that they are true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief, and I state the source of the information. 

5. Produced and shown to me is a bundle of documents containing exhibit "UKOP5". Unless 
otherwise stated, page references in this witness statement refer to pages in that exhibit.  

6. In this statement I adopt the definitions set out in my first witness statement dated 7 April 2022.  

THE RETURN DATE 

7. I make this witness statement in support of the Claimants' application for an order for pre-emptive 
injunctive relief in the terms set out in the draft Order. 

8. The purpose of this second witness statement, which supplements my first witness statement 
dated 7 April 2022, is to provide to the Court an update in respect of events following the grant of 
an interim order for pre-emptive injunctive relief in these proceedings made by Mr Peter Knox QC 
acting as a Deputy Judge in the Chancery Division following a hearing on 8 April 2022 (the 
"Order") and therefore addresses: 

(a) evidence of direct action targeted at the Claimants (in the vicinity of Site 1 and Site 2) 
since the making of the Order;  

(b) evidence of direct action targeted at other operators which has occurred since the date 
of the Order; and 

(c) evidence of direct action by members of Extinction Rebellion as part of a campaign of 
"civil disobedience" across the UK which has occurred since the date of the Order.    

DIRECT ACTION AT SITES 1 AND 2 

9. In my first witness statement dated 7 April 2022 I addressed in detail the direct action suffered by 
the Claimants in respect of Site 1, which direct action formed the basis for the Claimants seeking 
an interim order for pre-emptive injunctive relief in the form set out at paragraphs 1-5 of the Order. 

10. Since the date of the Order, there have been further incidents of direct action targeted at the 
operations of the Claimant (and other neighbouring operators) in close proximity to Site 1 and Site 
2. However, whilst the level of direct action at and around Sites 1 and 2 was significant between 
1 April 2022 and 7 April 2022, the Claimants have noted that such direct action has reduced in the 
week commencing 11 April 2022, which the Claimants attribute to: 
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(a) the service of the Order at the Sites and by email to the campaign groups Extinction 
Rebellion and Just Stop Oil; and 

(b) the stationing of a police presence at the top of Oil Road numbered 1 and shaded red on 
the Site 1 Plan and outside the entrance of the control centre numbered 1 and shaded 
red on the Site 2 Plan.  

11. To that end, I set out below examples of direct action since the Order was made, which are set 
out by reference to each of the Sites and which evidence has been obtained from three principal 
sources, namely: 

(a) daily reports from BPA security personnel working at the Sites which has been relayed 
to me;  

(b) various social media postings made or produced by, or on behalf of the campaign groups 
Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil; and 

(c) various newspaper articles which have appeared in the national press.  

DIRECT ACTION FROM DATE OF ORDER TO 13 APRIL 2022 

Site 1 (Buncefield) 

12. On 10 April 2022 it was reported by the local news that 40 members of Just Stop Oil blocked the 
entrance to the Buncefield Oil Terminal, of which Site 1 comprises part. Site 1 also includes private 
land up to the entranceway to Site 1 (which entranceway abuts the public highway). The 
blockading of the entranceway resulted in 13 arrests being made by police (Tab20:UKOP5:61-
65). I have been informed by BPA Security personnel working at Site 1 that the blockage began 
at 2.17am, preventing movement of vehicles though the entrance, which was closed by locked 
gates just as the individuals arrived. The individuals were cleared from the entranceway by 
11.11am the same day, almost 10 hours after the entrance was initially blocked, and so to allow 
vehicular movement to proceed again. 

13. A post on Just Stop Oil's twitter page on the same date (10 April 2022) quotes one of the members 
of the group who was on site as stating: "
government stops trading our lives for profit" (Tab20:UKOP5:66).  

Site 2 (Kingsbury) 

14. On 8 April 2022, being the date on which the Order was made, it was reported that 37 protestors 
had broken into the Kingsbury Oil Terminal (of which Site 2 comprises part) and chained 
themselves to pipes, bringing distribution to a halt. The protestors scaled a spiked fence and used 
a hacksaw to break through an unguarded rear gate into the Terminal, just after midnight 
(Tab20:UKOP5:122 125). The site of the trespass is approximately 0.2 miles from the land 
numbered 1 and shaded red on the Site 2 Plan, and the individuals would have had to pass the 
land numbered 1 and shaded red on the Site 2 Plan to access the land on which they were 
trespassing.  

15. On 10 April 2022, it was reported that Just Stop Oil protestors were able to gain access to part of 
the Kingsbury Oil Terminal of which Site 2 comprises part by digging a tunnel under Piccadilly 
Way. The protestors used a modified caravan to conceal the tunnel. The caravan was situated 
approximately 0.8 miles from the entrance cross roads to the land numbered 1 and shaded red on 
the Site 2 Plan (comprising the control centre) and in close proximity (approximately 0.2 miles) 
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from the land numbered 3 and shaded red on the Site 2 Plan (comprising the firewater pond) and 
the Site 2 Access Route shaded blue on the Site 2 Plan (Tab20:UKOP5:67). 

16. On the same day (10 April 2022) Warwickshire Police reported that 29 individuals had been 
arrested in connection with the disruption around Kingsbury Oil Terminal for various offenses 
including, criminal damage, conspiracy to cause criminal damage and conspiracy to commit public 
nuisance (Tab20:UKOP5:67). 

17. On 11 April 2022, Just Stop Oil issued a statement claiming that as of that morning, "a number of 
people [were] still occupying a tunnel under a major access route to the Kingsbury Oil terminal in 
Warwickshire, 40 hours after it was first excavated" (Tab20:UKOP5:68-72).  

EVIDENCE OF DIRECT ACTION TARGETED AT OTHER OPERATORS FROM DATE OF ORDER TO 
13 APRIL 2022 

18. Since the date of the Order, there continues to be related direct action at sites owned by other 
operators including: 

(a) a press release published on the Just Stop Oil website on 10 April 2022, indicated that 
campaigners have continued to "disrupt oil supplies from oil terminals in Warwickshire, 
Hertfordshire and Essex, marking the tenth day of action in support of their demand that 
the UK government end new oil and gas projects in the UK." The three sites referred to 
include the Kingsbury and Buncefield Terminals and the Gray's Inter Terminal in Essex. 
Just Stop Oil claims that direct action in these three sites has resulted in over 800 arrests 
with the group declaring their intention to "continue to block oil terminals until the 
government makes a statement that it will end new oil and gas projects in the UK" 
(Tab20:UKOP5:73-75); 

(b) at 6:30 am on 10 April 2022, it was reported that Just Stop Oil protestors entered the 
Gray's Inter Terminal in Essex, climbed the loading bay pipework and locked themselves 
onto the pipework (Tab20:UKOP5:76-78). Images of individuals lying on the pipework 
were posted by Just Stop Oil's twitter account along with statements indicating that "[t]his 
will stop when @10DowningStreet says they will #StopAllNewFossilFuelLicences!" and 
"[w]e will continue to disrupt until the govt makes a statement that it will end new oil & 
gas projects in the UK" (Tab20:UKOP5:79-80). These protests resulted in the temporary 
suspension of operations at the site with Just Stop Oil indicating that "40 students and 
young people have entered the Grays Inter terminal to cease works at the site"; 
(Tab20:UKOP5:81).  

(c) later that day (10 April 2022), it was reported that Essex Police had issued a statement 
describing the protests within the site as "exceptionally dangerous" (Tab20:UKOP5:82-
88); 

(d) on 11 April 2022, Just Stop Oil issued their own statement claiming that members of the 
group "accessed the Inter Terminal in Essex [yesterday] bringing production to a halt" 
(Tab20:UKOP5:68-72). The same statement indicated that, as of that morning, 12 
protestors remained locked onto the pipework at the site. 

19. It has been reported by the Sunday Times that direct action at these sites, and that referred to in 
my first witness statement, has resulted in the closure of approximately 1,200 garages across the 
south of England. It was reported that the Fair Fuel Campaign had stated that "1 in 3 garages 
have run dry of petrol and/or diesel particularly in the s  'stop oil'" 
(Tab20:UKOP5:91-99).  

EB2 Tab 56:
264

EB2 Tab 56:
264

EB2 Tab 63:
283-287

EB2 Tab 57:
265-267

EB2 Tab 58:
269-271

EB2 Tabs 59
and 64: 272 &
288

EB2 Tab 60:
273

EB2 Tab 61:
274-280

EB2 Tab 63:
283-287

-196-



 

103329411 v3 

20. Just Stop Oil have stated on their website that direct action "will continue to significantly impact on 
fuel availability at petrol pumps across the South East and the Midlands" (Tab20:UKOP5:73-75). 
Photographs of gas station closures and lengthy gas station queues are at (Tab20:UKOP5:89-
90), as reported by The Independent and the Mail Online.  

21. Just Stop Oil claimed on their website on 10 April 2022 that "[o]ver 400 people have joined actions 
that have succeeded in stopping operations for up to 24 hours at a time at 11 critical oil terminals 
that supply fuel to hundreds of petrol stations across the Midlands and South of England" 
(Tab20:UKOP5:68-72). 

EVIDENCE OF DIRECT ACTION BY MEMBERS OF EXTINCTION REBELLION  

22. I referred at paragraph 43 to 49 of my first witness statement to Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop 
Oil as being the two principal campaign groups that have directly targeted the Sites and from who 
further direct action was anticipated. Information relating to the respective campaign group's 
strategies is at Tab9:UKOP2:195 197 and Tab9:UKOP2:222-230. Both campaign groups are 
protesting to end the use of fossil fuels. However, since the date of the Order, direct action by 
Extinction Rebellion has been targeted at industries which members of the group consider to be 
affiliated to the fossil fuel industry as well as key transport hubs (in addition to the ongoing activities 
at oil terminals and infrastructure sites).  

23. Recent examples include:  

(a) on 10 April 2022, it was reported that Extinction Rebellion members forced the closure of 
Lambeth and Vauxhall bridges in central London. Protestors in Vauxhall Bridge laid out 
a banner which read: "FOR HEALTH'S SAKE STOP FINANCING FOSSIL FUELS". The 
bridges were eventually reopened after the Metropolitan Police imposed conditions under 
section 14 of the Public Order Act 1986 which enabled them to physically remove and, in 
some instances, arrest individuals on the bridge (Tab20:UKOP5:100-109); and 

(b) on 12 April 2022, it was reported that Extinction Rebellion members forced the closure of 
the world's biggest insurance market, Lloyd's of London, by preventing workers from 
entering the building with the intention of closing the business for the day 
(Tab20:UKOP5:110-114). Extinction Rebellion posted an article on their website, 
proclaiming that they have "
City of London" and demanding that Lloyd's "stop insuring fossil fuel companies and 
insure climate justice instead" (Tab20:UKOP5:115-121). 

SUMMARY 

24. I continue to believe that in the absence of further injunctive relief being granted by the Court in 
the terms sought, there is a real risk of imminent trespass and / or interference with the private 
access routes in relation to both Sites. The Claimants are making this Application in an effort to 
minimise the risk of a future trespass and / or interference occurring at each of the Sites.  

25. Furthermore, I consider that, whilst the campaign of "civil disobedience" across the UK by 
members of the Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil campaign groups is ongoing, the fact that 
there has been a reduction in incidents directly affecting Sites 1 and 2 since the date of the Order, 
is a direct consequence of the Order acting as an immediate deterrent and significantly reducing 
the risk of further direct action at the Sites.  

26. For the reasons set out in this statement and the further witness statements made in support of 
this Application, I respectfully request that the Court grants the further order sought by the 
Claimants.  
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Statement of Truth 

I believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true. 

I understand that proceedings for contempt of court may be brought against anyone who makes, or causes 
to be made, a false statement in a document verified by a statement of truth without an honest belief in its 
truth. 

14 April 2022__________ 

John Michael Armstrong  
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Party: Claimant 

Witness: Peter Malcolm Davis 

Number: Second 

Exhibit: UKOP7 

Dated: 5 April 2023 

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No.  PT-2022-000303 

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 

CHANCERY DIVISION 

B E T W E E N 

(1) UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

 (2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Claimants / Applicants 

and 
 

(1) PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION 
WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL 

CAMPAIGN, ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD 
OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED 

RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, 
WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

 

First Defendant / Respondent 

(2) PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO 
THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, OBSTRUCTING 

OR INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S ACCESS OVER PRIVATE ACCESS ROADS 
ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE 

(SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE 
KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION 

SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 
 

Second Defendant / Respondent 

 

___________________________________________________ 

SECOND WITNESS STATEMENT OF  

PETER MALCOLM DAVIS 

___________________________________________________ 
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I, Peter Malcolm Davis, of 5-7 Alexandra Road, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire will say as follows: 

1. I currently act as a Consultant on behalf of British Pipeline Agency Limited ("BPA") and have held 
this role since September 2021. I have worked for BPA for over thirty-five years and prior to 
becoming a consultant, I was a Director and General Manager of BPA.  

2. BPA is the UK's leading provider of engineering and operational services to the oil and gas pipeline 
sector. It has operated UK onshore pipelines and terminal facilities for over 50 years, currently 
managing over 1000km of fuel pipes in the UK.  

3. BPA acts as agent for the First Claimant United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited ("UKOP") and the 
Second Claimant West London Pipeline and Storage Limited ("WLPSL"), and it operates and 
maintains their UK based assets. 

4. I am duly authorised to make this witness statement on behalf of the Claimants. 

5. I make this statement from facts within my own knowledge, which I believe to be true.  Where I 
refer to matters not within my knowledge, I confirm that they are true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief, and I state the source of the information. 

6. Produced and shown to me is a bundle of documents containing exhibit "UKOP7". Unless 
otherwise stated, page references in this witness statement refer to pages in that exhibit.  

7. In this statement I adopt the definitions set out in my first witness statement dated 7 April 2022 
(the "First Witness Statement").  

CURRENT POSITION 

8. I make this statement in support of the Claimants' application for an order for pre-emptive injunctive 
relief in the terms set out in the draft Order. 

9. The purpose of this second witness statement, which supplements my First Witness Statement, 
is to provide to the Court with an update in respect of the Sites following the grant of an interim 
order for pre-emptive injunctive relief in these proceedings made by Mr Peter Knox KC acting as 
a Deputy High Court Judge in the Chancery Division following a hearing on 20 April 2022 (the 
"Order"). Whilst this second witness statement provides an update on these matters, which were 
addressed in my First Witness Statement, I otherwise confirm that the content of my first statement 
remains true and accurate.  

UPDATE ON SITE 1 

10.  At paragraph 41 of my First Witness Statement, I stated that: 

"The main entrance providing access to and egress from Site 1 is to the right of Oil Road 
at the bottom right of the Site 1 Plan which leads right onto Green Lane and then on to the 
M1. The main entrance is gated. These gates are set back from the visibility splay and 
need to be permanently open when the terminal is operational to allow for free flow of 
access and egress. There is a further entrance to Site 1 to the left of Oil Road at the bottom 
left of the Site 1 Plan which leads onto Buncefield Lane. This entrance is gated and the 
gates are permanently closed. There are various smaller site maintenance and emergency 
access routes off Cherry Tree Lane (also known as Three Cherry Trees Lane)." 

11. The main entrance providing access to and egress from Site 1 continues to be to the right of Oil 
Road at the bottom right of the Site 1 Plan which leads right onto Green Lane and then on to the 
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M1. However, the gates, which I refer to as being set back from the visibility splay, are going to 
shortly be relocated by BPA and will be repositioned at the edge of the visibility splay itself. It is 
anticipated that the works to relocate the gates will commence in the week of 17 April 2023 and 
will take up to two weeks to complete. I refer to the plan at UKOP7 page 2 indicating the current 
location of the gates, and where it is proposed that they will be positioned. The gates remain, and 
will remain once repositioned, permanently open when the terminal is operational to allow for free 
flow of access and egress. There has been no change to the remaining entrances or access 
arrangements to Site 1 which I refer to at paragraph 41 of my First Witness Statement. 

UPDATE ON SITE 2 

12. There is no update in relation to Site 2 and my evidence in respect of the Claimants' respective 
ownership, possession, control and rights in relation to Site 2 remains as per my First Witness 
Statement.  

 

Statement of Truth 

I believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true. 

I understand that proceedings for contempt of court may be brought against anyone who makes, or causes 
to be made, a false statement in a document verified by a statement of truth without an honest belief in its 
truth. 

Sig  

Peter Malcolm Davis  

EB1 Tab 11:
178
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Party: Claimant 

Witness: John Michael Armstrong 

Number: Third 

Exhibit: UKOP6 

Dated: 5 April 2023 

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No.  PT-2022-000303 

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 

CHANCERY DIVISION 

B E T W E E N 

(1) UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

 (2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Claimants / Applicants 

and 
 

(1) PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION 
WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL 

CAMPAIGN, ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD 
OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED 

RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, 
WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

 

First Defendant / Respondent 

(2) PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO 
THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, OBSTRUCTING 

OR INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S ACCESS OVER PRIVATE ACCESS ROADS 
ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE 

(SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE 
KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION 

SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 
 

Second Defendant / Respondent 

 

___________________________________________________ 

THIRD WITNESS STATEMENT OF  

JOHN MICHAEL ARMSTRONG 

___________________________________________________ 

 

-202-



110552597 v1 

I, John Michael Armstrong, of 5-7 Alexandra Road, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire will say as follows:

1. I currently act as the Director and General Manager of British Pipeline Agency Limited ("BPA") 
and have held this role since 1 September 2021. I have worked for BPA since July 2020 and prior 
to becoming a Director and General Manager, I was the Chief Operating Officer of BPA. Prior to 
that, I enjoyed senior roles across distributed energy, power generation and engineering safety. 

2. BPA is the UK's leading provider of engineering and operational services to the oil and gas pipeline 
sector. It has operated UK onshore pipelines and terminal facilities for over 50 years, currently 
managing over 1000km of fuel pipes in the UK.  

3. BPA acts as agent for the First Claimant United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited ("UKOP") and the 
Second Claimant West London Pipeline and Storage Limited ("WLPSL"), and it operates and 
maintains their UK based assets. 

4. I am duly authorised to make this witness statement on behalf of the Claimants. 

5. I make this statement from facts within my own knowledge, which I believe to be true.  Where I 
refer to matters not within my knowledge, I confirm that they are true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief, and I state the source of the information. 

6. Produced and shown to me is a bundle of documents containing exhibit "UKOP6". Unless 
otherwise stated, page references in this witness statement refer to pages in that exhibit.  

7. In this statement I adopt the definitions set out in my first witness statement dated 7 April 2022.  

CURRENT POSITION 

8. I make this statement in support of the Claimants' application for an order for pre-emptive injunctive 
relief in the terms set out in the draft Order. 

9. The purpose of this third witness statement, which supplements my first and second witness 
statements dated 7 April 2022 and 14 April 2022 respectively, is to provide to the Court with an 
update in respect of events following the grant of an interim order for pre-emptive injunctive relief 
in these proceedings made by Mr Peter Knox KC acting as a Deputy High Court Judge in the 
Chancery Division following a hearing on 20 April 2022 (the "Order") and therefore addresses: 

(a) evidence of direct action which has occurred in the vicinity of Site 1 and Site 2 since the 
making of the Order; 

(b) evidence of direct action targeted at other operators which has occurred since the date 
of the Order; and  

(c) evidence of direct action targeted at other organisations affiliated with the oil and gas 
sector which has occurred since the date of the Order. 

DIRECT ACTION IN THE VICINITY OF SITE 1 AND SITE 2 

10. In my first and second witness statements dated 7 April 2022 and 14 April 2022, I addressed in 
detail the direct action suffered by the Claimants in respect of Site 1 and the direct action targeted 
at the operations of the Claimants in close proximity to Site 1 and Site 2. This direct action formed 
the basis for the Claimants seeking an interim order for pre-emptive injunctive relief in the form set 
out at paragraphs 1 of the Order. 
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11. Since the date of the Order, there have been further incidents of direct action in close proximity to 
Site 2.  

12. I set out below examples of direct action that have occurred since the Order was made, and for 
which evidence has been obtained from three principal sources, namely: 

(a) reports from BPA security personnel working at the Sites which has been relayed to me;  

(b) various social media postings made or produced by, or on behalf of the campaign groups 
Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil and materials which have been published on their 
respective websites; and 

(c) various newspaper articles which have appeared in the national press. 

13. On 23 April 2022, a tunnel was discovered by police which had been dug under the road in the 
Trinity Road area next to the Kingsbury Oil Terminal. Police were forced to keep the road closed 
whilst the damage caused was assessed as it was reported that it may pose a risk for drivers. 
Warwickshire police reported that they had arrested seven people, including for criminal damage, 
in connection with the incident. On 25 April 2022, it was reported that two additional individuals 
who entered the Kingsbury Oil Terminal had also been arrested on suspicion of aggravated 
trespass and criminal damage UKOP6: pages 7-15. 

14. From 26 April 2022 to 28 April 2022, Just Stop Oil supporters protested outside the Kingsbury Oil 
Terminal. It was reported that Police warned protesters that they were breaching the Valero Order. 
However, protests persisted with people holding placards saying "oil is stealing my future"; "don't 
stop us  stop oil"; "we are breaking the injunction"; and "dangerous criminals." Protests continued 
for three days in spite of police warnings and, in total, 34 protesters were arrested UKOP6: pages 
16-31. 

15. On 4 May 2022, it was reported that 11 Just Stop Oil members were protesting outside Kingsbury 
Oil Terminal. Eight of the protesters attending were, it was reported, at the same time supposed 
to attend a full committal hearing at the Birmingham County Court for previous breaches of the 
NWBC Order but chose not to attend court, instead committing another breach of the injunction 
UKOP6: pages 32-33. 

16. On 15 May 2022, it was reported that two Extinction Rebellion supporters were being held on 
remand after breaching the NWBC Order at Kingsbury Oil Terminal. A tweet of the same date by 
Extinction Rebellion Birmingham stated that "2 Birmingham rebels are currently being held on 
remand until next Thursday for breaking an injunction and staging a peaceful protest at Kingsbury 
Oil Depot." Birmingham Live reported that protesters repeatedly said they see Kingsbury as a 
"legitimate target" UKOP6: pages 34-37. 

17. On 22 August 2022, it was reported that police had blocked off Trinity Road, being one of the main 
roads leading into Kingsbury Oil Terminal, as Just Stop Oil protesters had reportedly been digging 
under the road. This prevented traffic from passing through as the road was considered unsafe for 
use and police officers had to turn traffic away for almost an hour UKOP6: pages 38-39. 

18. On 24 August 2022, Fuel Oil News reported that around 50 protesters had staged demonstrations 
at Kingsbury, Grays and Thurrock Oil Terminals resulting in more than 20 arrests. About 30 
individuals targeted Grays and Thurrock, blocking a road leading to the Navigator oil terminal, with 
others occupying tunnels dug beneath terminal access roads. At Grays, a small group of protesters 
trespassed onto the site in the early hours, climbed up into the loading bays and then on up into 
pipework, where they attached themselves with glue. A specialist heights team were deployed by 
the police to remove them.  It was reported that there were about 20 people blocking access roads 
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to Kingsbury Oil Terminal with others occupying two tunnels near the Terminal. Just Stop Oil 
claimed that the tunnels resulted in a "total block of access" to Kingsbury Oil Terminal. Fuel Oil 
News, in the same news report, reported that the government estimated that Just Stop Oil's 
protests had cost police £5.9 million so far in 2022 UKOP6: pages 40-41. 

19. On 14 September 2022, Just Stop Oil supporters gathered with banners to block access to 
Kingsbury Oil Terminal by sitting in front of the main entrance. Protesters remained at the site for 
over five hours. It was reported that 51 protesters were arrested by Warwickshire Police following 
the incident for breaching the NWBC Order. In the BBC's report on the incident, a nearby local 
business owner, who operated a firm that ran fuel tankers in and out of the base, was quoted, 
stating that activists had previously "drilled the sidewalls of 364 tyres" on trucks, vans and cars at 
the terminal, a nearby truck works and another neighbouring deport with damages estimated at 
£184,000 UKOP6: pages 42-47. 

20. Notwithstanding the significant direct action listed above, I believe that such direct action has 
reduced since April 2022 due to the following factors: 

(a) the service of the Order at the Sites and by email to the campaign groups Extinction 
Rebellion and Just Stop Oil; 

(b) the deterioration in the weather during the winter months;  

(c) the existence of an injunction order made by Mr Justice Bennathan in the King's Bench 
Division dated 12 April 2022 in favour of Valero Energy Limited, Valero Logistics UK 
Limited and Valero Pembrokeshire Oil Terminal Limited (together, "Valero") and which 
protects a number of Valero's sites including land interests at Kingsbury Oil Terminal (of 
which Site 2 forms part) (the "Valero Order"). A copy of the Valero Order can be found 
at UKOP6: pages 48-84. A continuation of the injunction afforded by the Valero Order 
was granted by order of Mr Justice Soole on 20 January 2023, a copy of which can be 
found at UKOP6: pages 85-124; and 

(d) the existence of an injunction order made by Mr Justice Sweeting in the King's Bench 
Division dated 9 May 2022 in favour of the North Warwickshire Borough Council and 
which protects the locality of the Kingsbury Oil Terminal (of which Site 2 forms part) by 
placing restraints on the organisation of, or participation in, any protest against the 
production or use of fossil fuels at Kingsbury Oil Terminal (the "NWBC Order"). In 
particular, the NWBC Order gives a power of arrest outside the Kingsbury Oil Terminal 
and at the junctions of the roads leading into it. A copy of the NWBC Order can be found 
at UKOP6: pages 125-131. The NWBC Order remains in force as at the date of this 
witness statement. However, an application has been made to set aside the NWBC 
Order, which application I refer to at paragraph 56 below.   

21. If any of these factors were to be removed, I believe that the direct action would escalate.  

22. For example, whilst the Order has not prevented direct action entirely in the vicinity of the Sites, it 
appears to have provided a deterrent effect and, as such, continues to assist the Claimants in 
ensuring that they can conduct their operations at the Sites without risk of the significant practical, 
financial and logistical implications for the Claimants, many other third parties and potentially the 
UK economy, which would otherwise arise from direct action, not to mention the substantial health 
and safety risks that I refer to in paragraphs 20 to 42 of my first witness statement.  
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EVIDENCE OF DIRECT ACTION TARGETED AT OTHER OPERATORS AND AFFILIATED 
ORGANISATIONS FROM DATE OF ORDER TO 5 APRIL 2023 

23. Since the date of the Order, there continues to be related direct action at oil terminals and 
infrastructure sites owned by other operators. There has also been an escalation of activity 
targeted at industries and organisations that members of Extinction Rebellion and / or Just Stop 
Oil consider to be affiliated to the fossil fuel industry as well as key transport hubs.  

24. On 3 May 2022, protestors from the Just Stop Oil group entered and remained at the Nustar 
Clydebank facility in Scotland for 60 hours, in a bid to halt operations. Protestors climbed on top 
of tankers, locked themselves to the entrance and sat on pipes and silos. 31 people were arrested 
and charged in connection with the protests, 15 of which were charged for breach of the peace 
and 16 for trespass UKOP6: pages 132-134. 

25. On 3 July 2022, Just Stop Oil reported that its supporters had disrupted the British Grand Prix at 
Silverstone by invading the track and sitting down. The protestors needed to be removed by track 
officials and police and ITV news reported that six people were charged over the track invasion 
with conspiracy to cause public nuisance UKOP6: pages 135-138 and were found guilty after a 
trial on 10 February 2023 UKOP6: pages 139-141. It was reported that the jury found that the 
protesters were guilty of risking "serious harm" to Formula 1 drivers and it was also reported that 
footage released after the trial showed how close the cars had been to the protesters UKOP6: 
pages 142-144. 

26. On 19 July 2022, the News UK headquarters at London Bridge had their windows smashed by 
Extinction Rebellion protestors over their coverage of the UK heatwave. Protesters destroyed 
glass panels and hung posters next to entrances for journalists at the Sun and the Times reading 
"tell the truth" and "40 degrees = death" UKOP6: pages 145-146. 

27. On 20 July 2022, Just Stop Oil protestors climbed on the gantries in three separate locations on 
the M25 between junctions 10 and 30, causing significant disruption and the temporary closure of 
the M25 UKOP6: pages 147-149. 

28. On 23 August 2022, around 30 Just Stop Oil protesters were involved with a number of direct 
actions in Essex including: 

(a) establishing a roadblock on St Clements Way near Chafford Hundred railway station with 
five protesters also occupying tunnels underneath the road. Protesters aimed to block a 
"key tanker route" as part of their protests; 

(b) occupying the Grays oil terminal in Thurrock, with protesters blocking an access road 
leading to the terminal; and 

(c) protestors at height at an industrial site at Askew Farm Lane.  

Just Stop Oil were protesting the government's plans to allow additional oil and gas projects in the 
UK. Essex Police reported that they had arrested 23 people for various offences, while asking 
people to avoid the area. Police were also having to divert traffic to keep everyone safe and issued 
the following statement: "policing is not anti-protest, but we must intervene where there is a risk to 
life or where laws are being broken" UKOP6: pages 150-154. 

29. On 28 August 2022, supporters of Just Stop Oil blocked an oil tanker on a key route to and from 
the Navigator terminal in Essex. The group claimed they were aiming to block St Clements Way, 
Grays, as a key delivery route from the terminal. Nearly 10 people stopped a tanker, one protester 
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climbed on top of the tanker while others deflated the tyres. Essex Police arrested eight people as 
a result of the protests UKOP6: pages 155-157. 

30. On 4 September 2022, BBC News reported that Just Stop Oil protesters had left a tunnel under 
St Clements Way in Grays after 13 days protesting what they consider is government inaction over 
climate change. The police issued the following statement regarding the protest activity: "over the 
course of the last fortnight we have made more than 60 arrests and worked hard with our partners 
to keep disruption to our local community and business to a minimum and keep Essex moving
This work has required a huge amount of resources and has diverted officers from other duties 
such as the prevention and investigation of burglary, robbery, sexual and violent crime" UKOP6: 
pages 158-159. 

31. Just Stop Oil staged 32 days of disruption from the end of September and throughout October 
2022, which, according to the Metropolitan Police, resulted in 677 arrests and 111 protestors 
charged. Officers were also forced to work 9438 extra shifts to tackle the disruption. The aim of 
the disruption was reported as being to force the government to halt all oil and gas licences 
UKOP6: pages 160-162. Actions included the following: 

(a) on 1 October 2022, supporters of Just Stop Oil blocked Waterloo, Westminster, Lambeth 
and Vauxhall bridges in sit-down protests UKOP6: pages 163-166; 

(b) on 7 October 2022, in what was reported as being in response to the government opening 
up a new licensing round to allow oil and gas companies to explore for fossil fuels in the 
North Sea, Just Stop Oil campaigners blocked roads leading to Vauxhall Bridge. This 
followed six days of disruption to central London roads. Protestors vowed to "occupy 
Westminster" with daily roadblocks until there is a moratorium on new oil and gas projects 
UKOP6: pages 167-168; 

(c) on 14 October 2022, Just Stop Oil protestors threw tomato soup on Vincent van Gogh's 
Sunflowers painting at the National Gallery in London and then glued themselves to the 
wall underneath the artwork (UKOP6: pages 169-171) and on the same day spray-
painted New Scotland Yard and blocked traffic on the road outside (UKOP6: pages 172-
177); 

(d) on 16 October 2022, the Telegraph reported that Just Stop Oil members had sprayed 
orange paint over an Aston Martin showroom in central London and had sat in Park Lane 
in central London, some gluing themselves to the tarmac or locking themselves together 
UKOP6: pages 178-179; 

(e) on 17 October 2022, two Just Stop Oil supporters climbed the Queen Elizabeth II 
suspension bridge at the Dartford Crossing and unfurled a banner, forcing the police to 
stop traffic from entering the bridge UKOP6: pages 180-182;  

(f) on 18 October 2022, two Just Stop Oil protestors disrupted oil supplies to Kent and the 
South East for 36 hours by blocking the Dartford Crossing and climbing up the Queen 
Elizabeth II Bridge which resulted in the closure of the bridge and major traffic delays  
UKOP6: pages 183-190; 

(g) on 20 October 2022, Just Stop Oil supporters sprayed orange paint on the outside of the 
Harrods building and disrupted traffic in Knightsbridge by sitting on and gluing themselves 
to the road carrying banners. Just Stop Oil stated "This is not a one day event, expect us 
every day and anywhere. This is an act of resistance against a criminal government and 
their genocidal death project. Our supporters will be returning  today, tomorrow and the 
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next day  and the next day after that  and every day until our demand is met: no new 
oil and gas in the UK" UKOP6: pages 191-193;  

(h) on 24 October 2022, two Just Stop Oil protestors defaced the waxwork model of King 
Charles III in Madame Tussauds UKOP6: pages 194-196; and   

(i) on 26 October 2022, Just Stop Oil activists sprayed paint over the Ferrari and Bentley 
showrooms in central London UKOP6: pages 197-199.  

32. On 31 October 2022, it was reported that Just Stop Oil activists had targeted News UK's 
headquarters as well as buildings used by MI5, the Home Office and the Bank of England by 
spraying them with orange paint. It was reported that the group said the buildings were chosen as 
they represented "the four pillars that support and maintain the power of the fossil fuel economy" 
UKOP6: pages 200-202. The Metropolitan Police reported six arrests for criminal damage on the 
day UKOP6: pages 203-205. Following these actions, it was reported that the total number of 
arrests of Just Stop Oil protestors made in October 2022 came to nearly 650 UKOP2: pages 206-
210 and since April 2022 to around 1900 UKOP6: pages 211-216. 

33. On 1 November 2022, members of Just Stop Oil glued themselves to the road outside Downing 
Street to prevent access, whilst others tried to climb the gates to Downing Street UKOP6: pages 
218-221. 

34. On 7 November 2022, members of Just Stop Oil shut down parts of the M25 for four days by 
climbing gantries above the motorway in at least six different locations. The Metropolitan Police 
said it had arrested 63 suspects in a "major operation to tackle serious disruption" and Sky and 
ITV news reported that 58 people had been charged. It was reported that whilst a rolling roadblock 
was being implemented to help ease existing traffic, two lorries collided and a police officer was 
knocked off his bike and injured UKOP6: pages 221-238. 

35. On 14 November 2022, Extinction Rebellion members targeted over 100 Barclays bank branches 
in England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland. Protestors smashed windows, threw fake oil 
and red paint over buildings, locked themselves to buildings, leafletted and held 'die-ins' and street 
theatre UKOP6: pages 239-245. Multiple media outlets reported a number of arrests across 
different cities including London, Birmingham, Glasgow, Cardiff and Belfast amongst others 
UKOP6: pages 246-253. 

36. On 21 November 2022, Extinction Rebellion supporters targeted a number of offices in central 
London as part of a co-ordinated direct action. Black paint and fake oil were thrown over buildings, 
protestors glued themselves to windows, a fire was lit and fake blood poured on the pavement 
outside businesses. It was reported that the offices were targeted because they were believed to 
have links to the fossil fuel industry. The Metropolitan Police reported that 15 protesters were 
arrested on suspicion of criminal damage or conspiracy to commit criminal damage. The offices 
targeted included: (UKOP6: pages 254-259) 

(a) INEOS; 

(b) Schlumberger; 

(c) BP; 

(d) Eversheds Sutherland; 

(e) JP Morgan; 
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(f) The International Maritime Organisation; 

(g) The Institute of Economic Affairs; 

(h) Department for (BEIS); and 

(i) Ontario Teachers Pension Plan. 

37. On 18 January 2023, Extinction Rebellion activists threw black paint outside the Home Office, 
reportedly in protest of the Government's decision to approve a new coal mine in Cumbria. 
Protesters poured the black paint, which resembled crude oil, out of plastic buckets marked "End 
Coal", while two of the activists attached themselves together with a large tube. Two 
demonstrators also set off flares and others held signs reading "cut the ties to fossil fuels." The 
Metropolitan Police were called to the Home Office to disperse the group where they arrested two 
men on suspicion of causing criminal damage UKOP6: pages 260-261.  

38. On 14 February 2023, Extinction Rebellion activists blockaded entrances to Luton Airport's private 
jet terminals in a Valentine's Day protest dubbed "love in action." This was part of a co-ordinated 
action by activists in 11 countries targeting sites across Europe, Australia, New Zealand and the 
US. Protesters locked themselves to metal barrels and blockaded entrances to the airport's 
Harrods Aviation and Signature private jet terminal carrying large signs. They also parked a boat 
in front of the gates to the private terminal, with some activists attaching themselves to it UKOP6: 
pages 262-266. On the same day Just Stop Oil supporters delivered an ultimatum to the Prime 
Minister, warning that if the government does not halt licencing any new fossil fuels by 10 April it 
would face escalating disruption UKOP6: page 267. 

39. On 17 February 2023, Extinction Rebellion protesters occupied two buildings at the University of 
Cambridge. Protesters climbed up to a balcony on the Department of Engineering building 
attaching a banner with the message "University of Cambridge: Funded by fossil fuels" while letting 
off smoke flares. Other protesters also staged a demonstration in the foyer of the Department of 
Chemical Engineering, holding dinosaur banners and drawing pictures UKOP6: pages 268-270.  

40. On 20 February 2023, Extinction Rebellion protesters targeted London Fashion Week. 30 
protesters attended 180 the Strand where the fashion show sponsored by Coca-Cola was being 
staged and poured black paint on the red carpet while setting off smoke bombs. Protesters held 
banners outside the event which read: "cut the ties to fossil fuels" and "Coca-Cola: World's top 
plastic polluter." This action came as part of Extinction Rebellion's 'Cut the Ties to Fossil Fuels' 
campaign which will see a major protest staged in Westminster on April 21 UKOP6: pages 271-
274. 

41. On 2 March 2023, Extinction Rebellion protestors threw pink paint over the UK Finance building 
and plastered a large sticker reading "corrupt" on the window of the building to highlight how the 
financial system "prioritises profit over people and the planet" UKOP6: pages 275-278. 

42. On 18 March 2023, Just Stop Oil protesters blocked traffic in Bristol as part of a demonstration to 
"demand that ministers stop investing in fossil fuel extraction" UKOP6: pages 279-283. 

43. On 22 March 2023, Extinction Rebellion protestors, armed with fire extinguishers, spray-painted 
the offices of the Sun, Daily Mail and Telegraph in London. They said the protests were about 
"suppression of truth on the climate crisis" UKOP6: pages 284-285.  

44. On 25 March 2023, Just Stop Oil staged a march in Leeds demanding "an end to fossil fuel lending 
by banks" and covered a Barclays bank with orange paint  in the city centre, UKOP6: pages 286-
287.  
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STATEMENTS FROM EXTINCTION REBELLION AND JUST STOP OIL 

45. On 1 January 2023, Extinction Rebellion published a statement indicating that they would 
"temporarily shift away from public disruption as a primary tactic" and instead would "disrupt the 
abuse of power and imbalance" by prioritising "attendance over arrest and relationships over 
roadblocks" UKOP6: pages 288-291.  

46. The statement is suggestive of a shift in strategy and tactics of the group. However, subsequent 
actions taken by the group, as referred to at paragraphs 37 to 41 and 43 above, indicate that 
Extinction Rebellion is continuing to target companies and organisations which are affiliated to the 
oil and gas industry with unlawful direct action. In any event, even if accurate, the statement only 
refers to a temporary shift away from public disruption, meaning that it may resume at any stage.  

47. In relation to Just Stop Oil, according to their website, its requirements are that the UK government 
makes a statement that it will immediately halt all future licensing and consents for the exploration, 
development and production of fossil fuels in the UK methods for achieving this include 

ntil that demand has been met. Just Stop Oil stated that if that 
demand was not met by 14 March 2022 that it would "take part in Non-Violent Direct Action 

" and on 3 October 2022, Just Stop Oil declared that 
they would continue with their campaign of non-violent civil resistance until the government 
commits to end new oil This is not a one-day event, this is an act of resistance 
against a criminal government and their genocidal death project. Our supporters will be returning 

 today  tomorrow- and the next day  and the next day after that  and every day until our 
demand is met  no new oil and gas in the UK UKOP6: pages 292-295.  

48. On 28 October 2022 Just Stop Oil  On 1 
we will escalate our legal disruption against this treasonous Govt

 UKOP6: page 296. 

49. A  Just Stop Oil press release of 7 December 2022 states Six weeks of continuous disruption 
and civil resistance by supporters of Just Stop Oil during October and November resulted in over 
700 arrests. Since the campaign began on April 1st, Just Stop Oil supporters have been arrested 
over 2,000 times, with 25 supporters currently in prison" UKOP6: pages 297-299. Similar press 
releases can be found at UKOP6: pages 300-314. These are not protests that relate to the 
Claimants' Sites, but together with the examples set out at paragraphs 23-44 above, are strong 
evidence of the continuance of Just Stop Oil's campaign of civil resistance and disruption.  

50. Furthermore, in response to the statement by Extinction Rebellion on 1 January 2023, in a 
statement given to the Guardian newspaper and published online on 2 January 2023, a Just Stop 
Oil barrelling down the 
highway to the loss of ordered civil society, as extreme weather impacts tens of millions, as our 

 UKOP6: pages 315-316.    

51. Just Stop Oil's website continues to state that we will not be intimidated by changes to the law, 
we will not be stopped by private injunctions sought to silence peaceful people. Our supporters 
understand that these are irrelevant when set against mass starvation, slaughter, the loss of our 
rights, freedoms and communities" UKOP6: pages 317-319. Prominent on the website is the 
statement that what we do over the next 3 to 4 years, I believe is going to determine the future of 
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 suggesting that their campaign will be sustained for at least this period UKOP6: page 
292.  

52. The materials that have been published on Just Stop Oil's website as well as the group's social 
media channels would indicate that oil and gas companies remain the target of their campaign, 
and there therefore remains a risk to the Claimants' sites which the order in the terms sought 
would protect against. Furthermore, whilst Extinction Rebellion's most recent activities would 
suggest that there hasn't been the scaling back of unlawful direct action which their statement of 
1 January 2023 would appear to suggest, in any event, there is a well documented overlap in the 
memberships of both groups (UKOP6: pages 320-336 and 341-348). As such, it cannot be 
discounted that members of Extinction Rebellion will participate in Just Stop Oil's campaign of civil 
resistance.  

SUMMARY/ FURTHER RISK OF DIRECT ACTION 

53. Since the events mentioned in my previous witness statement there has been frequent and 
significant direct action undertaken by Just Stop Oil and Extinction Rebellion, the scale of which 
appears to be escalating and in relation to which, given the nature of the campaigns, there is no 
discernible end date.  

54. Both campaign groups are well supported and continue to mobilise their supporters. For example, 
on 11 January 2023, Extinction Rebellion launched their '100 Days' campaign which they called 
"the biggest mobilisation campaign XR has ever undertaken." Extinction Rebellion supporters 
dropped a banner from Westminster Bridge to launch the campaign, marking the 100 day 
countdown to "The Big One" on 21 April 2023 where the group will bring 100,000 people to 
Westminster UKOP6: pages 337-340. The ticker count for the event on Extinction Rebellion's 
home page as at 5 April 2023 showed around 23,500 people to be attending UKOP6: page 349.   

55. Given the importance of the Sites covered by the current Order,  Just Stop Oil's stated commitment 
to continuing its campaign and the highly disruptive and inherently dangerous effect of Just Stop 
Oil and Extinction Rebellion's protests, I therefore continue to believe that in the absence of further 
injunctive relief being granted by the Court in the terms sought, there is a real risk of imminent 
trespass on the Sites and / or interference with the private access routes in relation to both Sites. 
The Claimants are making this Application in an effort to minimise the risk of a future trespass and 
/ or interference occurring at each of the Sites.  

56. The fact that the number of incidents in the vicinity of the Claimants' Sites has decreased in 
number and regularity, particularly in comparison to the severity of the activity in April 2022, is a 
consequence of a number of factors which I refer to at paragraph 20 above, including the Order 
acting as an immediate deterrent, along with other High Court orders such as the NWBC Order. 
However, on 15 March 2023, North Warwickshire Borough Council issued a statement indicating 
that a person claiming to be connected to Extinction Rebellion has now applied to the High Court 
to set aside the NWBC Order, arguing that it is a breach of human rights UKOP6: pages 350-
351. The Council has now also made an application to the Court asking it to make the following 
orders: 

(a) to list the case for a full hearing so that the Court can decide whether to make a final 
order; 

(b) to add 139 people who have been arrested as named Defendants; 

(c) to allow the Council to serve copies of the application by alternative means; and 

(d) to dismiss the application to set aside the NWBC Order. 
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57. It is indicated that the Court hearing for these applications is likely to take place at the High Court 
in Birmingham but, as at the date of this witness statement, the date of the hearing has not yet 
been published.  

58. The Claimants currently enjoy the benefit of the double protection afforded by the Order and the 
NWBC Order in relation to Site 2, and whilst the Claimants are hopeful that the application to set 
aside the NWBC Order will be unsuccessful, the Claimants cannot rely on the protection afforded 
by the NWBC Order continuing, and which makes it even more critical that the protection afforded 
by the Order remains in place.  

For the reasons set out in this statement and the further witness statement made in support of this 
Application, I respectfully request that the Court grants the order sought by the Claimants.  

Statement of Truth 

I believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true. 

I understand that proceedings for contempt of court may be brought against anyone who makes, or causes 
to be made, a false statement in a document verified by a statement of truth without an honest belief in its 
truth. 

Signed: __________ 

John Michael Armstrong  
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE Claim No.  PT-2022-000303 

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY COURTS OF ENGLAND AND WALES 

CHANCERY DIVISION 

B E T W E E N 

(1) UNITED KINGDOM OIL PIPELINES LIMITED 

 (2) WEST LONDON PIPELINE AND STORAGE LIMITED 

Claimants / Applicants 

and 
 

(1) PERSONS UNKNOWN ENTERING OR REMAINING WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION 
WITH OR AFFILIATED TO THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL 

CAMPAIGN, ON LAND AND BUILDINGS AT AND COMPRISING PART OF (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL 
TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED 

ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, 
WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED RED ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 

 

First Defendant / Respondent 

(2) PERSONS UNKNOWN WITHOUT CONSENT, AND IN CONNECTION WITH OR AFFILIATED TO 
THE EXTINCTION REBELLION CAMPAIGN OR THE JUST STOP OIL CAMPAIGN, OBSTRUCTING 

OR INTERFERING WITH THE FIRST CLAIMANT'S ACCESS OVER PRIVATE ACCESS ROADS 
ADJACENT TO (A) THE BUNCEFIELD OIL TERMINAL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTFORDSHIRE 

(SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 1 PLAN) (B) THE 
KINGSBURY OIL TERMINAL, KINGSBURY, WARWICKSHIRE (SHOWN FOR IDENTIFICATION 

SHADED BLUE ON THE ATTACHED SITE 2 PLAN) 
 

Second Defendant / Respondent 

___________________________________________________ 

FOURTH WITNESS STATEMENT OF  

JOHN MICHAEL ARMSTRONG 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Party: Claimant 

Witness: John Michael Armstrong

Number: Fourth 

Exhibit: UKOP9 

Dated: 6 July 2023 
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I, John Michael Armstrong, of 5-7 Alexandra Road, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire, will say as follows: 

1. I currently act as the Director and General Manager of British Pipeline Agency Limited ("BPA") and 
have held this role since 1 September 2021. I have worked for BPA since July 2020 and prior to 
becoming a Director and General Manager, I was the Chief Operating Officer of BPA. Prior to that, 
I enjoyed senior roles across distributed energy, power generation and engineering safety.  

2. BPA is the UK's leading provider of engineering and operational services to the oil and gas pipeline 
sector. It has operated UK onshore pipelines and terminal facilities for over 50 years, currently 
managing over 1000km of fuel pipes in the UK.  

3. BPA acts as agent for the First Claimant United Kingdom Oil Pipelines Limited ("UKOP") and the 
Second Claimant West London Pipeline and Storage Limited ("WLPSL"), and it operates and 
maintains their UK based assets. 

4. I am duly authorised to make this witness statement on behalf of the Claimants. 

5. I make this statement from facts within my own knowledge, which I believe to be true.  Where I 
refer to matters not within my knowledge, I confirm that they are true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief, and I state the source of the information. 

6. Produced and shown to me is a bundle of documents containing exhibit "UKOP9". Unless 
otherwise stated, page references in this witness statement refer to pages in that exhibit.  

7. Unless otherwise stated, in this statement I adopt the definitions set out in my first witness 
statement dated 7 April 2022. 

CURRENT POSITION 

8. I make this statement in support of the Claimants' application for summary judgment to obtain an 
order for final injunctive relief in the terms set out in the draft order. 

9. The purpose of this third witness statement, which supplements my first, second and third witness 
statements dated 7 April 2022, 14 April 2022 and 5 April 2023 respectively (the "Previous Witness 
Statements"), is to provide to the Court with an update in respect of events following the grant of 
an interim order for injunctive relief in these proceedings made by the Honourable Mr Justice Rajah 
following a hearing on 20 April 2023 (the "Order") and therefore addresses: 

(a) evidence of direct action which has occurred in the vicinity of Site 1 and Site 2 since the 
making of the Order; 

(b) evidence of direct action targeted at other operators which has occurred since the date of 
my witness statement dated 5 April 2023; and  

(c) evidence of direct action by Just Stop Oil and Extinction Rebellion, including where such 
action has targeted other organisations affiliated with the oil and gas sector which has 
occurred since the date of the Order. 

DIRECT ACTION IN THE VICINITY OF SITE 1 AND SITE 2 

10. In my first and second witness statements dated 7 April 2022 and 14 April 2022, I addressed in 
detail the direct action suffered by the Claimants in respect of Site 1 and the direct action targeted 
at the operations of the Claimants in close proximity to Site 1 and Site 2. This direct action formed 
the basis for the Claimants seeking an interim order for pre-emptive injunctive relief.  
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11. In my third witness statement dated 5 April 2023, I addressed the further incidents of direct action 
in close proximity to Site 2 since the date of the order for pre-emptive injunctive relief made by Mr 
Peter Knox KC acting as a Deputy High Court Judge in the Chancery Division following a hearing 
on 20 April 2022 (the "April 2022 Order").  

12. Since the date of the Order, there has been no further direct action at, or in the vicinity of, Site 1 
and Site 2. However, I believe that the reduction in direct action is due to a number of factors which 
I refer to at paragraph 20 in my third witness statement dated 5 April 2023, including: 

(a) the service of the April 2022 Order and the Order at the Sites and by email to the campaign 
groups Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil; 

(b) the April 2022 Order and the Order providing a deterrent effect. For example, in response 
to a member of the public tweeting:  

"They are in the wrong place. Outside oil refineries would be the right place to 
protest. Then of course they would not get the publicity they crave. Stopping 
workers only make their protest null and void."  

on 9 June 2023 at 10.20am Just Stop Oil tweeted: 

"Do you know what happens if you protest outside oil refineries now? Oil 
companies have bought injunctions to ban people from taking action at refineries, 
distribution hubs, even petrol stations. Punishments for breaking injunctions 
range from unlimited fines to imprisonments"  

Extinction Rebellion UK retweeted the above tweet on 9 June 2023 UKOP9: page 8;  

(c) the continuing existence of an injunction order made by Mr Justice Soole on 20 January 
2023 in favour of Valero Energy Limited, Valero Logistics UK Limited and Valero 
Pembrokeshire Oil Terminal Limited (together, "Valero") and which protects a number of 
Valero's sites including land interests at Kingsbury Oil Terminal (of which Site 2 forms 
part) (the "Valero Order"). A copy of the Valero Order can be found at UKOP6: pages 
85-124; and 

(d) the continuing existence of an injunction order made by Mr Justice Sweeting in the King's 
Bench Division dated 9 May 2022 in favour of the North Warwickshire Borough Council 
and which protects the locality of the Kingsbury Oil Terminal (of which Site 2 forms part) 
by placing restraints on the organisation of, or participation in, any protest against the 
production or use of fossil fuels at Kingsbury Oil Terminal (the "NWBC Order"). In 
particular, the NWBC Order gives a power of arrest outside the Kingsbury Oil Terminal 
and at the junctions of the roads leading into it. A copy of the NWBC Order can be found 
at UKOP6: pages 125-131. The NWBC Order remains in force as at the date of this 
witness statement. However, an application has been made to set aside the NWBC Order, 
which application I refer to at paragraph 49 below.   

13. If any of these factors were to be removed, I believe that the direct action would escalate.  

14. The deterrent effect provided by the Order continues to assist the Claimants in ensuring that they 
can conduct their operations at the Sites without risk of the significant practical, financial and 
logistical implications for the Claimants, many other third parties and potentially the UK economy, 
which would otherwise arise from direct action, not to mention the substantial health and safety 
risks that I refer to in paragraphs 20 to 42 of my first witness statement.  
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EVIDENCE OF DIRECT ACTION BY JUST STOP OIL AND EXTINCTION REBELLION, INCLUDING 
TARGETING OF OTHER OPERATORS AND AFFILIATED ORGANISATIONS FROM 5 APRIL 2023 TO 
6 JULY 2023 

15. Since the date of the Order, there continues to be activity targeted at industries and organisations 
that members of Extinction Rebellion and / or Just Stop Oil consider to be affiliated to the oil and 
gas industries.  

16. On 24 April 2023, Just Stop Oil announced a new campaign involving disruption across central 
London by marching slowly on major roads as part of an "indefinite campaign of civil resistance to 
demand an end to new UK oil and gas projects" UKOP9: pages 9-10  

17. On 12 June 2023, the Metropolitan Police confirmed that there had been 156 slow marches since 
the end of April, with 86 arrests and 49 charges made UKOP9: pages 11-12. As of 6 July 2023, 
Just Stop Oil supporters have completed up to seven marches a day, six days a week since the 
campaign commenced on 24 April 2023, causing disruption and blockage to traffic on major roads 
across London (UKOP9: pages 13-152) including: 

(a) On 3 May 2023, 55 Just Stop Oil supporters began marching at The Shell Centre on 
London's South Bank aiming for Parliament Square. The police served a notice under 
section 12 of the Public Order Act 1986 (a "section 12 notice") on the protesters UKOP9: 
pages 21-25. I understand a section 12 notice is served where a senior police officer 
gives directions such as conditions on public processions as necessary where they 
reasonably believe there could be, for example, serious public disorder, serious damage 
to property or serious disruption to the life of the community; 

(b) On 11 May 2023, around 41 supporters set off marching down the Strand. After police 
threatened public order notices, they briefly moved to the pavement, before returning to 
the road at Parliament Square, where police subsequently arrested around 13 supporters 
UKOP9: pages 30-31; 

(c) On 23 May 2023, 45 supporters marched through three major London routes, being on 
Blackfriars Bridge, London Bridge and Tower Bridge. This caused major disruption delays 
for road users, including commuters, and police issued public order notices on all three 
groups of participating protesters UKOP9: pages 44-45; 

(d) On 24 May 2023, 39 Just Stop Oil protesters marched on roads in Islington, Marylebone 
and the City of London. A section 12 notice was served and six protesters were arrested 
for remaining on the road in breach of this notice UKOP9: pages 46-49; 

(e) On 29 May 2023, 31 Just Stop Oil supporters marched down Upper Street in Islington, 41 
supporters marched down Holloway Road in Islington and 9 supporters disrupted traffic 
outside Wimbledon Magistrates Court. It was reported that supporters were acting in 
solidarity with the  protesters charged following the events at the Rugby Premiership final 
on 27 May 2023, as referred to at paragraph 28 below UKOP9: pages 54-55; 

(f) On 30 May 2023, police served section 12 conditions on Just Stop Oil demonstrators 
causing disruption and forcing traffic to a crawl during rush hour by marching on Waterloo 
Bridge, Tower Bridge, London Bridge and Blackfriars Bridge UKOP9: pages 56-59;  

(g) On 1 June 2023, around 50 Just Stop Oil supporters marched in five groups on roads 
around Hyde Park and Battersea Park and a smaller group walking on Kensington Gore 
delayed the England Cricket Team coach. Police served a section 12 notice in order to 
move the supporters off the road. On the same date, a further march took place on 
Waterloo Bridge, where three people were arrested UKOP9: pages 62-64;  
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(h) On 5 June 2023, around 75 Just Stop Oil supporters marched in four groups in West, East 
and South London, with two supporters being arrested by police in Vauxhall UKOP9: 
pages 68-73; 

(i) On 7 June 2023, eight arrests were made as 54 Just Stop Oil protesters marched along 
key routes in in Hammersmith, Islington and Bayswater and following a second set of 
marches in the West End, City Fulham and Borough UKOP9: pages 74-76; 

(j) On 14 June 2023, Just Stop Oil supporters marched at ten locations across London, 
including Westminster Bridge, London Bridge, Tower Bridge and other major routes in 
Central London along with roads around West London. Nine protesters were arrested at 
various locations for refusing to leave the road or comply with conditions imposed by 
officers UKOP9: pages 94-98; 

(k) On 15 June 2023, 54 Just Stop Oil supporters marched in four groups on roads around 
Ealing and Battersea Bridge. Nine supporters were arrested at Hanger Lane in Ealing for 
failing to comply with a section 12 notice UKOP9: pages 99-102;  

(l) On 20 June 2023, 26 Just Stop Oil supporters slow marched on Queen Victoria Street 
near Mansion House tube station and continuing on key roads through the City until police 
served a section 12 notice UKOP9: pages 109-111;  

(m) On 26 June 2023, Just Stop Oil supporters carried out four separate slow marches across 
London, which included blocking Denmark Hill in Camberwell, close to the hospital 
entrance of King's College Hospital. Metropolitan Police issued a Section 12 condition for 
the Just Stop Oil supporters to move out of the carriageway UKOP9: pages 119-130;  

(n) On 27 June 2023, 34 Just Stop Oil supporters launched a slow march across London 
Bridge. Police were called and a section 12 notice was issued UKOP9: pages 131-136; 
and  

(o) On 30 June 2023, a group of 25 student Just Stop Oil supporters disrupted traffic outside 
Waterloo Station. Following a section 12 notice being issued by the Metropolitan Police, 
the supporters then moved to Parliament Square. A Just Stop Oil press release confirmed 
that three of the supporters were defying bail conditions by protesting at Parliament 
Square UKOP9: pages 141-144.  

18. On 9 June 2023 and 15 June 2023 Just Stop Oil posted tweets indicating that protesters were 
breaking bail conditions to join the slow marches UKOP9: pages 153-154.  

19. In addition to the slow march campaign, members of Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil 
continue to carry out direct action at public locations and events.  

20. On 10 April 2023, it was reported that two Just Stop Oil protesters breached a security barrier and 
climbed the "Dippy the Diplodocus" exhibition at the Herbert Art Gallery and Museum in Coventry, 
which resulted in the museum closing for the day. The protesters were apprehended by the security 
guards, arrested by West Midlands Police on conspiracy to cause criminal damage and 
subsequently charged with having an article with intent to destroy or damage property UKOP9: 
pages 155-160.  

21. On 17 April 2023, the World Snooker Championship was disrupted by an individual climbing on the 
snooker table and covering it in orange powder during a match, whilst another individual attempted 
to glue herself to the table during another match. It was later reported that Just Stop Oil had claimed 
responsibility for the incident. The two protesters were arrested by South Yorkshire Police. UKOP9: 
pages 161-163. 
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22. On 3 May 2023, activists from Extinction Rebellion addressed Barclays' annual general meeting 
being held at the QEII Centre in Westminster. It was reported that a number of protesters were 
removed by security UKOP9: pages 164-171.  

23. On 17 May 2023, it was reported that Just Stop Oil protesters disrupted a policing inquiry regarding 
King Charles' Coronation. One of the activists stood up and stated "We, as supporters of Just Stop 
Oil, are here today because our democracy is under threat" before being removed from Parliament 
UKOP9: pages 172-175.  

24. On 18 May 2023, Extinction Rebellion infiltrated the AGM of Lloyds Banking Group at the Armadilo 
in Glasgow. It was reported that the protesters had repeatedly interrupted the chairman's opening 
speech to criticise the bank's alleged increased financial support of the fossil fuel industry and 
others stood outside the venue displaying banners which read "Lloyds take the next 

UKOP9: pages 176-180.  

25. On 23 May 2023, it was reported that Extinction Rebellion activists had interrupted the opening 
remarks at the annual general meeting of Shell, condemning the fossil fuel giant and shouting "shut 
down Shell" and "go to hell Shell". A number of protesters were carried from or escorted out of the 
auditorium. Extinction Rebellion UK also tweeted on 23 May 2023 at 10:18am "Join us to 
#ShutDownShell and demand #NoNewOilAndGas" UKOP9: pages 181-187.  

26. On 25 May 2023, Lloyd's of London annual general meeting was targeted by Money Rebellion, 
which has been reported as being a sister movement of Extinction Rebellion. Protesters set off fire 
alarm sirens and smoke flares outside Lloyd's' headquarters in London as their annual general 
meeting was being held inside UKOP9: pages 187-189.  

27. On 25 May 2023, it was reported that Just Stop Oil protesters had vandalised one of the show 
gardens at Chelsea Flower Show by throwing orange paint powder. Commander Karen Findlay of 
the Metropolitan Police's major operations team commented that the gardens had been "criminally 
damaged" and the three protesters involved were arrested UKOP9: pages 190-193. 

28. On 27 May 2023, it was reported that two Just Stop Oil supporters had stormed the pitch with 
orange powder paint during the Gallagher Premiership Rugby final at Twickenham. Just Stop Oil's 
press release after the event stated "Just Stop Oil is calling on everyone to get off the sidelines 

campaign of civil resistance 
is underway and will not end until our government makes a meaningful statement halting new fossil 
fuel projects in the UK" UKOP9: pages 194-196. 

29. On 9 June 2023, Just Stop Oil staged its first "slow cycle" down Park Lane in London's West End 
and the police served a section 12 notice due to the disruption caused to traffic. It was reported 
that the slow cycle was in a response to the government's attempts to clamp down on marching 
activists and a spokesperson for Just Stop Oil confirmed "our tactics will continue to evolve" 
UKOP9: pages 197-199.   

30. On the same date, Extinction Rebellion activists glued themselves to Schlumberger's research 
facility in Cambridge, a company reported as providing technology and infrastructure for oil and 
gas extraction to firms such as BP and Shell. It was reported that the protestors were calling on 
the University of Cambridge to cut ties with the company UKOP9: pages 200-202.  

31. On 15 June 2023, three Just Stop Oil protesters disrupted an opera performance at Glyndebourne 
Festival in Sussex by setting off a confetti bomb, blowing an air horn and shouting. Just Stop Oil 
tweeted after the event to confirm that they had interrupted the festival and that "We are running 
out of time. Take action with Just Stop Oil" UKOP9: pages 203-204. 
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32. On 27 June 2023, four Just Stop Oil protesters entered the lobby of the energy firm TotalEnergies', 
UK headquarters and doused it with black paint from fire extinguishers. Four additional activists 
also covered the exterior of the building with orange paint. It was reported that Scotland Yard 
arrested four people on suspicion of criminal damage. One of the protesters taking action was 
reported as stating "I wish we could stop these atrocities through peaceful and quiet protest, but 
we can't." UKOP9: pages 205-209. 

33. On 28 June 2023, two Just Stop Oil protesters entered the playing field during one of the England 
v Australia test matches at Lord's cricket ground to spread orange powder on the pitch and another 
protester was prevented from accessing the pitch by security. These actions delayed the game 
and the Metropolitan Police announced that three arrests were made after the protest. The three 
protesters were subsequently charged with aggravated trespass UKOP9: pages 210-214.  

34. On 1 July 2023, it was reported that seven Just Stop Oil protesters were arrested after having 
interrupted London Pride by sitting in front of a Coca-Cola company float, accusing Coca-Cola of 
being "the world's worst plastic polluter, accused of numerous human rights abuses". Two other 
protesters sprayed paint across the road. Five of the protesters halting the Coca-Cola float were 
subsequently charged with Public Order offences UKOP9: pages 215-220.  

35. On 3 July 2023, as part of their "Cut the Ties" with the fossil fuel industry campaign, climate 
activists, including members of Extinction Rebellion, protested outside Wood Group's Aberdeen 
and Surrey offices to protest the engineering firm's ties to the oil and gas sector, including setting 
off flares and spraying fake black oil across the entrance of the Surrey offices Two Extinction 
Rebellion activists were arrested for alleged criminal damage UKOP9: pages 221-227. 

36. On 5 July 2023, Just Stop Oil protesters ran onto Court 18 at Wimbledon, disrupting a match and 
throwing orange-coloured confetti and a jigsaw on the grass. One protester also sat down on the 
Court by the net. A statement from Just Stop Oil said "
pick up the pieces". Two of the protesters were arrested on suspicion of aggravated trespass and 
criminal damage UKOP9: pages 228-233.  

STATEMENTS FROM EXTINCTION REBELLION AND JUST STOP OIL 

37. At paragraphs 45 and 46 of my third witness statement dated 5 April 2023, I referred to the 
statement published by Extinction Rebellion on 1 January 2023 indicating that they would 
"temporarily shift away from public disruption as a primary tactic", suggesting a shift in tactics and 
strategy. However, subsequent actions taken by the group, as referred to at paragraphs 37 to 41 
and 43 of my third witness statement indicated that Extinction Rebellion was continuing to target 
companies and organisations, which are affiliated to the oil and gas industry with unlawful direct 
action. The recent action taken by Extinction Rebellion, as referred to above, indicates that the 
targeting of companies and organisations affiliated to the oil and gas industry is continuing, 
notwithstanding the public statement, and that to the extent that there was any shift away from 
public disruption, that disruption was only temporary.  

38. Extinction Rebellion also appear to be focused on mobilising new members to their campaign. For 
example, at paragraph 54 of my third witness statement dated 5 April 2023, I referred to "The Big 
One" event organised by Extinction Rebellion due to take place on 21 April 2023. The event took 
place as planned and ran for four days with over 60,000 people in attendance and 200 participating 
organisations. The event included pickets outside the entrances to every major government 
department in Whitehall, a bio-diversity march and "die-in" and protests in Parliament Square 
UKOP9: pages 234-252. Extinction Rebellion have confirmed "over the next three months, we will 
be translating the appetite for action amongst people at The Big One into a whole new range of 
campaigns and action across the country" UKOP9: pages 250.  
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39. In relation to Just Stop Oil, as outlined above at paragraphs 16 to 18, Just Stop Oil are currently 
engaging in a sustained campaign of slow marches across central London, as well as disrupting 
public and high profile events as outlined at paragraphs 20 to 34. In announcing the campaign of 
slow marches, a spokesperson for Just Stop Oil in their press release on 24 April 2023 stated that 

government ends new oil and  UKOP9: page 254.  

40. Just Stop Oil also appear to be attempting to recruit members to join in the protests, for example, 
by making multiple posts on Twitter inviting individuals to sign up to slow march and to "Take action" 
with Just Stop Oil UKOP9: pages 256-257. A press release by Just Stop Oil on 29 June 2023 also 
stated "Just Stop Oil is calling on everyone to get off the sidelines and join in civil resistance against 
new oil, gas and coal" UKOP9: page 260.  

41. Similarly, Just Stop Oil's press release following the interruption to the Gallagher Premiership 
Rugby final outlined at paragraph 28 above stated "Our indefinite campaign of civil resistance is 
underway and will not end until our government makes a meaningful statement halting new fossil 
fuel projects in the UK" UKOP9: page 196. 

42. Combined, this suggests that the fossil fuel industry (and any organisations affiliated with that 
industry) remains the target of Just Stop Oil's campaign and that Just Stop Oil are intending to 
continue their campaign, involving as many members as possible, without any discernible end date. 

43. For example, in the press release by Just Stop Oil on 28 June 2023 after the disruption to the 
Ashes cricket match outlined at paragraph 33 above, it was reported that Just Stop Oil commented 
that the Lords' cricket grounds'  

billion in fossil fuel financing from 2016 to 2020" UKOP9:page 263.  

TotalEnergies also appears to have been targeted, as referred to above at paragraph 32, as it is a 
shareholder in the East African Crude Oil Pipeline (as well as being an energy company itself) 
UKOP9: pages 205-209. 

44. The materials that have been published on Just Stop Oil's and Extinction Rebellion's websites as 
well as the groups respective social media channels therefore continue to indicate that oil and gas 
companies will remain a target of their campaign, and there therefore remains a risk to the 
Claimants' sites which the order in the terms sought would protect against. 

OTHER INJUNCTION PROCEEDINGS 

45. In addition to the Valero Order outlined above at paragraph 12(c), I am aware that there have been 
a number of other injunction orders granted to oil and gas companies in relation to protests against 
the industry. I have set out below a summary of the injunctions that have been obtained, which 
summary has been provided to me by the Claimants' solicitors: 

 

Claim Number Property Claimant(s) Duration of 
injunction 

QB-2022-001259 Shell Centre Tower Shell International 
Petroleum 
Company Limited 

Initial interim 
injunction  
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extended on 28 
April 2023 until 25 
May 2023 

Extended until 12 
May 2024 

QB-2022-001241 Shell Haven Site Shell UK Limited Initial interim 
injunction  

extended on 28 
April 2023 until 25 
May 2023 

Extended on 23 
May 2023 until 12 
May 2024 

QB-2022-001420 Petrol filling station Shell UK Oil 
Products Limited 

Initial 12 months 
expiring on 12 May 
2023 

Extended on 28 
April 2023 until 25 
May 2023 

Further extended 
on 23 May 2023 
until 12 May 2024 

PT-2022-000326 Oil terminals at 
Stanlow, Ellesmere 
Port, Tranmere, 
Birkenhead and 
Northampton 

Essar Oil (UK) 
Limited and others 

Initial 12 months 
expiring on 11 May 
2023. 

Extended on 11 
May 2023 until 11 
May 2024.  

46. In addition to the NWBC Order, I am also aware that further injunctions have been obtained by 
parties against persons unknown including those affiliated or connected to the Extinction Rebellion, 
Just Stop Oil and/or Insulate Britain campaigns. I have set out below a summary of the injunctions 
that have been obtained, which summary has been provided to me by the Claimants' solicitors: 

 

Claim Number Property/Land Claimant(s) Duration of 
injunction 

KB-2022-001317 Roads in the vicinity 
of Navigator 
Terminals Thurrock 

Purfleet terminal; 

Thurock Council 
Essex County 
Council 

Until further order 
with provision for 
Claimants to inform 
the Court within 28 
days of the 
Supreme Court 
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Canvey Island 
terminal 

judgment in 
Wolverhampton 
City Council & Ors v 
London Gypsies 
and Travellers & 
Ors 
(UKSC/2022/0046) 

KB-2022-004333 Structures over, 
under or adjacent to 
the M25 Motorway 

National Highways Initial interim 
injunction granted 
until 10 December 
2022 

Extended by 12 
months until 15 
November 2023 

QB-2021-003576 

QB-2021-003626 

QB-2021-003737 

M25, M25 feeder 
roads and Kent roads 

National Highways Initial 12 month 
injunction expiring 
on 9 May 2023 

Extended the 
interim injunction on 
5 May 2023 until 10 
May 2024 with a 
renewal hearing on 
26 April 2024 

QB-2021-003841  

 

Multiple A roads, 
bridges and tunnels 
in London 

Transport for 
London 

Final injunction until 
2 May 2028 with an 
annual review 
hearing 

KB-2022-003542 Multiple Roads, 
bridges and tunnels 
in London 

Transport for 
London 

Final injunction until 
2 May 2028 with an 
annual review 
hearing 

SUMMARY  

47. The evidence set out above, as well as in my Previous Witness Statements, confirms that there 
continues to be frequent and significant direct action undertaken by Just Stop Oil and Extinction 
Rebellion, and which continues to target those affiliated with the oil and gas industry. There is also 
no clear end date to the action, in fact, the scale of the action has escalated since my first witness 
statement, and both organisations would appear to be focused on mobilising their supporters and 
recruiting new members to their campaigns.  

48. As referred to at paragraph 55 of my third witness statement dated 5 April 2023, given the 
importance of the Sites covered by the Order, Just Stop Oil and Extinction Rebellions continuing 
campaigns, and the highly disruptive and inherently dangerous effect of their protesting techniques, 
means that I continue to believe that in the absence of further final injunctive relief being granted 
in the terms sought, there is a real risk of imminent trespass on the Sites and / or interference with 
the private access routes in relation to both Sites, and this risk would be unlikely to abate in the 
near or medium future. The Claimants are making this Application in an effort to minimise the risk 
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of a future trespass and / or interference occurring at each of the Sites by continuing the deterrent 
effect that appears to have arisen by virtue of the continuing relief granted by the Order.   

49. I refer above and in my third witness statement (at paragraphs 56 to 58) to the fact that the 
Claimants currently enjoy the benefit of the double protection afforded by the NWBC Order and the 
Order. However, the NWBC Order remains subject to an application to set aside. It therefore 
remains the case that the Claimants cannot rely on the protection afforded by the NWBC Order 
continuing, and which therefore makes it critical that the injunctive protection sought by the 
Claimants continues.  

For the reasons set out in this statement and the Previous Witness Statements, I respectfully request that 
the Court grants final injunction on the terms sought by the Claimants.  

 

Statement of Truth 

I believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true. 

I understand that proceedings for contempt of court may be brought against anyone who makes, or causes 
to be made, a false statement in a document verified by a statement of truth without an honest belief in its 
truth. 

_6 July 2023__ 

John Michael Armstrong  
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Dear Extinction Rebellion, 

As you are aware, we act for (1) United Kingdom Pipelines Limited and (2) West London Pipeline Storage Limited (the 
"Claimants"). 

We write further to our emails dated 6 April 2023, 17 April 2023 and 19 April 2023. For ease, we adopt the same 
definitions in this email.  

As set out in our email dated 19 April 2023, the Order made on 20 April 2022 was considered further at the Return 
Date hearing, which took place on 20 April 2023 before Mr Justice Rajah. 

At the Return Date hearing, the Court granted a further order in favour of the Claimants which provides for the pre-
emptive injunctive relief granted by the Order to continue. A copy of the Order made on 20 April 2023 may be viewed 
at the following weblink: 

https://ukop.azurewebsites.net  

Yours faithfully, 

Owen Talfan Davies
Partner 
D: +44 330 460 6961
M: +44 7711 088057

Dear Extinction Rebellion, 

As you are aware, we act for (1) United Kingdom Pipelines Limited and (2) West London Pipeline Storage Limited (the 
"Claimants"). 

We write further to our emails dated 6 April 2023 and 17 April 2023. For ease, we adopt the same definitions in this 
email.  

The Court has now confirmed that the Return Date hearing will be heard tomorrow, 20 April 2023, at 10:30am in Court 
3 of the Rolls Building, 7 Rolls Buildings, Fetter Lane, London EC4A 1NL before Mr Justice Rajah.  
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As we have previously advised, the Claimants' further evidence for the Return Date hearing, together with the 
additional court documents for use at the Return Date, can be viewed at the following weblink: 

https://ukop.azurewebsites.net 

As set out in our email of 17 April 2023, any individual who wishes to come forward to defend the proceedings is 
entitled to serve a skeleton argument, and we again confirm that service of any skeleton argument can be effected on 
the Claimants by emailing the relevant document to UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com.

Yours faithfully, 

Fieldfisher 

Owen Talfan Davies
Partner 
D: +44 330 460 6961
M: +44 7711 088057

Dear Extinction Rebellion, 

As you are aware, we act for (1) United Kingdom Pipelines Limited and (2) West London Pipeline Storage Limited (the 
"Claimants"). 

We refer to our email dated 6 April 2023, which is set out below. For ease, we adopt the same definitions in this 
email.   

We confirm that the bundle for use at the Return Date, which contains the Court Documents together with the further 
evidence relied upon by the Claimants (the "Bundle"), can now be viewed at the following weblink:- 

https://ukop.azurewebsites.net 

Please note that the Bundle contains (at tabs 31,32 and 35) a copy of: (a) the Claimants' Certificate of Service dated 
14 April 2023 for filing the sealed Application Notice dated 4 April 2023, the draft Order for the Return Date hearing 
and the Claimants' further evidence for the Return Date hearing (as referred to in our email below dated 6 April 2023); 
(b) the Third Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies dated 14 April 2023 and (c) Exhibit 
UKOP8 dated 14 April 2023. 

We attach to this email a copy of the Claimants' skeleton argument in relation to the Return Date, a copy of which has 
also been added to the weblink referred to above. A copy of the bundle of authorities upon which the Claimants will 
rely at the Return Date, and which are referred to in the skeleton argument, has also been uploaded to the weblink 
referred to above.  

Any individual who wishes to come forward to defend the proceedings is entitled to serve a skeleton argument. We 
confirm that service of any skeleton argument can be effected on the Claimants by emailing the relevant document to 
the email address specified below: 

UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com 

Yours faithfully, 
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Fieldfisher 

Owen Talfan Davies
Partner 
D: +44 330 460 6961
M: +44 7711 088057

Dear Extinction Rebellion,  

As you are aware, we act for (1) United Kingdom Pipelines Limited and (2) West London Pipeline Storage Limited (the 
"Claimants"). 

We write further to our correspondence on 26 April 2022 setting out that Mr Peter Knox KC sitting as Deputy Judge of 
the Chancery Division had made an order on 20 April 2022 which provided for the pre-emptive injunctive relief 
granted by the order of 8 April 2022 to continue (the "Order").  

This Order also provided that a further return date hearing would be fixed for 20 April 2023 (the "Return Date") with a 
time estimate of 3 hours. 

The Court has now confirmed that the Return Date hearing will take place on 20 April 2023 at 7 Rolls Buildings, 
London, EC4A 1NL with the time of the hearing and the Court in which it will be heard to be confirmed. A copy of the 
sealed Application Notice dated 4 April 2023 confirming this, along with a copy of the draft Order that has been filed at 
Court by the Claimants, can be viewed at the following weblink: 

https://ukop.azurewebsites.net 

This weblink also contains the Claimants' further evidence for the Return Date hearing, together with the Court 
Documents from the hearings of 8 and 20 April 2022.  

The Order grants permission for any individual who wishes to come forward to defend the proceedings to file and 
serve any evidence by 4.30pm on 13 April 2023. We are authorised to accept service for and on behalf of the 
Claimants and confirm that service of any evidence and / or any skeleton argument, can be affected by emailing the 
relevant documents to the following email address:  

UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com 

The Claimants will prepare a bundle for use at the Return Date which contains the Court Documents together with the 
further evidence relied upon by the Claimants. The bundle will be made available at the weblink referred to above on 
17 April 2023.

Yours faithfully, 

Fieldfisher 

Owen Talfan Davies
Partner 
D: +44 330 460 6961
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Dear Just Stop Oil, 

As you are aware, we act for (1) United Kingdom Pipelines Limited and (2) West London Pipeline Storage Limited (the 
"Claimants"). 

We write further to our emails dated 6 April 2023, 17 April 2023 and 19 April 2023. For ease, we adopt the same 
definitions in this email.  

As set out in our email dated 19 April 2023, the Order made on 20 April 2022 was considered further at the Return 
Date hearing, which took place on 20 April 2023 before Mr Justice Rajah. 

At the Return Date hearing, the Court granted a further order in favour of the Claimants which provides for the pre-
emptive injunctive relief granted by the Order to continue. A copy of the Order made on 20 April 2023 may be viewed 
at the following weblink: 

https://ukop.azurewebsites.net  

Yours faithfully, 

Fieldfisher 

Owen Talfan Davies
Partner 
D: +44 330 460 6961
M: +44 7711 088057

Dear Just Stop Oil, 

As you are aware, we act for (1) United Kingdom Pipelines Limited and (2) West London Pipeline Storage Limited (the 
"Claimants"). 

We write further to our emails dated 6 April 2023 and 17 April 2023. For ease, we adopt the same definitions in this 
email.  
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The Court has now confirmed that the Return Date hearing will be heard tomorrow, 20 April 2023, at 10:30am in Court 
3 of the Rolls Building, 7 Rolls Buildings, Fetter Lane, London EC4A 1NL before Mr Justice Rajah.  

As we have previously advised, the Claimants' further evidence for the Return Date hearing, together with the 
additional court documents for use at the Return Date, can be viewed at the following weblink: 

https://ukop.azurewebsites.net 

As set out in our email of 17 April 2023, any individual who wishes to come forward to defend the proceedings is 
entitled to serve a skeleton argument, and we again confirm that service of any skeleton argument can be effected on 
the Claimants by emailing the relevant document to UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com.

Yours faithfully, 

Fieldfisher 

Owen Talfan Davies
Partner 
D: +44 330 460 6961
M: +44 7711 088057

Dear Just Stop Oil, 

As you are aware, we act for (1) United Kingdom Pipelines Limited and (2) West London Pipeline Storage Limited (the 
"Claimants"). 

We refer to our email dated 6 April 2023, which is set out below. For ease, we adopt the same definitions in this 
email.   

We confirm that the bundle for use at the Return Date, which contains the Court Documents together with the further 
evidence relied upon by the Claimants (the "Bundle"), can now be viewed at the following weblink:- 

https://ukop.azurewebsites.net 

Please note that the Bundle contains (at tabs 31,32 and 35) a copy of: (a) the Claimants' Certificate of Service dated 
14 April 2023 for filing the sealed Application Notice dated 4 April 2023, the draft Order for the Return Date hearing 
and the Claimants' further evidence for the Return Date hearing (as referred to in our email below dated 6 April 2023); 
(b) the Third Witness Statement of Daniel Owen Christopher Talfan Davies dated 14 April 2023 and (c) Exhibit 
UKOP8 dated 14 April 2023. 

We attach to this email a copy of the Claimants' skeleton argument in relation to the Return Date, a copy of which has 
also been added to the weblink referred to above. A copy of the bundle of authorities upon which the Claimants will 
rely at the Return Date, and which are referred to in the skeleton argument, has also been uploaded to the weblink 
referred to above.  

Any individual who wishes to come forward to defend the proceedings is entitled to serve a skeleton argument. We 
confirm that service of any skeleton argument can be effected on the Claimants by emailing the relevant document to 
the email address specified below: 
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UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com 

Yours faithfully, 

Fieldfisher 

Owen Talfan Davies
Partner 
D: +44 330 460 6961
M: +44 7711 088057

Dear Just Stop Oil, 

As you are aware, we act for (1) United Kingdom Pipelines Limited and (2) West London Pipeline Storage Limited (the 
"Claimants"). 

We write further to our correspondence on 26 April 2022 setting out that Mr Peter Knox KC sitting as Deputy Judge of 
the Chancery Division had made an order on 20 April 2022 which provided for the pre-emptive injunctive relief 
granted by the order of 8 April 2022 to continue (the "Order").  

This Order also provided that a further return date hearing would be fixed for 20 April 2023 (the "Return Date") with a 
time estimate of 3 hours. 

The Court has now confirmed that the Return Date hearing will take place on 20 April 2023 at 7 Rolls Buildings, 
London, EC4A 1NL with the time of the hearing and the Court in which it will be heard to be confirmed. A copy of the 
sealed Application Notice dated 4 April 2023 confirming this, along with a copy of the draft Order that has been filed at 
Court by the Claimants, can be viewed at the following weblink: 

https://ukop.azurewebsites.net 

This weblink also contains the Claimants' further evidence for the Return Date hearing, together with the Court 
Documents from the hearings of 8 and 20 April 2022.  

The Order grants permission for any individual who wishes to come forward to defend the proceedings to file and 
serve any evidence by 4.30pm on 13 April 2023. We are authorised to accept service for and on behalf of the 
Claimants and confirm that service of any evidence and / or any skeleton argument, can be affected by emailing the 
relevant documents to the following email address:  

UKOPinjunction@fieldfisher.com 

The Claimants will prepare a bundle for use at the Return Date which contains the Court Documents together with the 
further evidence relied upon by the Claimants. The bundle will be made available at the weblink referred to above on 
17 April 2023.

Yours faithfully, 

Fieldfisher  
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Owen Talfan Davies
Partner 
D: +44 330 460 6961
M: +44 7711 088057
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Your message couldn't be delivered 
The message you sent to juststopoil@protonmail.com couldn't be delivered due to: 
Recipient mailbox is full. 

Further information
5.2.2 <juststopoil@protonmail.com>: Recipient address rejected: Mailbox quota exceeded 

If you sent this message to multiple addresses, you'll receive a notification like this for 
every one that didn't arrive. 

© 2003 - 2019 Mimecast Services Limited.
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IN THE HIGH COURTS OF JUSTICE  
BUSINESS & PROPERTY DIVISION 

Case No.  PT-2022-000303 

Court No. 3 
Royal Courts of Justice 

Strand 
London 

EC4A 1NL 
 

10.33am – 12.34pm 
Thursday, 20th April 2023 

 
 

before 
 
 

THE HONOURABLE JUSTICE RAJAH 
 
 

UK OIL PIPELINES LIMITED (1) 
WEST LONDON PIPELINE & STORAGE LIMITED (2) 

 
-v- 

 
PERSONS UNKNOWN 

 
 

MS K HOLLAND KC & MR Y VANDERMAN (instructed by Fieldfisher LLP) appeared on behalf 
of the CLAIMANTS 

NO APPEARANCE by the DEFENDANTS  
 

---------- 
 

WHOLE HEARING 
 

---------- 
 
 

This Transcript is Crown Copyright.  It may not be reproduced in whole or in part, other than in accordance 
with relevant licence or with the express consent of the Authority.  All rights are reserved. 
 
WARNING: reporting restrictions may apply to the contents transcribed in this document, particularly if the 
case concerned a sexual offence or involved a child.  Reporting restrictions prohibit the publication of the 
applicable information to the public or any section of the public, in writing, in a broadcast or by means of 
the internet, including social media.  Anyone who receives a copy of this transcript is responsible in law for 
making sure that applicable restrictions are not breached.  A person who breaches a reporting restriction is 
liable to a fine and/or imprisonment.  For guidance on whether reporting restrictions apply, and to what 
information, ask at the court office or take legal advice. 

-355-



 2 

 
 A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 E 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 G 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
Case called at 10.33am. 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you very much, My Lord.  Before I begin, may I just have the bundle – 

skeleton arguments.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I have a bundle of authorities.  I have a skeleton argument.  Or, I may have 

– I may have managed to leave that upstairs.  I have it electronically in any event, but if you 

have a spare copy that would be helpful and I have the two bundles.  

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you very much.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Thank you.   

MS HOLLAND:  Might I also hand up to you a very slightly revised draft order, which may be 

relevant later on, after you have heard the application.  Thank you.   

Pause.  

MS HOLLAND:  My Lord, I don't know whether you've had the look at anything in advance and 

before I start opening the matter, might I respectfully ask the question; is there anything I 

can help you with at the outset before I begin?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I have had your skeleton; I have also had an opportunity to look at the two 

witness statements you have asked me to look at.  I can see that your skeleton refers to 

fuller evidence for specific issues- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - and it would be helpful for me if you took me to those.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I have; I have looked at some of the documents from back in 2022.   

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you very much.  It’s just to draw to your attention, in case they are of 

value to you at any stage; we have got fairly full notes of the two earlier judgments that 

have been given.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, I have read the notes; I found the notes for the skeleton- 

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you very much for looking at those.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I have read those and I have read those first.   

MS HOLLAND:  That’s very kind.  Thank you very much.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I have got one question- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - which I you will have to talk to me about; it is, where is this going?  
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What exactly are we – what sort of order are we looking for or duration?  Is there going to 

be a trial?  

MS HOLLAND:  Well, I can answer that question now if you like because you are quite right that, 

obviously, when one has an interlocutory injunction, one has to get on with the proceedings 

as well.  I think, in relation to these cases, there are certain hypothetical scenarios where 

you have an instant situation and interlocutory relief is granted and it’s a fairly temporary 

state of affairs and that ultimately leads to the proceedings not having to be pursued but 

here, it is now looking as though we are now having much more of a permanent state of 

affairs.   

 I have instructions that we are considering the preparation of a default judgment application 

and so, if that matter were to come on during the period in which the interim injunction was 

in force, then, obviously, the interim injunction would fall away with the final order that we 

would be seeking.  So, those are my instructions that we are currently considering the 

preparation of a default judgment application in order to bring the proceedings to a 

conclusion, obtain a final order and, in that final order, we will ask for a potential review 

after a certain period of time, if there is a state of affairs which can be said to be sufficiently 

continuing in existence to merit that final order, having a longer temporal period.  

 So far as the temporal period for today’s interim review hearing, we accept that you may 

want to take, “I’ll need to bring the proceedings to a conclusion” into account in relation to 

the period for which we have referred in the draft order and that period, if you go to the 

draft order in paragraph one, is expressed to be until the return date.  That is then in 

paragraph five and certain situations – I’m aware that a year has been granted – the – 

perhaps, we might want to return to that when you have seen what the quality of the 

evidence is about the state of affairs at the moment but, certainly, we accept that we are in 

the discretionary hands of the Court on that issue about the temporal period.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, I will make one observation about that which is that, I think you had 

the same instructions when you were before Mr Knox on the- 

MS HOLLAND: Oh- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - on the clarifications – notes of which I happen to find.  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, thank you for that.  Now, in relation to – I will obviously check but my 

immediate recollection is in relation to a question about how would you do this whereas the 

other instruction I am saying to you at the moment is, we are currently considering the 
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preparation, but I hear what you say.  I hear what you say.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I think that is an issue- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - and an issue which is bothering me.  The second issue which, I will at 

some point – I can leave it out and you can take it at your own time- 

MS HOLLAND:  I'm grateful.  Thank you.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH: - is, I would quite like to know about the other injunctions.  I see that there 

are a number of other injunctions, some of which overlap – have some sort of overlap with 

the injunction you are asking me to continue to make in terms of the effect – and I would 

just like to understand that.  I am not suggesting that it is necessary a problem there but I 

would quite like to understand that.  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.  Thank you for that indication.  So, I will come to that, My Lord.  Might I 

take matters by reference to the skeleton argument, principally, as a sort of an agenda 

document to make sure I have taken you through everything?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, it’s clear from what you've indicated that you've seen the evidence – the two 

witness statements of April, which set out the current position.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, well, the two witness statements; one was 2022- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - and one is- 

MS HOLLAND:  Updating it.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - updating it?   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I see that.  

MS HOLLAND:  So, you basically had, events with for a year and what the current state of the 

evidence is, as in April 2023 and so- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  While we are on that witness statement – those witness statements- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - could you clarify for me what Mr Armstrong is – I mean, he talks about 

events in the region of proximity of the sites; there have been no actual further acts of 

trespass or interference in relation to these two sites, has there?  

MS HOLLAND:  That's right.  There have been no acts.   
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Bear with me.  I seem to be struggling with one screen.  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And might I take you, as well, to demonstrate further to – it’s – it’s E, page 

53 to 56; my divider 31.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  53, you say?   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  My learned junior tells me that, if it would assist with the screen problem, we 

have a hard copy spare bundle, if that would help you?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I am afraid it would.  I am still getting used to this set up.  That is the 

further statement of Daniel Davies?   

MS HOLLAND:  That's correct, yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Thank you very much.  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Now, the purpose of this witness statement is to provide the evidence that there 

was compliance with the service requirements in relation to the order of last year, 

April 2022, and also to give you evidence as to the service of the documents for today’s 

hearing.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And with regard to the latter, might I ask you to turn to paragraph 10 of that 

witness statement?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?   

MS HOLLAND:  Actually, sorry, could I just ask you go to slightly further back?  If I could ask 

you to go to paragraph six; I do apologise.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Sorry.  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, in paragraph five, all the documents in relation to today’s hearing have been 

listed and in paragraph six, evidence is given in respect of the method of service by putting 

those documents in the clear transparency of containers on site.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And that reflects what was in paragraph 16A of the order of April 2022.  Then- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  So, okay.  I mean, just as a matter of logistics; how does one put a witness 

statement in a sealed container at the site in a way in which it can be read?  

MS HOLLAND:  So, this is the subject of exactly that type of question in the course of the 

evolution of these cases and so, let me find a photograph for you because, obviously, the 
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point about putting everything on the site has that practical issue because if you put it in the 

transparent envelopes, it can all get very, very messy.  So, here – and also, because they can 

be blown away or taken away.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, one practical approach which has been adopted in the course is to put them in 

sealed containers and I’m going to try and find you a photograph to show you that that is 

meant to give it as much visibility and permanence at the site as we can achieve.  It is at – I 

am told, at page 356 – so, that will be tab 34 – tab 35 – tab 35.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, I have got it.  A storage box, basically.  

MS HOLLAND:  A storage box, yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Which can be opened?  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  And so, people can have access to the documents which are in the box?  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.  And if you look, for example, at page 357- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?   

MS HOLLAND:  - you see the box and you see it conjunction with the warning notice, which I will 

be referring to next.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  Yes.  Okay.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, that was compliance with the first reference for service in 16(a) of the 

April 2022 order and then, in the following paragraph, this deals with the same point at the 

other site; the second site.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Then, in paragraphs eight and nine, this is the evidence regarding uploading of 

the Court documents to the web link, which is stated on the face of the order.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  So, what is that?  

MS HOLLAND:  So, that weblink, which has got the substantive name as websites, is, from 

recollection, a weblink which we set up specifically for this case in April 2022.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  So, is that, sort of, cross-referring to notices or something like that?  

MS HOLLAND:  That's correct.  So, if one goes back to – just tracing it through on the orders; if 

you go to divider eight of the bundle, this was the very first order, and you see, in 

paragraph 13, on page 63- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?   
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MS HOLLAND:  - the reference to fixing copies in paragraph (a) and then, there, in paragraph (b) 

was the reference to this following weblink which could be clicked on and then, in (c) were 

the notices and the notices were actually in a form which appeared at the end of the order.  

So, if you go right to the back of that divider, you will see the two notices which were 

specifically designed to go up on the sites and then, on those notices- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  It says, “Copies of the Court order and other documents of the proceedings 

can be viewed”- 

MS HOLLAND:  I'm grateful.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, that link was written into the order and onto the notices and, in terms of 

actually being a practical link to click on, therefore, would have been available for any 

potential defendants to do so because in paragraph (d) an email was sent to specific email 

addresses so that they would have had these documents electronically and enabling them to 

actually click on that link.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  That same course will follow through on the return date hearing for which is the 

order is at divider 21, page 85.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Sorry, this is the 2022 order?  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, and if you go to page 88- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?   

MS HOLLAND:  - service of the order was dealt with in, essentially, the same way, in paragraph 

13, save for some more slight variations and some more email addresses but, again, there 

was the weblink actually in the order.  And at paragraph 16, on the same occasion, an order 

was made in respect of further applications and the evidence in support; in other words, 

prior authorisation for a method that could be adopted in advance of the review hearing.  

Again, with that link in it and, again, that link being capable of being clicked on, pursuant to 

service by email and, again, you have the warning notices which had the reference to the 

weblink on – they ran it to the back of the order and it’s that paragraph 16, in relation to 

future applications which are, therefore, the orders which needed to comply with and which 

the evidence of Mr Telson[?]-Davies goes to in terms of how we comply with that order for 

service of future applications.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   
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MS HOLLAND:  So, the next- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, you were about to take me to the email- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - and the problems with that.   

MS HOLLAND:  And, in paragraph 10, reference is made to the content of the email, which is 

exhibited, giving information regarding this return date and, as you've already commented, 

there was an issue which was described in paragraph 11 and 12.  And, so, what has been 

done about that is explained in those paragraphs and as we are here now, there’s been no 

further email notification in relation to the email which was sent to 

JustStopOil@protonmail.com.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Sorry, you have got a bounce back from two out of four, is that right?  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  From Just Stop Oil but one made it through, it appears and the 

Extinction Rebellion – the email through to be the Extinction Rebellion email has also not 

been – you have not had a bounce back?   

MS HOLLAND:  That's correct.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  And on the web page – so, you have had a bounce back from one out of 

three of the Just Stop Oil?  Oh, no, sorry – yes – okay, no, Protonmail.com – Just Stop Oil; 

Protonmail.co.UK – Just Stop Oil – both bounced back.  The only that did not bounce back 

was JustStopOilPress- 

MS HOLLAND:  - @Protonmailcom.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  @Protonmail.com.  And that is on the website as a contact detail?  

MS HOLLAND:  It is, yes.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Okay.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, we haven’t been able to be completely successful in the authorised methods 

of service referred to in the order.  We have done them but we can’t show that they 

necessarily – because we had a bounce back.  I hope no issues arise in relation to the 

particular sites which are described in paragraph 6(a) and (b).  There is one minor point in 

relation to one of the sites.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  6(a) and (b) of?  

MS HOLLAND:  Of the skeleton argument; I’m so sorry.  And if I could ask you, just for the 

moment, to pick up with that – so, the sites are described in paragraphs 6(a) and 6(b)- 
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?  

MS HOLLAND:  Could I ask you to pick up one of the two documents I handed up in terms of the 

draft orders, and one is a clean copy of a suggested, slightly revised order and behind it, 

there is a tracked changes one- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?   

MS HOLLAND:  Showing the changes from the order that was attached to the application notice.  

If you go to schedule two within that document- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  - you will see, on the bottom of that page, in paragraph 4(a)- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  - some red underlining and so, part of the land at Kingsbury is leasehold land and 

it hadn’t been registered when we had the last hearing but we’ve now discovered that it is 

registered so, the registered title number has been inserted in the draft order there.  So, 

that’s just one change.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, in the skeleton argument, at 6(b), where it says, four lines up from the bottom 

– there’s a line starting “Leasehold title”- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  - it says, “Is awaiting registration”.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  It has been registered?  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.  I think that’s the one.  I’m not sure that – might I just take a moment, to 

make sure that is absolutely correct?  

Discussion sotto voce.  

MS HOLLAND:  Well, I think the – if one goes to the evidence, the – divider five of bundle one, at 

page 32 – and this is in the description of the Kingsbury land – a reference is made there to 

the first claimant being the proprietor of one leasehold interest and that is described as being 

held under the lease of 3 November 2021, which is the area of land to which the red 

amendment has been made in the draft order but I think there is a slight – there is an error in 

the skeleton argument there, for which I apologise, because it doesn’t say there’s a 

leasehold title awaiting registration.  It may be that the reference to it in the previous section 

to it being a registered leasehold proprietor already took that into account but- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, well, there is certainly material here – the actual land, which is the 
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subject of the injunction, is changing.   

MS HOLLAND:  Which it isn’t.  I just wanted to make sure I make everything correct.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, I understand entirely why you say that.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, thank you.  So, those are the sites.  As I say, there are no changes in relation 

to the boundaries of the site and the most convenient way, probably, of looking at those 

sites is in relation to the order – the plans which are put on the warning notices, in terms of 

giving you a flavour of the nature of the sites.  If you go to tab 21, and within that divider, 

one goes to page 95- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  - you will see on there, the plan of the Buncefield site.  And you can see the 

nature of the site in relation to oil facilities being depicted on that plan and then, if you go 

over the page, you see the plan in relation to the Kingsbury site.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Sorry, the access road, looking at the plan on 95 – where is the access 

road?  

MS HOLLAND:  So, on the plan at 95- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Oh, it is that oil road on the right, is it?  Between Green Lane and 

Buncefield Lane?   

MS HOLLAND:  That's right, yes.  It’s described as “Oil Road”.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  So, the acts of interference that are being restrained are interfering with 

access to the sites; the evidence of blocking of entrances and lorries being parked outside, is 

that a reference to that access way or more generally?  

MS HOLLAND:  So, if one goes to the order, at tab 21, page 87, paragraph three; in relation to 

Buncefield- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  The site access one, which is the subject of the injunction, is what is shaded blue 

on the plan that we’ve just looked at; so, it’s that little bit – do you see the little bit of blue 

shading?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  Very little bit, yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, so, that’s the part which is affected by that injunction in relation to 

Buncefield.  So far as Kingsbury is concerned – actually, just to help you on the Buncefield, 

I know today you asked me about the access road and we looked at the line Oil Road, 

between Buncefield Lane- 
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, that is within the title.  It’s red.  So, that comes within paragraph one of the 

injunction relating to Buncefield.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  So, is it – so, it is just that little blue bit?  

MS HOLLAND:  Just the little blue bit in relation to obstruction of access rights, as opposed to 

ownership.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, I see.  

MS HOLLAND:  The position is greater in relation to- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Kingsbury? 

MS HOLLAND:  - Kingsbury because, as you will see from paragraph five of the order, at 

Kingsbury, is – again, it’s shaded blue and that’s a much more expensive area, as you see on 

page 97.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And those colourings are depicted fairly well, in my submission, on the, sort of 

summary plans at page 99 and 101.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  I suppose technically, on the Kingsbury plan, at 101, you’ll see below the plan, 

the reference to the freehold land and the leasehold land.  We haven’t yet inserted the title 

number for leasehold land and, perhaps, we should do that.  It may not be necessary.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I would have thought not to the reader of a notice.  

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  But, for completeness, perhaps it ought to reflect, as the orders are going 

to change, perhaps, it ought to be reflected.   

MS HOLLAND:  We’ll do that.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  But I would have thought the objective is plain language rather than- 

MS HOLLAND:  Pedantic?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - well, complete preciseness – accuracy.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, those are the sites.  So far as the evidence about the campaign of direct action 

is concerned, we referred you back to the original evidence before the Court on the first 

hearing and then, a summary of that is provided, so far as the activities that were occurring 

at the site at the beginning of April of last year, in relation to site two, in particular, in 

paragraph nine, where there were issues regarding the oil tankers.   
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, I have not read this evidence.   

MS HOLLAND:  Shall I just take you for a quick look over it so that you can get a flavour of it, 

given that we are relying upon past evidence?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, if one goes to – I think it’s in bundle- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  A?  

MS HOLLAND:  - A- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, we start at divider five.  And the first witness statement is from the consultant 

to the agencies and who worked there, I think, for a very long time, and he gives details 

about the sites; just generally about the nature of the operations at the sites.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I have read this one.   

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  So, it is the one you asked me to, at paragraph one of the skeleton.  

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you, and so, then, in relation to divider six, which gives details about the 

health and safety concerns, which you may see – “Direct Action”- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  No, I have not seen – what are the health and safety concerns?  

MS HOLLAND:  So, if we start at paragraph 16; that gives a context to the fact that here are 

security and health and safety issues.  Then, at paragraph 18 onwards, details are given with 

regard to the activities on the site and some of the risks that they involve.  Perhaps, I might 

ask you just to have a cursory glance at those paragraphs.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

Pause.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And then, a similar analysis is given in relation to the Kingsbury site on 

paragraph 35, through to paragraph 42.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And then, we get evidence after that, with respect to groups carrying out direct 

action and reference to direct action at the site.  So, it may be that, of particular interest to 

you, is really paragraphs 44 through to 49.   

Pause.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   
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MS HOLLAND:  Some of the risks in relation to those activities were set out in relation to both the 

trespassers and others in paragraphs 50 through to 57.   

Pause.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Now, all of that evidence was then updated by the time the return date hearing 

came around and you will find that at divider 18 and the relevant part starts at page 40.   

Pause.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, in that witness statement, it was categorised by reference to direct action, of 

which there was, obviously, a massive reduction – if I could say characterised it, probably 

because of the success of the order and the station of police, it would seem.  Then, there was 

evidence in relation to direction from the date of the order to 13 April, which is set out at 

paragraphs 12 to 17.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And then, at paragraph 18, through to 21, was direction action of other operators.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  

MS HOLLAND:  And then, paragraphs 22 to 23 were evidence about direct action by members of 

Extinction Rebellion, generally.  Now, so, that was the context of the evidence by the time 

of the last return date.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  What I would like to hand up to you now, is a copy of both of the skeletons for 

the hearing, so that you can see how matters were addressed in relation to granting of 

substantive relief- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I think I have actually looked at these.  

MS HOLLAND:  Ah, have you?  Thank you.  Shall I just take you through them, briefly, then?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Behind – at the start of the – what I’ve handed up, there’s a shorter skeleton for 

the 20th and a few pages in, there’s a skeleton for 8 April and this is the one that I need to 

just focus on for the moment.  So, having summarised the evidence, the lead – the relevant 

legal principles are set out in paragraph five and, first of all, obviously, the claimant had to 

establish a cause of action in trespass or nuisance; the nuisance being in relation to the 

blocking of access; the trespass being in relation to the unauthorised entry on land.   
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 Then, we have to consider the American Cyanamid[?] test to a serious issue; damages with 

the inadequate remedy, the balance of convenience, satisfaction and undertaking of 

damages.  Then, we have to assess Articles 10 and 11 of the European Convention in 

relation to freedom of expression and peaceful assembly.  And reference is made to the state 

of the law in relation to that; that so far as privately owned land is concerned, then, it’s 

going to be a very extreme scenario where those articles could constitute a defence and the 

best summary of the position at that date was the one in paragraph 8.2.3 which was a 

statement by the Divisional Court in DPP v Cuciurean.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  The next consideration relates to the effect of the Human Rights Act and 

section 12 and this kicks in, in two particular aspects of the matter.  And there’s some 

subsequent learning on this but the way that it was dealt with at the time was that, the 

section applied if it affected the exercise of the right to freedom of expression and in 

paragraph two, if you had a hearing where a respondent was neither present nor represented, 

relief couldn't be granted unless the Court was satisfied that that the applicant had taken all 

practical steps and notified the respondent or that there were compelling reasons why the 

respondent shouldn't be notified and no relief must be granted to restrain publication before 

trial unless the Court was satisfied that the applicant was likely to establish that publication 

shouldn't be allowed.  

 As I’ll come to in a moment, what that section means is that you had to go higher than the 

American Cyanamid test of serious issue and show that you were likely to succeed.  So, the 

two aspects of that section- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Publication of the expression?  

MS HOLLAND:  Well, that has been exactly one of the issues which has been considered but, so 

far as the hearing then, we chose to pass that test whether or not it was or wasn’t right that a 

trespass situation fell within section 12.3; that we were likely to succeed at trial.  The next 

set of principles was in relation to the specific test for injunctions against persons unknown 

and various cases have, for material purposes in this case, led to those requirements which 

are set out from one to six.  “A sufficiently real and imminent risk of a tort being committed 

to justify…relief”.  It’s impossible to name them; in other words, it’s impossible to identify, 

by name, those persons from whom that threat may come.  It is possible to give effective 

notice of the injunction and for the method of notice to be set out in the order.  
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 “The terms of the injunction must correspondence with the threatened tort and not be any 

wider than that and mustn’t prohibit lawful conduct.  The terms of the injunction must be 

sufficiently clear and precise to enable the person to potential effects; to know what they 

must not do and it should have clear geographical and temporal limits”.  Putting all of those 

principles together, the submissions in relation to each of those were then set out in 

paragraph 11.  So, the first part of that was in relation to the italicised heading above 

paragraph 11.2 – “Is there a serious issue to be tried and were the claimant’s likely to 

succeed at trial?’ and the submission was that there was strong evidence that acts of trespass 

had occurred and the Articles 10 and 11 provided no defence so, we said, likely to succeed 

at trial.  

 Damages wouldn't be an adequate remedy; the reason they’re summarised is, given the 

health and safety context, which you've seen in the first witness statement of Mr Armstrong, 

it was clear, on the facts, damages wouldn't be an adequate remedy; the level of risk was so 

high and there was no evidence the defendants would ever be in a position to satisfy an 

award of damages.  Balance of convenience clearly lay in favour of the grant of relief.  

Satisfactory cross-undertaking; that was dealt with specifically in paragraph 77 of that first 

witness statement of Mr Armstrong.   

 Then, so far as the requirement in the Human Rights Act to show that one has taken steps to 

bring it to the attention of the defendants; the specific wording being, “All practicable steps 

to notify them”, the reliance was placed upon the emails which had been sent to the two 

organisations, but also, on the basis that there were compelling reasons why they ought not 

to be notified because of the potential risk of escalating the situation.   

 So far as the test that we looked at a moment ago on the six considerations for the grant of 

pre-emptive relief- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  On that last point, it is one or the other; either you are notifying or you are 

deciding that you are saying you should not have to notify because of the situation- 

MS HOLLAND:  Absolutely, My Lord, I completely understand why you say that because it can 

be a tricky situation to balance that because you are quite right that, ordinarily, you would 

say it is really one or the other; they’re mutually inconsistent.  Because different approaches 

have been taken to the level of efforts of contacting them and whether it is appropriate to 

contact them or not, I seem to recall that, specifically, on this occasion, the emails were sent 

just prior to the hearing to give them sufficient notice to make a representation at the 
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hearing but in such a balanced way that they wouldn't have time for the situation to escalate. 

 I think that’s my recollection of how we dealt with matters.  

 So far as the six considerations on pre-emptive relief against persons unknown, the 

sufficiently real and imminent risk was dealt with in the evidence of Mr Armstrong.  The 

impossibility of naming them was referred.  The fact that notice of the injunction could be 

given in the methods of service adopted in relation to one of the sites, the notice says the 

email – the weblink – the terms of the injunction were matched to the threatened tort and 

didn’t go beyond what was appropriate and, so far as the temporal and geographical limits 

were concerned; it was submitted that they were sufficiently clear and precise and, at that 

stage, the injunction was going to be in force for a very short time; just a couple of weeks 

before the return date.  

 So, those are the submissions made which led to the grant of the order on the first hearing 

and then, it was a fairly short skeleton which was then submitted in relation to the return 

date; that referred to the grounds being the same; the updated evidence in the witness 

statements that we looked at earlier, of 14 April – the second statement of Mr Armstrong 

and so far as the form of order was concerned, in paragraph five, it said that the return date 

ordered generally reflected the terms of the original order save that a temporal limit of 

12 months had been added and with adjustments to reflect the continuation of the order until 

trial.  And, some corrections to email addresses and a further alternative service provision. 

 Now, what we asked for in that draft order didn’t match what we were given so, I had better 

take you to the exact order that was given, just in relation to some of the variations that 

were made.  That order is the one we’ve already looked at, at divider 21 of the bundle- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Well, do I need to look?  I have seen the order that has actually been made.  

MS HOLLAND:  I don't need to take you through that; I just didn’t want you to think that 

everything we had asked for in that skeleton I have just read was, indeed, what was granted.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I have picked up that there were variations to the order- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.  And so, I think that the draft order – the relevant parts to bring to your 

attention, having regard to some of your questions at the outset of the hearing- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Just before – I think we are very close to looking at the draft order but can 

you just address me on the continued threat?  The – have there been – we know no further 

acts of trespass and no further acts of interference, which constitute torts since the 

injunction was granted”- 
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MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - you will say because of the injunction but one, therefore, has to look at 

what is happening around it, at the continuing statements of commitment to direct action; 

there is lots of evidence of that but what I was not clear about was whether any of that was in 

relation to these sites?  

MS HOLLAND:  The answer to that is, not specifically on these sites.  The closest you get is “the 

vicinity of”.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Well, what does that mean – “the vicinity of”?  

MS HOLLAND:  So, what that means specifically – could I ask you to go to divider 30 and 

page 44?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  At paragraph 11, at the top of page 44, it describes it as direction action at close 

proximity to sites and I’ll explain what that is, hopefully by reference to some of the plans.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Oh, well, so – I understand there has been direct action close by, not 

constituting a trespass or any interference on the sites themselves- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - or the site – we are talking about sections of the two oil terminals, are we 

not?  It is quite possible for there to be trespass on other parts of the oil terminal without 

actually breaching this injunction.  

MS HOLLAND:  Correct.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  But one of the points I am just dealing with is, if it is a case that this has 

been deterred, because of the existence of the injunction; one might see that, if one saw 

continued commitments in relation to the wider Kingsbury and Buncefield oil sites – wider 

commitments – sorry, commitments to further direct action or continued direct action in 

relation to those sites.  One can see them quite easily in that situation that if you took away 

the injunction, you would just be opening the door to further action.  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I am just wondering if there was any – if that was – if there is any – if 

there is evidence in Mr Armstrong’s witness statement starting, I think, at page 46- 

MS HOLLAND:  That's right.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - and, again, at page 50. I think that really is the evidence on page 50 – the 

statements from Extinction Rebellion and Just Stop Oil- 
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MS HOLLAND:  Which are made pertinent to you because they are future-looking- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Whether any of those relate, specifically, to these – these oil terminals.   

MS HOLLAND:  I’m pretty certain that the answer to that question is no but can I just double-

check? 

Discussion sotto voce.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, to be absolutely clear, what we rely upon is the extent of incidents to date, 

meaning that when they make the statements which are appearing at page 50, which are 

referred to there, they are inferentially to be linked to involving risks for these sites.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, I see.  

MS HOLLAND:  Might I just take a moment and turn my back on you, if that is okay, for a 

moment- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

Discussion sotto voce.  

MS HOLLAND:  May I just, again, take instructions?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

Discussion sotto voce.  

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you very much, My Lord, for that indulgence.  I’m very grateful.  What I 

just wanted to check, given your questions, was that the evidence in relation to this takes 

matters up to the date of the statement on 5 April, regarding statements by Just Stop Oil and 

Extinction Rebellion, which my clients are aware of.  Obviously, it’s a matter of public 

knowledge that, in the last few days, protests have received greater attention.  I don't know, 

myself, if there have been any changes in statements of policy in the last few days by 

Extinction Rebellion or Just Stop Oil and I just wanted to check if we were aware of those 

or if anyone had checked; and we haven’t.  But I thought I had better just say that to you 

because this evidence does take it up to 5 April.   

 I’m not aware of anything which suggests that this evidence is incorrect regarding the future 

but it may be that there are some changes, possibly.  It may be that some statements have 

been issued and I think it’s right for me to just flag them up.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  You refer to the fact that in 45 and 46 Extinction Rebellion may have a 

different approach- 
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MS HOLLAND:  Indeed, yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - 47 to 51 talks about Just Stop Oil’s continued statements.  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  But, of course, these are not manifestos- 

MS HOLLAND:  Indeed, absolutely.  I'm grateful, My Lord, because that was what I was about to 

say; they are not binding policy statements; they can change at any stage but the general 

welter of evidence would indicate ongoing risks in relation to ongoing activities and you are 

quite right to have identified the fact that we don’t have any specific threats relating to these 

sites and what we say in response to that is, you are right; we don’t but the extent of the 

evidence in relation to previous occasions would indicate there is certainly no suggestion 

that these sites would be excluded and the focus on – on oil sites previously, witness 

statement suggest that they continue to remain at risk.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, and there is evidence of other infrastructure being targeted more 

recently.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.  Most specifically, I suppose, in paragraph 51, where there is the website 

statement that they will not be stopped by a private injunction.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  How does that help you- 

MS HOLLAND:  Well- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  -against the injunction points?  

MS HOLLAND:  - yes, I think what it indicates is that, in relation to sites for which private 

injunctions may have been granted, they will still try and target those sites.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I am just clarifying- 

MS HOLLAND:  I absolutely understand and it’s my duty to- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  -to – I have the burden of satisfying you that there remains a serious and 

imminent risk- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And in circumstances where we say, combined with other events in that area, our 

injunction has actually been successful; that is, indeed, one of the reasons we still want to – 

though, we’re in a slight catch-22, which is why I have to rely upon the body of that 

evidence- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I think it can also suggest that the position cannot continue on an interim 
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basis indefinitely.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  The evidence is getting a bit more diffuse.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.  Absolutely.  I absolutely hear what you say in relation to that.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Right, so, that was the continued threat.  We were going to look, I think, at 

the order, then.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.  Before we do so, might I respectfully ask, could we just go to the skeleton 

for today’s hearing, a little bit longer?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  

MS HOLLAND:  Partly in relation to the point you've just raised again about the temporal limits 

and getting on with the proceedings.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, just to make out my case, on paragraph 15 onwards, where we deal with the 

grounds of the application, the first point in paragraph 16 is one we’ve really been covering; 

the evidence in relation to the serious issue to be tried and in paragraph 17, so far as the 

update on the law is concerned, I mentioned to you a little while ago that, when we sought the 

injunction, we chose to meet the likely test and in paragraph 17, reference is made to the fact 

that there has been some recent authority on that which suggests that we don’t have to satisfy 

that test but we say we would pass it anyway, like we did before, and so, there are no other 

changes in relation to that element of the submissions.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  So, what is the position of the persons unknown?  

MS HOLLAND:  So, do you remember when you raised the “publication” when we were looking 

at the Act?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  And you said, inferring to me, “Why does that apply in a trespass case?” and 

what these authorities have indicated is that, we don’t have to pass that test in a trespass case. 

 Would you like to see those references- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I think you have to choose; either you are asking me to decide on the basis 

that it is likely to succeed or the lower test.  I can say, at the moment, I think it is likely to- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, I don't know exactly whether there is any risk of appeals on those two cases; 

we think not but if there is then, I would rather you dealt with it on the basis of likely for the 

purposes of today.  
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you.  Especially as we dealt with it on that basis last time.  So far as the 

other elements of the test until the requirements under six; damages not being adequate 

remedy; balance of convenience, satisfactory cross-undertaking and the requirements of 

section 12.2 are concerned, in my submission the same position pertains as pertained a year 

ago, that everything is the same and that we’ve taken steps to bring this to the attention of the 

defendants.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I saw – did I see certificates of service about bundles of authorities?  

Sorry, I don't need to see the certificates; I just wanted to inquire what else had been served 

apart from the application notice and the Court documents as defined in the affidavit.   

Discussion sotto voce.  

MS HOLLAND:  So, in addition to the Court bundle, we’ve served a skeleton and the bundle of 

authorities- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  In addition to the Court documents?   

MS HOLLAND:  In addition to the Cour documents.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Not the same thing as the Court bundle- 

MS HOLLAND:  Correct; I apologise.  Yes.  We served the Court documents and we served the 

skeleton and the bundle of authorities.  We didn’t need to serve the skeleton argument or the 

bundle of authorities; it wasn’t encapsulated in the service provisions in paragraph 16 of the 

last order so, that’s a sort of voluntary step to bring matters to their attention that we’ve taken 

and I don't need to ask for an order for service in relation to those for that reason.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, in relation to the requirements for the tests of pre-emptive relief against 

persons unknown, everything pretty much stays the same but the questions which you raise in 

relation to temporal limits, might I ask you to look at paragraph 32 of the skeleton argument?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

Pause.  

MS HOLLAND:  Now, if one- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Is one of these injunctions the Sweeting injunction?  

MS HOLLAND:  No.  No.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  No.  So, these are all private injunctions; they are not obtained by the 

Local Authority?   
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MS HOLLAND:  No.  May I just take a moment, My Lord?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Sure.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, the approach we’ve taken, My Lord, because I don't and I don't invite you to 

give any period such as a year; I think that would be inappropriate, My Lord, and I very 

much hear what you say so, in practical terms, what we would be seeking is an injunction 

for a period which allowed us to make an application to Court for judgment in default and 

which meant that we wouldn't have to come back to trouble the Court vis-a-vie any listing 

issues and the approach in the Esso case was approximately three to four months and 

directions for trial were given in that case.   

 Now, it may be they made directions for trial; I don't know whether – on what basis it was 

directions for trial but here, we have a Part 7 claim which is susceptible to a default 

judgment and that seems to be the most acceptable course and the Court’s officers and the 

from the perception of costs of actually coming back to Court to get the final order – so, that 

is why it is a period in relation to that type of application to which I’m referring, rather than 

directions for trial.  If, for any reason, that changed, I’d probably have to come back to 

Court and tell you something different.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Well, if you chose that shorter timescale than a year, that would be an 

encouragement to your – objectively speaking, I can see that that is an encouragement to 

your clients to get on with making an application- 

MS HOLLAND:  And it’s our duty to progress the proceedings.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  It also will send a message to the next Judge as the direction of travel 

if you have- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, My Lord.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Sorry, just give me a moment.   

Pause.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Right so, how long do you think is appropriate – do you suggest is 

appropriate?   

MS HOLLAND:  Might I just mention something else while it is my head before I directly answer 

the question?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  If one goes to the – I just feel that I want to do this, to explain our position, is 

that, if one goes to – no, it’s a bad point; I’m sorry.  Well, if we adopted the course of Esso, 
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that would be three to four months.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Well, how long would it take you to make an application for default 

judgment; to deal with an application or deal with resistance to that application or an 

application to set aside?   

MS HOLLAND:  So- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  You may say, how long is – that is asking you long is a piece of string.  

Well, let us take it – make is simpler; how long to make an application for default 

judgment?  

MS HOLLAND:  I anticipate, My Lord, that there will be no resistance.  Under the orders, the 

reason I say that is, when one goes to the original order in the matter, on page 64 of the 

bundle, at paragraph 16, a period for service and acknowledgement of service admission on 

defence was given at 56 days and we’ve never had any form of response in that period 

subsequently.  So, although it’s crystal ball gazing, being realistic; I don't anticipate that we 

will have any resistance to that application.  If a period of – given the bank holidays of four 

to six weeks in relation to the preparation of that application was allowed, and on the 

footing that we would be asking for it come back before the Court and I wouldn’t want to be 

unfair to an applications Judge of listing it for less than two hours, that would involve 

coming back to this Court, probably with a time estimate similar to today of three hours for 

the application for judgment in default, potentially combined with an application for 

summary judgment and, if, for any reason, an issue arose regarding the default judgment 

application, then, we would apply to you and the liberty to apply to say, actually, we need 

some directions for trial and for it then to come on as a trial.  

 So, it may be that the actual period is indicated by reference to when we think a three-hour 

hearing might come on in this Court and taking all matters in the round, although, on the 

Esso case, the trial was for the first available date after 12 June – so, that allowed about 

three to four months, I would have thought a period of four to five months would enable the 

application for judgment – summary judgment to be progressed and listed.  The reason I 

suddenly hesitate is, if we went for summary judgment, I think we have to allow 28 days 

before we’re allowed to issue the application, from recollection.  So, perhaps, if I could ask 

for a period of five months?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Well, I would suggest six.   

MS HOLLAND:  I’m most grateful.  
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I do not know what the state of listing is; and leave it to the recognition on 

your client’s part that they must progress this; it is their duty to do so.  I think, going from 

one year to six months underlines that point; it really needs to be dealt with.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, might I suggest that when we have the injunction hearing, it would be for a 

period of six months or until a final determination of this claim in the meantime?  So, it 

ends whichever is the earlier of those two?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you.  And if we’ve got final determination, that will cover judgment 

default, summary judgment or trial.  Thank you very much for that, My Lord.  I’m very 

grateful, thank you.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Before we look at the order, you were also going to just update me on 

what other injunctions there are which affect this site?  

MS HOLLAND:  So, so far as I understand it, I ask those instructing me to correct me if I’m wrong 

on this; there is no element of the site which, in terms of underground or on the surface 

involves any overlap.  So, there is no physical overlap in titles affected by the injunction.   

Discussion sotto voce.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, what I’ve said is incorrect, My Lord.  Might I ask you to go to page 102, 

My Lord, of the bundle?  And I apologise for what I said earlier.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Do not worry.  102 – is there a tab number?   

MR VANDERMAN:  22 – Tab 22.   

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Where are we going to?   

MS HOLLAND:  So, could I ask you to take it from paragraph 1.9, a third of the way down to page 

103, please, and could I ask you to read all the way up to paragraph 1.24?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

Pause.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  Yes.  Is that the only order we are concerned with?  And that is only 

in relation to Kingsbury?   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, so, in the witness statement – My Lord, could I ask you to go to divider 30, 

and page 45?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  Divider 30?   

MS HOLLAND:  Divider 30, page 45 and, at paragraph (c).  
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

Pause.  

MS HOLLAND:  And if you to page 85, behind tab 33.  So far as Kingsbury is concerned, on 

page 89- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Sorry, did I- 

MS HOLLAND:  Tab 33.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?  

MS HOLLAND:  There, there’s an injunction which relates to the general location; the extent of 

which is shown in red on the exhibit in annex (d) and if you go to that, at page 105, and then, 

if one goes to the – may I just turn my back one moment?   

Discussion sotto voce.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  It does not look to me like it overlaps.   

Discussion sotto voce.  

MS HOLLAND:  My Lord, could I ask you to look at page – page 37 so, the plan for- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I am looking at the draft order.  

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you, right, so, the plan for Kingsbury and if you can compare it with the 

photograph for the Valero injunction- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?  

MS HOLLAND:  - and I am just going to hand up a scribble to you- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I think I can see it.   

MS HOLLAND:  You can see it, can you?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, if you go to the bottom of the photograph, where it says, 

“British Pipeline Agency”- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Correct, yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  Exactly- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, that is the pink shaded on the left- 

MS HOLLAND:  Exactly.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - and across the road, where the ponds are, that is Piccadilly Way and 

Trinity Row – that is the orange shaded- 

MS HOLLAND:  I’m most grateful to you.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - the Valero bit is just off the plan to the north- 
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MS HOLLAND:  Exactly.  Yes.  I’m most grateful for your observancy skills there, My Lord, in 

spotting that.  Thank you very much for that so, it doesn’t affect it and we rely upon the – as 

far as the Warwickshire Local Authority injunction is concerned, on the submissions that we 

made and are recorded- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  They are unaffected by the fact that the Extinction Rebellion is applying to 

set them aside, are they not?  It makes no difference.  

MS HOLLAND:  So, it makes no difference for the same reasons as they are irrelevant; if they 

exist, they must be irrelevant for that exercise as well, I think.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  They were not irrelevant when they existed.  I think it was – there was an 

issue; there might have been an issue as to whether this injunction is necessary because there 

is already an existing injunction- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, you are right, irrelevant is the wrong word.  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  A better point, which found favour with Mr Knox was- 

MS HOLLAND:  They don’t detract from our rights.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  They do not detract from your rights.  There is no reason why your rights 

should not be protected.  Yes, okay.  

MS HOLLAND:  Shall I then take you to the revised draft order?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, please.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, the descriptions of the parties has remained the same; the penal notice is the 

same.  The recitals are, essentially, the same.  The evidence which is recorded as being 

updated and then, in paragraph one, we will change that to – so, we will – six months from 

today is – I think, is that 20 October of this year, is that right?  So, until 20 October 2023 or 

final determination of this claim if earlier.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Whichever is the earliest.  

MS HOLLAND:  Whichever is the earliest.  Or further order in the interim; we had better put that 

in as well, just in case we have to come back to you.  Then, the content of the injunction 

remains the same.  The provision in paragraph two for variation on 48 hours’ notice and the 

communication of evidence, 24 hours.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Is this an amendment?   

MS HOLLAND:  Oh, sorry, no.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Sorry, sorry, just take me back, if you would; doing a further – when we 

were looking for dates, 20 October 2023 for final determination; was that an amendment to 
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paragraph one?  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Instead of the return date?  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I see, yes; that makes more sense.   

MS HOLLAND:  My Lord, I don't know whether you've got to paragraph five yet?   

Pause.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?   

MS HOLLAND:  My suggestion, in the light of your decision is that, paragraph five goes.  The 

essence of what you’re saying – you’ll have to come and start over again, rather than there 

being an adjourned hearing, if you haven’t had it determined by way of trial or final 

determination before 20 October 2023?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, paragraph six and seven would go as well.   

Pause.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Is there any other significant change to this order?  

MS HOLLAND:  I just need to draw your attention to the heading at the bottom of page four, 

“Alternative Service Provisions for Future Applications by the Claimants in this Claim”.  

Now, that’s a repetition of the previous order.  We have actually already had an order for 

future applications but given that this is a new injunction which gets rid of the last order, 

that’s why we’ve repeated it and then, there will be no ambiguity when we make our 

application for summary judgment – judgment in default that we are allowed to do it that way 

but I just thought I had best bring that to your attention.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes, do we need to revisit the- 

MS HOLLAND:  Email addresses?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.   

MS HOLLAND:  I think we probably do, My Lord.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  There is no harm, it seems to be me, getting a bounce back but what I am – 

if we have got addresses which used to work; they may start to work again; who knows?  The 

real question is whether there should be an obligation on you to try and find the latest 

addresses.   

MS HOLLAND:  Would it assist you if we looked at that out of Court to make sure that we have 
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got that absolutely right and put them in the draft order when we send it to you with, if 

necessary, an explanatory note on those emails, or would you like to do it in Court now?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  No, no, that is absolutely fine.  What I am thinking about is this- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - we can put down in this order now, your understanding of which emails 

work.  It looks like, over the past year, that they are quite good at changing emails.  I am not 

sure why; why the emails change.  They are changing and what I would – what I am trying to 

get to is that, if you know that the emails have changed or if you can find out that the emails 

have changed, you must serve on the changed emails.  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, I understand.  That is very clear.  My Lord, just two other things; these are 

really bringing it to your attention, if that’s all right.  So, on the draft order for the return date, 

which is at tab 28 of the bundle- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?   

MS HOLLAND:  - in the draft order – this is a change which hasn’t shown up so, on the draft 

order, in paragraph nine, there had been a move away from four methods of service, to three, 

which was the – the documents on site was removed; obviously, it has its problems, both in 

terms of costs and administration and, in particular, very difficult to police on an ongoing 

basis because the documents can be taken away so, when the application was made, that 

method of service was removed.  Now, I think that the Court needs to grant an order for 

documents on site and it has gone back in but I do need to raise a practicality issue, just for 

the avoidance of doubt on it, that having put that extra protection in for the defendants, on our 

amendment, so that there will be service on site in the boxes, but nevertheless, we aren’t 

under a duty to keep going back and putting further copies in the boxes on the site, whenever 

they’re taken.  We only need to do it once, when we serve- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Is it actually happening that way – that they are disappearing?  

MS HOLLAND:  I’ll take instructions but that is my understanding.   

Discussion sotto voce.  

MS HOLLAND:  My instructions are, they are secured by cable ties but they have been removed 

more than once.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  The boxes are secured by cable ties; I can see that- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - in the photograph but the documents obviously are not.   
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MS HOLLAND:  The documents are not and so, our concern is, we don’t want to be under an 

obligation, given that – you know, in relation to an injunction, to keep putting it back in.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Well, if I may say, the removal of the documents shows that it works 

because they have been taken away to be read.  

MS HOLLAND:  Absolutely, yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  And to bring it to the attention to those who are interested.  So, I – I agree, 

if I may say so, with your instinct that, that should remain and I do not have any objection to 

them only being filled once.  Obviously, the timing is when they are placed, they need to be 

there at the right time, you know, with sufficient notice for- 

MS HOLLAND:  Yes, and, obviously, this order isn’t effective until we have served it in that way 

– this order as well so – but that’s most helpful and the other point was a very small point; 

just to draw your attention to a change in the evidence; it is a really small point but in the 

evidence of – divider 29 – yes, which was the second statement from Mr Davies- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes?   

MS HOLLAND:  - in paragraph 10, he recites an explanation of the entrance at site one.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Right.  

MS HOLLAND:  But then, you will see, in paragraph 11, that there is a change in the position of 

the gate.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Yes.  Noted.   

Discussion sotto voce.  

MS HOLLAND:  If one goes to page 353, My Lord.  Which is at tab 34.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Oh, right, so that is just showing where the gates are moving from and to?  

MS HOLLAND:  That's correct, My Lord, yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Who owns this?  Is this an access way or is this on your land?   

MS HOLLAND:  It’s on our land.   

Pause.  

MS HOLLAND:  Sorry, My Lord, I just want to clarify- 

Discussion sotto voce.  

MS HOLLAND:  I’m sorry about this, My Lord.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Well, just so you know, I was just trying to clarify which part of the 

injunction- 

MS HOLLAND:  It is the Buncefield- 
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  - access – whether it went to interference with access way.   

MS HOLLAND:  This goes to trespass.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Right, as long as it remains on your land, it is not material where the gate 

is.   

MS HOLLAND:  So, I’m told the gates actually aren’t on our land but, looking at the plan for 

Buncefield, they are, therefore – I think it’s outside the red line and so, therefore, they don’t 

actually affect the injunction.  It was just a correction to updating the evidence; that’s all it 

was.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I see.  I see.  

MS HOLLAND:  My Lord, I’m so grateful to you; thank you very much.  Is there anything else I 

can assist you with?  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  No, Ms Holland, but I feel I ought to give a short judgment.   

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

Judgment transcribed separately.   

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you very much, My Lord.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Is there anything else?  

MS HOLLAND:  In terms of sending the order, shall we send it through the usual channels or is 

there a specific email address?   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  You can send it to my clerk, who is Nicholas Salengi[?].  I am afraid 

giving you his email address – it can be done, actually.  

MS HOLLAND:  Oh, we have it already, I’m told.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  You have it already?  

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you very much.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Can I give you back these bundles?  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.   

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  Thank you very much.  They were, in fact – Ms Holland, you can collect 

them later; you do not have to come and get them now.  That was extremely helpful because 

the technology – I am still getting used to it and it did not work.   

MS HOLLAND:  Well, My Lord- 

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  This would have taken a lot longer if we had not had the paper bundles.  

MS HOLLAND:  Thank you so much for dealing with it so efficiently and all the pre-reading you 

have done.  We really are most grateful; thank you very much.  
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MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  All right.  I will not keep the bundles.  I will have them electronically.  

MS HOLLAND:  Yes.  Thank you.  

MR JUSTICE RAJAH:  I will rise.  

Court rises at 12.34pm.  
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